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Definitions

B=

“2017 CIA Top Hundred Report” the “2017 China Top Hundred Property Management Companies Report”
published by China Index Academy in collaboration with China Property
Management Association (Bl ERHE) in June 2017

[2017 B2 B 5 b B s s s R B TR0 2017 F 6 AR B X ER & A ETIZEHC017 P EY %
FRF B R EAT®RE)
"1H2017" First half of the financial year 2017, being six months ended 30 June 2017
[2017 F L#4F | - [ L5 2017 AR Y E4F - BB E 2017 5 6 A 30 B IE/REA
"2H2017" Second half of the financial year 2017, being six months ended 31 December
2017 of the calendar year
[2017 F TH4F ]~ T4 2017 FREFE R THF - BIEZE 2017412 A 31 H 1L EA
"Board” the board of Directors of our Company
[EFg] BARREES
“China” or "PRC" the People’s Republic of China, which for the purpose of this annual report
and for geographic reference only, excludes Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan
[ hEARKANE  ERAFERERMEZEMS - TRESE  RFARSE
"Company”, Greentown Service Group Co. Ltd (4% 3 AR 7% & B 5 IR 2 7)), an exempted
“Greentown Service Group” or company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability on 24
“our Company” November 2014
[RAE) ]~ [ARMARTS ] 3k [A AR HBRBEEBRAR - —KN2014F 11 A24 BRI SRS MK LA ER
Rl YN
“Director(s)” the director(s) of our Company
[E%] RN ==
"Group”, "our Group”, "the Group”, our Company and its subsidiary(ies) from time to time or where the context so
“we", "us"”, or "our” requires, in respect of the period before our Company became the holding

company of our present subsidiaries, the business operated by such
subsidiaries or their predecessors (as the case may be)

[&E] - [REE] ARRBRETEONBRE - MEXEMT AL [HFA] 2RKARBH
BARMEZERABMNOHE  EZEMBARHENS AR (RFIHEAME)
REMET

"GFA" Gross Floor Area

[ZEmiE ] EEEE

"Hong Kong” or "HK” the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC

(& hEEBRERTEHRR

"HK$" or “HK dollars” the lawful currency of Hong Kong

&7t EBEEEYR
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Definitions

B=

“Reporting Period” or “Period”

[mEMAL - R

IR
(& H A

“Listing"”
[

“Listing Date”

[ LB

“"RMB” or “Renminbi”
[AR® ]

"Sq m."

[ 755K )

"Stock Exchange”
[ B8 22 P |

"US$"
E2d

" "

yly

u%u

For the twelve months ended 31 December 2017
HE2017F12A31 AL+ =EA

Investor Relationship

REHEBRE

the listing of the Shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
RRABRD B PAEIR ETH

12 July 2016, on which the Shares were listed and from which dealings in the
Shares are permitted to take place on the Stock Exchange

RORBE R ETI Bt EEE HE - R20165F7 A 128

million
Er-

Renminbi yuan, the lawful currency of China

BARET  HEEEER

square meter

=k

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
EEBMARSMARAR

US dollar
ETT

year-on-year

FRRIN

percent

Elssd
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Company Overview

NEE

The Group is a leading happy living service provider nationwide, and is
based on owners’ full range of life scene and the entire life cycle of real
estate, and provide a wide range of services that are strongly
associated with life, which contains property service, community service
and consulting service. We differentiate ourselves from other property
management service providers by providing our residents with access
to a broad products and services portfolio that addresses the evolving
everyday and life-style needs of our customers, property owners and
residents. In the "2017 China Property Service Top 100 Enterprises
Research Results Conference” organized by China Index Academy (a
professional independent third-party Real Estate Research
Organization in China), we once again won the first place of “China’s
top 100 leading enterprises in terms of Property Service Satisfaction”.
The “Research on China’s smart community building standard system”,
mainly edited by Greentown, has been published and distributed by
Chinese Society for Urban Studies (HF BI% i B 28 5EF ) in June 2017,
with the aim to change the pattern of industry development, enhance
the wisdom of science and technology, supply theory standards and
practice principles.

OUR PRODUCT AND SERVICE PORTFOLIO

J Property services. We provide a range of high quality property
management services, such as security, cleaning, gardening, and
repair and maintenance services, which we refer to collectively as
“standard” property management services, and charge the
residents and owners of our managed properties or real estate
developers management fees for such services. As of 31
December 2017, we managed properties located in 120 cities
across 24 provinces, direct-controlled municipalities and
autonomous regions across China with a total contracted GFA
under management of 378 million sg m. which covers high-end
residential, government public construction, commercial office
buildings, urban complex.

o Consulting services. We offer consulting services to real estate
developers and local property management companies to
address various needs that arise during each major stage
throughout the course of their property development projects,
capitalizing on our brand equity and expertise. For example, we
provide real estate developers with project planning, design
management, construction management and marketing
management consulting services during the design and
development stages and display unit management services to
facilitate sales of their developed projects. We also provide
management consulting services with respect to delivered
properties to real estate developers and property management
companies.

GREENTOWN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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Company Overview

NGRS

Community living services. Based on the needs of the owners of
the owners’ full range of life scene, we provide property owners
and residents of our managed communities with access to an
extensive array of daily necessities complemented by a wide
assortment of life-style products and services through a variety of
channels. Our services under this segment include community
products and services, home living services, community space
services, property asset management services, cultural &
education services. As the needs of our owners and residents for
better living have been evolving, on the basis of innovation and
promotion of traditional service, we will continue to use the
mobile Internet and the smart Community portal, offer a wider
range of services and products to satisfy the customers, and
combine online and offline service, to broaden and accelerate
the flow of life services.

B@RS - RAMEREINEZEFEE
SENER  BEZRREANRMEE
AROXEREFPRHSBERTLEY
FmMEEMEEEERMRYE - BE
R BEERERRRE - RELEER
B EREERSE NMEEETER
B XACBERYE - BEXEINEER
FHMEEMITENERRE  &EE
B AMRETTEREERBOER L -
MEEEEREHEMRAELTSHERA
A - #RE SRR AR 5 B AR 75 M E dm 2R
WMREP BELgTHAamIA A
BAMIEAERIBEREZER o

2017TEERE SWRIEEEERAF

9



(CREEES

PERFECTION



Historical Financial and Operating Data Highlights

B BEESHERE

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December

BZ12831BLEE

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTRT ARBTT ARETR
Revenue WA 1,671,647 2,204,565 2,918,627 3,721,993 5,140,059
+/-% =,/ B % - 31.9% 32.4% 27.5% 38.1%
Gross profit EA 242,429 363,086 530,925 716,027 946,390
+/-% L % - 49.8% 46.2% 34.9% 32.2%
Profit for the year FRHE 76,494 149,382 202,567 294,787 392,070
Net profit attributable to equity NGIL
shareholders of the Company E(EEFE 83,712 149,189 197,818 285,540 387,483
+/~% L % - 78.2% 32.6% 44.3% 35.7%
Earnings per share, (RMB) FiEEREF
after listing (AR®) - - - 0.12 0.14
% of overall revenue L UON
— by service line —REX
— Property services — MERT 73.2% 73.7% 71.6% 70.4% 69.3%
— Consulting services — BARG 19.8% 19.9% 18.9% 16.6% 13.2%
— Community living services — B R% 7.0% 6.4% 9.5% 13.0% 17.5%
Overall revenue A 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Profitability AE=
Gross margin by service lines BREREAINERNE
— Property services — YRS 5.6% 8.6% 10.2% 10.9% 11.2%
— Consulting services — R 36.4% 35.9% 33.9% 35.5% 36.1%
— Community living services — B R 45.8% 46.7% 47.5% 43.5% 33.5%
Gross margin — overall ERE— e 14.5% 16.5% 18.2% 19.2% 18.4%
Net margin EREE 5.0% 6.8% 6.8% 7.7% 7.6%

2017TEERE SWRIEEEERAF
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Historical Financial and Operating Data Highlights

B BEESHERE

For the year ended 31 December

BZ12831BLEE

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARETR
PROFIT OR LOSS B
Revenue — by service line WA — REHK
Property services MR 1,223,889 1,623,597 2,090,872 2,619,927 3,559,644
+/-% B, H % 32.7% 28.8% 25.3% 35.9%
Property under R R
construction services 278,800 377,847 475,957 522,533 572,730
+/-% 2,/ md % 35.5% 26.0% 9.8% 9.6%
% of total revenue of consulting B HARE B A%
services 84.4% 86.0% 86.4% 84.5% 84.2%
Management consulting services EIER AR 51,475 61,568 74,820 95,503 107,612
+/-% B2,/ md % 19.6% 21.5% 27.6% 12.7%
% of total revenue of consulting 1B ARG AR A %
services 15.6% 14.0% 13.6% 15.5% 15.8%
Consulting services BHR® 330,275 439,415 550,777 618,036 680,342
+/-% =i,/ md % 33.0% 25.3% 12.2% 10.1%
Community products and services Bl& E m R IR 34,450 40,862 105,023 113,338 186,361
+/-% B2,/ md % 18.6% 157.0% 7.9% 64.4%
Home living services RIE EE R 69,045 84,503 145,691 64,620 71,075
+/-% =i,/ "L % 22.4% 72.4% -55.6% 10.0%
Community space services & 2= A AR 7% 13,988 16,188 26,264 58,816 121,486
+/-% B0,/ H % 15.7% 62.2% 123.9% 106.6%
Property asset management services ¥ 3 & & & 18 IR 15 - - - 236,171 500,986
+/-% =2,/ md % - 112.1%
Cultural & education services YALEE R - - - 11,085 20,165
+/-% i,/ "L % - - - - 81.9%
Community living services EERE 117,483 141,553 276,978 484,030 900,073
+/-% B0,/ H % 20.5% 95.7% 74.8% 86.0%

GREENTOWN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT
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Historical Financial and Operating Data Highlights

B BEESHERE

For the year ended 31 December
BZ12A31ALEE
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 ~ RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETRT ARBTT AR¥TR

OPERATING DATA EEYE
Property services LES Y S
Total nos of contracts AREAH - - 637 809 1,035
+/- #mn,/m - - - 172 226
+/-% i,/ m % - - - 27.0% 27.9%
Reserved GFAs (m sq m) REEE(BEEXK) - - 89.1 119.4 150.0
+- 2,/ 5w - - - 303 30.6
+/-% 2,/ B % - - - 34.0% 25.6%
Managed GFAs (m sq m) EEER(BEBTXK) 54.7 65.9 82.8 105.2 137.8
+/- #m,/m - 1.2 169 224 325
+-% o,/ mA % - 20.5% 25.6% 27.1% 30.9%
Terminated GFAs RHEB(BBEXK) 19 2.1 2.4 20 4.9
+/-% 2,/ m % - 10.5% 14.3% -16.7% 145%
% of managed GFAs in the year EEFEEERE% 3.5% 3.2% 2.9% 1.9% 4.6%
Avg property service fee TOMEREE
(RMB/mth/sq m) (AR% 84
8¥AH) 2.69 2.94 3.06 3.08 3.1
+/-% 0,/ HA % - 9.3% 4.1% 0.7% 0.97%
Operating efficiency BENH
Collection rate U = 95.6% 95.9% 96.6% 97.4% 98.6%

2017 ERE SPRBEBFRAF 18



Historical Financial and Operating Data Highlights

B BEESHERE

FINANCIAL POSITION AR R

As at 31 December
M12A31H
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
Note RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000  RMB‘000

Mz ARETFT ARETRT ARETRT ARETT AR®ETT
Cash & cash equivalents HeRESEEY 299,441 437,419 835,897 2,181,692 1,836,467
Trade & other receivables B 5 R E b fE Wk 311,909 437,663 419,952 546,666 789,719
Current assets MEEE 751,414 1,068,366 1,376,874 2,853,076 2,936,359
Total assets BERE 959,575 1,302,315 1,641,885 3,322,719 4,139,784
Current liabilities RHaE 730,681 1,070,998 1,472,265 1,554,520 2,138,300
Bank loans RITER 40,000 100,000 180,000 - =
Total liabilities BEEE 749,530 1,085,031 1,493,008 1,576,983 2,148,066
Net assets BEE 210,045 217,284 148,877 1,745,736 1,991,718
Financial ratios Bigth =
Current ratio BN & 1.03x 1.00x 0.94x 1.84x 1.37x
Quick ratio RENLL R 1.01x 1.00x 0.93x 1.83x 1.31x
Net gearing ratio FEERMEX (1) Net cash Net cash Net cash Net cash Net cash
FiR e FIRE FIR e FiHe FRE
Net cash per share SRFRe @ - - - 0.79 0.66
Rates of return EE:ES
Dividend per share (HK$), LR EsRIRE(ET)
after listing (3) - - - 0.04 0.06
Return on net equity SFERERE (@) 39.9% 68.5% 132.8% 16.4% 19.5%
Return on total assets 4B E R R (5) 8.7% 11.5% 12.0% 8.6% 9.4%
Notes: BFE -

(1) Net gearing ratio is calculated as cash and cash equivalents minus bank loans, and M FEEABRHERZRUNBERBESEYRE
then divided by net assets RITEFR - RERVFEE

) Net cash per share is calculated as cash and cash equivalents minus bank loans, ) FRERESNFEFEARUBENBEEBYRE
then divided by total number of shares in issuance at the date of 31 December 2017 SBITER  REBRUBZE2017F12A31HBE &7
AR

A3) This is based on total number of shares issued as at the date of 31 December 2017: @) ERENRHE017FE12A3NBERITHARE
2,777,776,000 shares 2,777,776,000 f%

() Return on net equity is calculated as net profit attributable to equity shareholders of ~ (4) SRR BB R E AR AR AR R BTG
the Company divided by net assets FIBRAFEE

(5) Return on total assets is calculated as profit attributable to equity shareholders of  (5) BEERRETHE A ERNA RS REEERF
the Company divided by total assets BRIAEE

GREENTOWN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2017



Historical Financial and Operating Data Highlights

B BEESHERE

CONSOLIDATED CASHFLOW GEHRERE

For the year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HLEE
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 ~ RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTRT ARBTT ARETR

Net cash generated from/(used in) RETERE

operating activities (FR)R&FR 173,593 332,802 510,822 393,661 528,574
Net cash (used in)/generated from wEZE (FR)/

investing activities e F8 (72,400) (164,138) 131,660 (146,864)  (749,803)
Net cash (used in)/generated from B&EE (FrR)/

financing activities SR e 38 (10,635) (30,686) (243,950) 1,056,525 (71,018)
Net increase in cash & ReRReEEY

cash equivalents EnFeE 90,558 137,978 398,532 1,303,322 (292,247)
Cash & cash equivalents at the FHNRERAS

beginning of the year ZEY 208,883 299,441 437,419 835,897 2,181,692
Effect of foreign exchange rate EXRFHTE

changes - - (54) 42,473 (52,978)
Cash & cash equivalents FEREAER

at the end of the year RESEY 299,441 437,419 835897 2,181,692 1,836,467

2017 ERE BPRBEBFRAF 15
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Awards and Honors

IE S

2017 China Property Services Leading Brand in Quality 2017 China Property Services Leading Brand
in Market-Oriented Operation
2017 PEY IR mE E LR 2017 PEIXIRBE B EEREmME

% CERTIFICATE @'\
— —

o [ 8 e R o5 RO A (B 0 G B 5 1
Certificate of Chine Property Mansgement Brand Valoe
Bara WA TanNE wama-
WERAEE ATSRRESRNE B NN saEawan. wEaE =
“ RN " M~ 2007 RN Y
| SRR B AL E IO A BRI T A (4, 950.000,000)

Tomsa. il

RERAICR o 90

@
2017 China Property Services Leading Brand 2017 China Property Services Top 100 Enterprise
in Market-oriented Operation
2017 HEIMEBB TS EE BLmMEERE 2017 HEIM R AR
e & B B
% o . w % mf?l'&‘lFICATK @
Ll{_l-'l.lill.\TR _;_.
o5 49 A B 5 O 7510 5 45 ' 20174 (5 A JE 5 5
Certificate of Chine Property Management Brand Valoe 2017 China TOP100 Property Management Companies
— 'm;."rmn-l-muam:;:;mmtr i “'wm“.n“*mﬂuﬁﬂ
iy WA A TR T 6, AUEE 2017 (IR A I

2017 China Property Services Enterprise Growth TOP10 2017 China Property Services Enterprise Scale TOP10

2017 PEY ¥R B R ERERETOP10 2017 PEIY ¥R B R X R HFETOP10
- [V LB,
% CIRTIF&E W CERTIFICATE
2017 v [ 4 i I 55 1 58 i3 ol 2017 ¢ 6 # 0k B 55 7 58 467 ke
2017 Chins TOPI00 Properiy Management Companies 17 (‘.hlu-“u'l‘r.l:‘t: FProperty Management Companies
- “r-‘“.u'$QNMkm . SR S AR )

‘ FEEE 2007 IR IR R R I TOPI0 FEEE 2007 IRk L P e IR TOP1O
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Awards and Honors

RIENRE

2017 China Property Services

Top 100 Leading Enterprise in Service Quality

2017 PEAMIERB HRRBREALEHE

[ 2017 [51% kIR % 58 7k

2017 China TOPI0D Properiy Management Companies
‘ NS B e AN S

Rkl SR 2 )
S 2007 o [0y M 56 SN 6 L B S

i T 100 Trvpar s B ¥

[ p——

2017 China Featured Property Services

Leading Corporate — Intelligent Community

Service System

2017 HEIREMERBALLX — E2EERKER

% CERTIFICATE %
—e—

2017+ [ £ ¥y lk TR % B0 0l

Winrprmans Camprairs be farms o Fa

AT WA
TR | T AR AT

Y
L T T T Py

ki B 5 AL
DR 2007 o L i R S e —— PRI A

2017 China Property Services Top 100 leading
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Chairman’s Statement

ER|E

HERR :

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the annual results for
the year ended 31 December 2017.

At the end of 2017, the economic and social development in China
showed a historic signal that the principal contradictions facing
Chinese society has evolved. What we now face is the contradiction
between unbalanced and inadequate development and the people’s
ever-growing needs for a better life.

This important signal indicated the direction of development for many
industries. Residential house and urban spaces are the main places to
experience beautiful life scenes. However, the property service
providers, which conduct routine maintenance and improvement work,
have the most natural advantages to be the participants and witnesses
of the supply and realization of a better life demand.

It is honored that Greentown Services, immediately upon its list on the
Stock Exchange, anchored the core values of happy life operators and
will provide a wide range of quality life products and services that focus
on the health and well-being of all residents in the Community, which
were shown on the first page of the prospectus. Later, we extracted
“"Happy Life Service Provider” as the development vision and showed
it on the cover of performance report.

The development version of “Happy Life Service Provider” and the
national consensus of a better life shared a common coincidence with
the same aim. We recorded promising performance both in capital
market and business development just within two or three months. In
terms of the overall performance throughout the full year, the three
business services of Greentown Service, including consulting service,
property service and community living service, continue to own the
characteristics of stable base, synergistic development and better
improvement.
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RESULTS REVIEW

China’s economy rebounded modestly in this year, increased by 6.9%
over the previous year, achieving the first speed-up in seven years. The
service industry contributed a significant share to the growth,
becoming the major driving power, and the real estate industry also
recorded robust sales with unusual performance and enhanced the
capital and confidence of the land bank. As a real estate-related service
industry, Greentown Service will certainly not miss the positive
opportunities brought by the big trend. With the consulting experience
value by offering high-end property management, we have signed a
new service area of 64.2 million square meters among the strategic
target cities, and achieved RMB680.3 million consulting services
income.

People in China are eager to pay higher fees for better services, this
kind of willingness is continuing to grow. The average property charges
for newly-signed projects increased year-on-year. However, the
collection rate of property fees for projects under management also
continued to enhance by leveraging on the high satisfaction with daily
services and the services portfolio facing beautiful life, together with
the service delivery of the pipeline projects and the inclusion of the
stock project that can be charged after signed, the property service
recorded the operating revenue of RMB3,559.6 million.

More importantly, consistent with the trend of the increasing
disposable income of urban residents in China, there has also been a
strong growth line for the owners of services we serve, community
living services or products that have to be consumed or improved in
the consumer life. The operating revenue of our community living
service segment recorded RMB900.1 million throughout the year, its
growth rate achieved 86.0% compared with the last year. Similarly, the
increase of the service in the community and the visual changes at the
internet application level have led to our "Happy Greentown” online
app to record 580,000 registered users. The online active rate
increased by 3% over the previous year to 66.23% with the increase of
the registered users, the online usage of smart courier achieved up to
97.96%. It was the progress when we proactively embraced the Internet
and forming strong relations with the property owners. The online
activity has also led to the distribution of offline life scenes. We have
set up our own brand “Green Orange” convenience stores and
unmanned sales outlets in the community. The purpose is to break
through the form and content of traditional retail and become a social
sharing center for the interactive communication of property owners,
an experience center by deeply integrating online and offline lives.

GREENTOWN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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Chairman’s Statement
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Apart from providing the home life service with many residents this
year, we also further penetrated our services into the public buildings
and commercial offices with significant values in urban areas, newly
signed provincial government large-scale office space, such as the
Party School of Jiangxi Provincial Party Committee in Nanchang City;
increased the service for Commercial R & D office projects, such as the
phase Il of Alibaba Software Community in Hangzhou, Yanchang
Petroleum Research Center in Xi‘an. As for the services for the National
Games Village in Tianjin, it was recognized as a collective of
outstanding service and further accumulated the experience and
confidence in serving the nation and even the intercontinental
competitions.

The service is endless and difficult to be perfect. We made some
achievements in the development and capital markets over the
previous year. However, we are clearly aware that there is still room for
the quality and efficiency of development. Entering into a better life is
still shallow and the capacity of facing the high competition within the
industry needs to be improved. These are the powers that motivate us
to make further progress and go forward.
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FUTURE OUTLOOK

A better life supply practices, from the national design to private
expectations, will be deeply promoted during this year. As a service
provider which is rooted in Yangtze River Delta and the Bohai Rim
regions, and participating into some cities in the Pearl River Delta and
cities with potential in the Midwest nowadays, we need to play the
center role in the industry and demonstrate the leading effects in the
supply of urban living services and operation services.

In fact, the experience and basis of our own past development and the
development plans of our strategic partners have paved the ways. We
have also made some preparations in advance. For example, a number
of large-scale housing enterprises that cooperate strategically with
Greentown Service have obtained dozens of construction sites in 2016
and 2017, most of which are located in the first- and second-tier cities
such as Beijing, Shanghai, Chongqging, Hangzhou, Chengdu and
Wuhan. They will mainly launch a number of service projects and the
updated service, so as to cater for the new life expectancy in 2018.
Based on the policies of rent and sale in the first-tier and second-tier
cities, we used a number of urban outlets replaced by Greentown to
establish rental and service Center and broaden the channels of asset
management. Aiming at China’s two-child policy, we implemented the
relevant policies for three years. The need for early education is
surging, we are well poised to utilize the quality education services that
we prepared in advance, which will cover more communities and the
surrounding areas in 2018. Greentown Service and Zhejiang University,
one of the first-class institution in China, jointly study the service system
integrating the industrial planning, investment and operation so as to
promote the realization of industrial services by using the artificial
intelligence town as a pilot.

Previously, our smart service standardization mode enabled output was
nominated by Wharton Business School as one of the top 10 real estate
cases in China in 2017-2018. The “Research on China's smart
community building standard system”, mainly edited by Greentown,
has been published and distributed by Chinese Society for Urban
Studies (' B 3% 717 B B2 BF 5T BE) in June 2017, with the aim to change
the pattern of industry development, enhance the wisdom of science
and technology, supply theory standards and practice principles.
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The above is an example of our practices to enhance service efficiency  TEFBERE - B ARETEE o At - KRtbEF
and management efficiency and to release the design capacity of a  EEFEFAEFRER - KB EZEMCE —Ff
better life service. EEMEEAEEREEATHARE -

In 2018 and the foreseeable future, the connection between property 2018 E LA R B EHI AR - WERIEE LT
services and our life will become higher and the more demand. Life is  BES LM S - FRBEMA - ARG HE
eternal and unlimited, we must strengthen ourselves before we can  JE - £ BMAEC - T @RAKRE - HKHES
integrate into the general trend and form a shiny benchmark. Whether 24T o AR R 7 - 4B £ 20184F BETFE
Greentown Service will conduct the practice and create better 7 BIE(EXE AT EERKEH - 28
performance? Only both the clear thinking by management and the — ALhNE)%) @ A @45 H IR BRF A9 EIZS o M 3 17
more full diligence by all employees will give the Shareholders the ;8GR iE A |

expected answer. We have no reason not to do this!
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEE TR M AT

The Group is a leading happy living service provider nationwide. In the
“2017 China Property Service Top 100 Enterprises Research Results
Conference” organized by China Index Academy (a professional
independent third-party Real Estate Research Organization in China),
we once again won the first place of “China’s top 100 leading
enterprises in terms of Property Service Satisfaction”, which is the
praise of our services, and is one of the important drivers for the
continuous expansion of our management scale, update of our service
system and sustained growth of financial performance.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company achieved:

Revenue

Revenue was RMB5,140.1 million. Compared with that of the same
period of year ended 31 December 2016, which was RMB3,721.9
million, the growth rate on year-on-year basis reached 38.1%, which set
a new record for the Group's performance.

The Group's revenue comes from three segments: (i) property services,
(i) community living services, and (iii) consulting services. During the
year, (i) the revenue from the property services is still the Group's
largest source of income and profit, which was up to RMB3,559.6
million, accounting for 69.3% of the Group's income. Compared with
RMB2,619.9 million in the year of 2016, there's a year-on-year growth of
35.9%; (i) community living services revenue reached RMB900.1 million,
accounting for 17.5% of the Group's income. Compared with the year
of 2016, there was a year-on-year growth of 86.0%, which continued to
keep the strong growth momentum; (iii) the revenue of consulting
services amounted to RMB680.3 million, which accounted for 13.2% of
the Group's income, revealing a year-on-year growth of 10.1%
compared with the whole year of 2016.
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BEET WM AT

2017 2016
2017 F 20164
% of % of
the total the total
RMB'000 revenue RMB'000 revenue Y%
ARBTT EEBA%R ARETT EHHEKA% FIEIMN%
Property services YR
Property services E e 3,559,644 69.3% 2,619,927 70.4% 35.9%
3,559,644 69.3% 2,619,927 70.4% 35.9%
Consulting services I
Property under YR
construction services 572,730 11.1% 522,533 14.0% 9.6%
Management IR AR
consulting services 107,612 2.1% 95,503 2.6% 12.7%
680,342 13.2% 618,036 16.6% 10.1%
Community living E &R
services
Community products & B[ = @ F AR
services 186,361 3.6% 113,338 3.1% 64.4%
Home living services REETERTE 71,075 1.4% 64,620 1.7% 10.0%
Community space & [ 2= 8 Al 75
services 121,486 2.4% 58,816 1.6% 106.6%
Property asset MEEEBERS
management
services 500,986 9.7% 236,171 6.3% 112.1%
Cultural & education b R A R
services 20,165 0.4% 11,085 0.3% 81.9%
900,073 17.5% 484,030 13.0% 86.0%
5,140,059 100.0% 3,721,993 100.0% 38.1%
Cost of sales SHE R A

During the year, the cost of sales was RMB4,193.7 million, which was an
increase of 39.5% compared with that of RMB3,005.9 million in the
same period of 2016 and it was slightly higher than the Group's income
growth of 38.1%. This is mainly due to the fact that our cost increased
as the scale expanded. At the same time, some of our business
adjustment and structural optimization also brought some impact on
this aspect. Certainly, the Group has been focusing on cost control,
and in 2018, we will be more active in discussing the direction of

replacing basic functionality with automation, to improve the

organization, technology and labor efficiency.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Administrative expenses

The Group's administrative expenses was RMB416.0 million, an
increase of 51.3% compared with RMB274.9 million in 2016. This
growth rate is larger than the trend of Group’s income growth, which is
mainly because: (i) increased demand for personnel services resulting
from rapid income growth and an increase in staff expenditure brought
by a rise in per capita wage; (ii) investment in the construction of
intelligent facilities, equipment and information systems. For instance,
the internal Big Data center, the upgrade of project management
system, system software development, and hardware maintenance,
etc.; (iii) investment in building support center platforms, which include
financial sharing centers and human resources sharing centers, in order
to manage personnel costs, improve management efficiency; and (iv)
the office expenses as a result of the Group's relocation into the new
self-purchased headquarter building at the end of 2016.

Gross profit

—  Gross profit has reached RMB946.4 million, a growth of 32.2%
compared with RMB716.0 million in 2016. Gross profit margin was
18.4%, decreased by 0.8%, compared with the same period of
last year; the main reason for the reduction of the gross profit
rate was the decline of gross profit rate in the community living
service and the change in the proportion of three major business
components.

—  Gross profit margin for property service was 11.2%, slightly higher
than 10.9% in 2016. Although the unit labor costs keep rising, the
Group spares no efforts to provide more premium service
experience for owners through applying the Internet, utilization
of intelligent devices and improvement in management system.
Also, the Group categorizes the communities it manages into
certain service levels according to the different charge standards,
formulates customized standards for equipment improvements
and service plan, to make sure the consistency in customer
experiences in different projects, as well as provide protection for
the rapid expansion of the Group across the country. As a result
of the establishment of automatic, centralized and standardized
management system, the Group can realize the excellent cost
control while keep the satisfaction of customers.

—  Gross profit margin for consulting service was 36.1%, slightly
higher than 35.5% in 2016, which has been stable in recent years.
The adjustment to new policies of consulting services has
affected the change in gross profit margin.
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—  Gross profit margin for community living service was 33.5%, there
was an obvious decline as compared to 43.5% in 2016. This was
mainly due to the rapid changes in sales portfolio as a result of
the strategic planning of development of community living
services.

(i) Community products & services, because of the inherent
nature of its products, mainly quality agriculture products
like rice and fruits, its gross profit margin was lower than the
average gross profit margin of community living services.
Accordingly, when such products and services grew rapidly
and achieved a year-on-year growth of 64.4%, brought
strong revenue, however, it would dilute the average gross
margin.

(i) Continuous expansion and investment in property asset
management services. Property asset management service,
being the key component of community living service
segment, contributed 55.7% to revenue of community living
services in 2017, and property agency business (" ki & ")
is the major income source of this business line. Since 2017,
the rise in initial investment, as a result of the geography
expansion of property agency business, including shop rent
and employment of staff, led to the continuous drop in
gross profit of this segment, and work to average down the
overall gross margin of community living service. Therefore,
we will continue to pay more attention to and control the
cost of this segment.

(i)~ Strategic adjustment and further investment in cultural &
education services. Since the second half of 2017, the
implementation of the Private Education Promotion Law
(C I ¥ %0 & {2 3 1)) and some negative publications on
education industry lead to the higher entry barrier for these
industries, and the Group has a deeper understanding
about the owners’ rising demand for high-end education.
The Group has set stricter requirements for the
establishment and operation of the equipment and field,
and devoted more resources into the research in education
curriculum system and salary of teachers and training
system. Gross profit margin of this segment was negative
which was -44.1% affecting the overall average gross margin
of community living services.
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The sales portfolio of community living services will keep HREERBHIHEEEEKSE
adjusting, therefore, the Board believes that the average B IABEFESRR/RKNT
gross margin for the future will continue to adjust HEFEJEeBENTHAZ A
downwards, but the Board has closely monitored and §$AE¥T@EHW§EAWZ’U7FEJ?E
controlled the community services in terms of the costs. 177 SR ERIES o FREE R
During the year, the gross margin for community living ﬁ%%ﬂ$$ﬁ Lt 2017 4F 1 B E A &
service decreased by 2.3% only, as compared to that of 358% ETMET23EEDE 5K
35.8% in interim period of 2017, showing that the measures REVEFE M) R ©
for managing and controlling the cost started to make
effect.

Net Finance income/(costs) BMEWA(BAE) B

The finance income during the year was RMB18.2 million, increased by S REIEW A B AR 18. 25?%7_!: ﬂl:t2016

244.3% compared with that of RMB5.3 million in the same period of F ARKE53BETILZMN2443% - EREAE

2016. This is because of the increase in operating capital of the Group, [EREZLE SN - j]ﬂj:i_}@f]\ﬂﬁk’\ﬁﬁ'tl_‘ﬁ%
together with the large amount of capital raised to list on the Stock &7 KE2& % FTARITA BRI KIBIRF »
Exchange. In this sense, the interest rate of bank has been greatly ZF—FHE ' £EERERMEKEK  TEEAAR
increased. On the other hand, the Group did not have the financing 2016 E A TEEESEE T 2 IRITER o
cost, mainly because in 2016 the fund was used to repay all the bank

loans.
2017 2016
RMB’'000 RMB'000 Y/Y%
AR¥T ARETTT FIEN %
Interest income on listed FTHEEIARNBRA
debt instruments 665 - N/A i A
Interest income on bank deposits #71T717 2 A B I A 18,239 5,297 244.3%
Interest expenses on bank loans  $R1TERF B - (6,964) -100.0%
Net finance income/(costs) BEWA(KZR) FE58 18,904 (1,667) -1,234.0%
The profits and losses of the associate company and joint PTMEBEREE QARNABNER

venture company

In 2017, profits of associates amounted to RMB7.3 million, increased by 20174 [E - B & QA aFHAARK7IBEET -
RMB2.9 million, or 64.8% from RMB4.4 million in 2016. One of the ®2016FEARKE44BETIERARKE29
property service companies performed strongly and realized profit of B &It (564.8%) * AR —RYERBE R FI*K
RMB15.4 million. Profits of joint venture amounted to RMBO0.3 million, &%) ERFBEARBIS4BETT - &R
turning to profit from loss. AFEAARKOIEET  AFEA -

2017TEERE SWRIEEEERAF



30

Management Discussion and Analysis

BEET WM AT

Income Tax

The income tax for the year was RMB116.8 million, decreased by 5.6%
from RMB123.8 million during the same period of 2016, and the tax
burden fell from 29.6% in 2016 to 23.0% of this year; excluding the
effect of withholding tax, the tax burden fell from 27.6% in 2016 to
25.1% of this year. It is mainly because the Group has improved the tax
management system, and strengthened the tax control. According to
China'’s relevant tax regulations, the Group considered that the income
will not be distributed to the overseas in last year and the year of 2018,
so in 2017, the Group set back the withholding tax of its Chinese
subsidiaries.

Frig®t

FAMGBHAARB1168BETT 201645
FAPARE1238BETRAYTF5.6% HE
2016 G #929.6% % 2 R F #923.0% : #ikxR
MBEMRNTE  HEH2016FM27.6%
[RERFN251% - TE2HREETE 7RG
EIERR IR T HBER o Rz EAIERE
BRG] - REZ BB E—F A K20185Fd
TERBHINDEFNBEFRE 20175 E %
B T 7 5% o B Y R AR TR A0 A A0
[B] o

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T AREEFTT
Current tax BPEABE 18
PRC corporate income tax D EER 147,427 108,199
Under-provision in respect of prior years BAFERETR 2,161 2,178
149,588 110,377
Deferred tax IEFERLIE
Origination and reversal of By Z R E A RO
temporary differences (21,935) 5,122
Withholding tax on the profits of RNEEHBENE R RN BEDS
the Group's PRC subsidiaries (10,804) 8,302
(32,739) 13,424
116,849 123,801

Under the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and the British
Virgin Islands, the Group is not subject to any income tax in Cayman
Islands and British Virgin Islands.

The income tax rate applicable to a subsidiary incorporated in Hong
Kong for the income subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax during the year
was 16.5%. No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax was made for the
year ended 31 December 2017 as the Group did not earn any income
which was subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax.

Individual Chinese companies under the Group are usually required to
pay an enterprise income tax at 25% of taxable income and, unless
otherwise prescribed, the tax rate is determined in accordance with
China’s relevant income tax regulations and regulations.
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Profits for the year

During the year, profits of the Company were RMB392.1 million, an
increase of 33.0% compared with the same period last year; profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company was RMB387.5
million, a growth of 35.7% compared with the same period in 2016; net
profit margin, being profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company divided by revenue, was 7.5%, a slight decrease of 0.2% over
7.7% in the previous year. The slight decline in margin was due to:
mainly a strategies investment in Cultural and Educational Service and
Property asset management service. By nature, the strategies
investment experienced a decline in net margin and this situation will
continue in the short future. The board believes these two sub-service
line will be the important growth drivers and help the Group to seize
the opportunity of development in future. Earnings per share was
RMBO0.14, a year-on-year growth of 16.7%.

Liquidity, reserves and capital structure

The Group maintained a good financial condition during the year. The
current assets for the year was RMB2,936.4 million, increased by 2.9%
compared to RMB2,853.1 million in 2016. The Group's cash and cash
equivalents amounted to RMB1,836.5 million, decreased by 15.8% from
RMB2,181.7 million in 2016. But the corporate capital remains plentiful,
with no bank loans, and is in a net cash position, with a current ratio of
1.37 during the year, at a normal level.

In 2017, cash and cash equivalents of the Group amounted to
RMB1,836.5 million, declined year-on-year by 15.8% as compared to
RMB2,181.7 million for the year of 2016. This was mainly due to netting
of (i) the net cash used in investing activities of RMB749.8 million; (i)
cash used in financing activities of RMB71.0 million; and (iii) decrease
of RMB53.0 million arising from fluctuation in exchange rate. Net cash
inflow from operating activities remained the stable upward trend,
amounting to RMB528.6 million during the year, grew year-on-year by
34.3% from RMB393.7 million in 2016.

The total equity of the Group for 2017 was RMB1,991.7 million, which
increased by 14.1% from RMB1,745.7 million in 2016. This is mainly due
to the accumulation of the company’s profits during the year.

Because all of the Group's business is within the PRC, the operating
income and profits for the year are denominated in Renminbi. The
Group's only source of foreign currency is the Hong Kong dollar,
because it witnessed a successful IPO in Hong Kong in 2016. Therefore,
a single foreign currency investment income for the year was the
deposit interest of the raised funds. The Group does not render that
there is a major foreign currency exchange risk, or has adopted
financial instruments to hedge currency risk.

FARE

FRN - ARFEABARE3NIBGET - [
#R33.0%: ARl EEGEFEAARE
3875BBIL H2016F2FRHEAL - K
35.7% : yFFE (1 B HE s AR R E 4G TR RBR LA
A)BT75%  BEFRE7.7%8E TE0.21E
AN FAEBTHREREEENSEELEX
IbHEBERTY - BEEERS LM 7T BERE -
LR TREEEE  SeTRBARNERMOE
FMBELYE EBE=eREELRERARM
FRREEERERES - FRENBARKE
0147t » FILLIER16.7% °

REBES BERELRERE
REBERFREFERVBRN - FRRBE
EABARB29364FETT  B2016F AR
2853 1 BB LEM29% - EBHIRE MIRE
EBMEINAREK1,8365FE T R 2016
FAR®E2181.7BETLTIE15.8% ° BEAQF
B DR - RBRTER  BERNFESMK
e FRRBILE R A1.37 0 BRIEEKFE -

2017 FEERSMRSEEMAARE1,836.5
BEJT H2016F52FARE2181 7B T
ML - EELTBE15.8% c EEERRAAHKRT ¢
WREFRHANESFBARKETI8EE
TC () RVEESFTRAMARK 71088 &
(iNEXEBEHRI T ARKESB0EHE T -
M EEBASRESFRAKAZER LIRS
B3 EREARES86EETT 0 H2016F 2
FARMEI37EET - FER34.3% -

EE017FNBEEZAARBE19MN7EET
2016 FE AR, 7457 BETTIEMNT 14.1%
EXERAAFTRARFENER -

RREEMENEBGERAN - IAFRES
WAFMEEHAAREE - KEHE—INE
KBRRE016FEEFEERN ETEEES -
2ERBT - FIAFANE —INERERAR
t EMEEESNFEHRNE - KETRAFE
ERINEERER - KBRS R TAKY
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Property, plant and equipment

During the year, the value of property, plant and equipment amounted
to RMB303.9 million, which increased by 14.9% from RMB264.5 million
in 2016. This is mainly due to the increase of 226 management
communities, or 27.9%, under normal operation, the Group also
acquired the corresponding community equipment and office
equipment.

Trade and other receivables

During the year, trade and other receivables amounted to RMB789.7
million, increased by RMB243.0 million, or 44.4%, from RMB546.7
million in 2016. Although this percentage was higher than that of
income growth, it remained within 14%-16% in 2016 and 2017 in terms
of its shares of total revenue. Trade receivables (mainly property service
fees) which constitute the most amounted to RMB489.1 million,
increased by RMB113.7 million, or 30.3%, from RMB375.4 million in
2016, which is lower than the total revenue growth of 38.1%; share of
revenue decreased to 9.5% in 2017 from 10.1% in 2016, demonstrating
the good collection policies and effective implementation of amounts
receivables.

Receipts in advance

For the year ended 31 December 2017, receipts in advance amounted
to RMB649.8 million, increased by RMB176.6 million or 37.3% when
compared to RMB473.2 million in 2016, which was generally in line with
the growth rate of the revenue. Receipts in advance mainly represents
the property service fees paid by owners in advance.

Trade and other payables

This year, this amount amounted to RMB1,303.6 million, 38.3% higher
than RMB942.9 million in 2016. This is mainly due to: (i) the growth in
trade payable and (i) the increase in the amount of payment collected
on behalf of owners. This growth is linked to the Group's volume of
business, which is generally in line with the revenue growth of 38.1%
for the year.
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Property Services — accounting for 69.3% of total revenue,
and 42.2% of total gross profit

Property services are the Group's largest revenue and margin source.
During the past 19 years since the establishment till now, the Group
has been mainly adopting the overall rationing system for service
charging. Based on our management experience and cost control
capability over the past 19 years, property services provide us with
stable revenue and profit, as well as good reputation. Throughout
2017:

— Revenue reaching RMB3,559.6 million, an increase of
35.9%compared with RMB2,619.9 million in 2016, achieving a
steady rise compared with the Group's previous growing
tendency of 30%.

—  Gross profit reaching RMB399.3 million, up 39.5% from RMB286.3

MERSE — EHHBWA69.3%  (hEAER
42.2%
YMERBREEBNFAWMARMEF R o #&
VERAEMIOFER  SE—EHETEXNE
BHENRBKRE TN - ERBMBEI19FE
ZREBEHIAAIESE S - WERB AR
PIERBENRA - FIBE REERE - R
2017 F2F ¢

— WAEARE3S596BHETT  B2016%F
2EARE261998 & T EF359%
EEEIBAMNIERAEIOWELRERMAL,
BRAEM-

— FEMABARMBINVIEET  R20165F

million in 2016. 2FEARE2863BETTEF39.5% -
2017 2016
% of property % of % of property % of
service managed service managed
revenue GFA revenue GFA
15D 2E AR 7% HEE R ESi S HEE
WA % HE % WA % &%
Contracted GFA EHEE

— Residential — = 70.6 79.0 72.3 76.2
— Non-residential — 3E=E 29.4 21.0 27.7 23.8
Total et 100.0 100.0 100 100

—  The managed GFA reaching 137.8 million square meters, an
increase of 31.0% compared with 105.2 million square meters in
2016, or net increase of 32.6 million square meters, increased by
20.3 million square meters compared with 117.5 million square
meters in the interim period of 2017. The increase in new projects
brings us endogenous growth momentum and is also the main
source of the continued increase in revenue and profits from
property services. At the same time, based on the market
demand for high-end property services, we have also actively
expanded to the stock market, promoted the increase of
managed GFA during the year, resulting in increased income,
which is also the reason why the managed GFA has set a
historical high during the year.

— HEE®EAIVSEEF XK 82016
FEI105.2 BB F A KEMNT 31.0% » 3%
FIEIN32.6 BB F A K L2017 F A Hf
B1175BE&F A KENT203688FH
K o FTIE B Y150 A B M AR R A 3
KR8 bRMERBKALFBEHE
BINETERR - R ERTEHS
HMERBHB K BMGEERFE
MEHE  REFRNEEMENRES
HmABERBANIG I EHREFALE
HEBEELFSHNREZ— -

2017TEERE SWRIEEEERAF

33



Management Discussion and Analysis

BEET WM AT

34

Reserved GFA, as one of the most important sources of managed
GFA in the future, reached a new high of 150.0 million square
meters in the year, a growth of 25.6% compared with 119.4
million square meters in 2016, or net increase of 31.6 million
square meters. This is for the fourth consecutive year that the
Group's reserved GFA is higher than the managed GFA, showing
that the total area of new items we acquire each year not only fills
in the area changing from reserve to delivery, but also brings net
increase and added reserve, providing a solid foundation for the
Group's future growth.

1,035 management projects, covering 120 cities in 24 provinces,
municipalities and autonomous regions in China, while there
were 809 management projects in 2016.

Greentown China Holdings Limited (“Greentown China”, stock
code: 3900.HK) is our Shareholder and our biggest customer as
well as important partner. During the year, Greentown China's
sales amount accounted for 4.4% of the Group's total sales. Since
its inception, the Group has been operating independently,
facing the national market to obtain projects, so there will be no
excessive customer concentration.

Regional distribution: as at 31 December 2017, our managed
gross floor area (“GFA") and income by region are distributed as
follows:

REEE FARREEEBRHNEER
Bez—  FREI—@#H= - £15008
BF K H2016F 11945 8 F 7K
ML N T 25.6%  SFIEMNN6BE
FHK EREBEEFNFHERE
SREERE  BREMSFHERE
EEBEETRER T EFNHERSER
R - B RFIE N AR
AEERRFIGRIBHEEEER -

EEIBEBE035ME BET2E24
BE BEMMEEER - JAK 12085
™ ° 2016 FAEETH B {E20 /3809 & -

B EZERAERAR ([REFER] - K
3 5%+ 3900.HK) R 7 2R FIRBCR
FRAMNKAEFPMEZSERH -
FR - BWPBEEAERENHEESHE
R44% SEWNKIZIAR—EBULE
B EREEMSMERER - RS
SHREFBERTNER -

@ 1% 5 46 0 2017 F 128318 B M
NAESEmEMKARE S S H0T

2017 2016

% of % of
managed % of managed % of
GFA revenue GFA revenue
EEEER% ERBBA % EEERE% EBKA %
— Hangzhou — M 17.2 29.0 19.9 26.6
— YuHang — &M 5.8 5.6 6.6 6.5
— Greater Hangzhou — KA 23.0 34.6 265 33.1
— Ningbo — B 7.7 6.3 8.3 7.2
— Yangtze River Delta — RI=fA&E 37.9 31.3 37.0 31.2
— Bohai EconomicRim  — IR#BE&ER 15.2 13.1 10.6 13.6
— Pearl River Delta —HI=AR 5.0 5.5 55 52
— Others — Hfh 11.2 9.2 12.1 9.7
100 100 100 100
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Community Living Services - accounting for 17.5% of our
total revenue, and 31.9% of our total gross profit

During the year, the community living service is still the one with the
fastest growth rate among Company's many business, and has gained
revenue of RMB900.1 million, a continued rapid increase of 86.0%
compared with RMB484.0 million in 2016. Among them,

)

The community products and services (accounting for 20.7% of
the community living service income): in 2017, the annual income
reached more than RMB186.4 million, an year-on-year increase of
64.4% compared with RMB113.3 million in 2016.

Home Life Services (accounting 7.9% of the community living
service income): in 2017, the annual income reached RMB71.1
million, compared with RMBé4.6 million in 2016, slightly up
10.0%.

Community Space Services (accounting for 13.5% of the
community living service income): in 2017, the annual income
reached RMB121.5 million, a substantial increase of 106.6%,
compared with RMB58.8 million in 2016.

Property Asset Management Services (accounting for 55.7% of
the community living service income): in 2017, the annual income
reached RMB501.0 million, significantly increased by 112.1%
compared with RMB236.2 million in 2016.

Cultural and education services (accounting for 2.2% of the
revenue of the community living services): in 2017, the annual
income reached RMB20.2 million, a year-on-year increase rate of
81.9% compared with RMB11.1 million in the same period of
2016.

BER®E — HRBA17.5%  EREF
31.9%

FA - BREBRBERABRRIRSEHFERER
E&REER  WESKASARE01H
BT M2016FARKIB0BET - HER
BIRFEB6.0% o Hh

m

B @ E S ARG ERRB KA
20.7%) 1 2017 F W A A R #1864 H
B BH2016FARBI133EE T
HET 64.4% °

BREERSE (R ERFLATI%)
017F WA BARENIE & T
R L2016 A REE6A6H & 710 IS
FEF10.0% °

B &R Zz= R R (HERREKA13.5%)
2017 FIRANEARB121.58&T © Rk
20165 AN R #5888 & - B A
106.6% °

MEEBEEERS(EE R RS KA
55.7%) : 2017 F R A E 5| A R #501.0
BET BEH2016FARKE2362EE
TTARIBEERT 1121% °

AL B R (5 B & RIS A RI2.2%) -
2017 FRABARE202B8E T Ak
016FAERBEMNIAE T KX
81.9% °

2017 2016
Revenue % of Y/Y Revenue % of
RMB'000 total % RMB'000 total
(LN {H#A%E F2m KA (ks
AR¥TR % % ARETTT %
Community products B & 2 m RS

& services 186,361 20.7 64.4 113,338 23.4
Home living services BEREE R 71,075 7.9 10.0 64,620 134
Community space services B[ = fE AR % 121,486 13.5 106.6 58,816 12.2

Property asset management ¥ %¥ & EE IR
services 500,986 55.7 112.1 236,171 48.8
Cultural & education services X{t# 5 RS 20,165 2.2 81.9 11,085 2.2
Total st 900,073 100 86.0 484,030 100
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Community living services is the Group's fastest growing business
segment. Community living service provides systematic products and
service solutions based on owners’ full range of life scene and the
entire life cycle of real estate, it is the extension of property services,
but also an important component of our strategic objective as a
"Happy Life Service Provider”. Since 2017, we made continuous
adjustment and optimization of the relevant content of community
living services based on the actual situation of our strategic plan.

In terms of community products and services, we facilitate mainly
the rice-centered “"Happy Granary” plan, to provide for the owners
high-quality agricultural and sideline products. And on this basis,
according to the owners’ product demand for China’s traditional
festivals (Dragon Boat Festival, Mid-Autumn Festival, etc.), we enrich
product types in the community to meet the owner’s demand. We,
based on this, will also deepen cooperation with enterprise customers
among owners, to enhance our product bargaining advantage at the
same time of developing them into B-end customers. In the meantime,
we will improve the owner’s product experience, based on the
advantage brought by the investment in the new retailing industry,
Haolingju, with the cooperation of Xian Life and Yiguo, we also set out
to layout community business, and plan to take advantage of the
management experience and advantages of Haolingju and Xian Life in
the new retail area, to build our community convenience store in the
managed community with the implementation of rapid replication to
promote the development of industrial community products and
services.

In terms of property asset management services, during the year,
various local governments have issued policies to promote housing
leasing market, rent and purchase to the residential needs. And a
series of policy incentives to accelerate the cultivation and
development of housing leasing market have been introduced one
after another, making the leasing market the priority of government
policy. This has also verified the correctness of our strategic
deployment for this part of the business. In the future, we planned to
continue to carry out the regional expansion plan, and will optimize the
development strategy: to carry out the strategy step by step according
to the distribution of the managed project, and the activity degree of
second-hand housing transaction. In addition, we also established
"Uhomelifes” brand to carry out housing rental business for community
owner’s idle assets. These businesses are in a fast-expanding phase,
and will still affect the gross profit margin of that division to be
adjusted downward further in the next period of time. But we believe
that although this is necessary to seize market opportunities, we still
need a certain amount of time to make adjustment, so as to establish a
stable business model of asset management operations eventually,
improve the value-added of our services, and bring a stable source of
income and profit.
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In terms of cultural and education services, we adjusted the early
childhood education development strategy according to the market
and the industry situation, focused on the early preschool education
high-end market, and promoted specialization level and marketability
degree. In the past year, in addition to the adjustment of strategic
positioning, business development model has also been adjusted.
From the “all-inclusive” community education concept, with platform
cooperation strategy transformation as the chain-store strategy for
early education, we continuously streamlined low value-added high risk
projects, and introduced high-end education system, and moved
toward the parallel-tracking approach of “introduction + independent
R&D". During the year, due to external policies and some adverse
events in the industry, and the adjustment of our strategic positioning
and requirements, through proprietary trading and cooperation, we've
invested and built a total of 27 Qi Miao Yuan related education points.
Some education points are being decorated and have yet to be
operated. As stated in the 2017 interim report, the continued
investment in this part is expected to be profitable in the third year,
and based on our continued commitment to the rapid occupation of
the education market, the overall profit-making cycle of that part of the
service may be stretched and we will monitor it to make our overall or
community living service division profit free from its impact as far as
possible. In addition, we will actively explore the service system of the
home-based care for elderly in the community, to improve the
community living service content, to research and develop appropriate
products for the high-end need of the elderly, and to create the
industry’s leading care services brand.

Consulting services — accounting for 13.2% of the total
revenue, 25.9% of the total gross profit

As discussed in the 2016 annual report, the Group is fully aware of and
actively responding to the structural changes in the business
environment of the consultancy service. For instance, we cooperate
with Mercedes-Benz, Chrysler and other auto 4s stores and some local
governments to gradually expand our customer base; at the same
time, we provide the extension of service content and type, such as the
provision of activities planning, organization, and the application of
field robot. In addition, our “Green Alliance” service, by accurately
understanding the property service enterprises’ demand for the
improvement of service quality in the market, has gained the market
recognition, thus promoting the performance enhancing of the
management of consulting services. In 2017, the consulting services
income reached RMB680.3 million, an increase rate of 10.1% compared
with the annual growth of 2016, and compared with the growth rate of
2.7% in mid-year of 2017, there has been a more significant increase,
which also verified that new strategy for our consulting services is
effective.
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TSR] - HE T EIEA ARG EER
Fo2017FFRN FHRBBRAEARE
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2017 2016
Revenue % of Y/Y  Revenue % of Y/Y
RMB’000 total %  RMB’000 total %
WA {h#8%8 FH 0 WA (ECE] F1E
AR¥T T % % ARBETT % %
Project under TERYE RS
construction services 572,730 84.2 9.6 522,533 84.5 9.8
Management consulting B IR EARE
services 107,612 15.8 12.7 95,503 155 27.6
Total 1BEt 680,342 100 10.1 618,036 100 12.2
2017 2016
Average Average
Nos. of revenue/ Nos. of revenue/
projects project projects project
year end Y/Y% RMB'000 yearend Y/Y%  RMB'000
FHlA FHRAS
B H @ F18m BE IHEEH FI8n THH
FR % ARETT FR % AREFT
Project under TEZ I E RS
construction services 297 22.7 1,928 242 14.2 2,159
Management consulting EREARY
services 272 29.5 396 210 235 455

During the year, the revenue for project under construction
services reached RMB572.7 million, a year-on-year increase of
9.6% compared with that in 2016. And compared with the 0.2%
growth rate in the middle of 2017, there has been a significant
increase. This is mainly because of the number of customers we
serve has been further expanded with the growth of the new
contract area of property management services, and through the
way we expand our customer base.

During the year, the revenue for management consulting services
reached RMB107.6 million, an increase of 12.7% compared with
the same period in 2016. This is mainly because primary results
have been achieved with the implementation of “Green Alliance”
service. On the original model of deliver management services to
customers, we have not only enhance the maintaining time of
business partnership, but also let more property service
enterprises to choose to establish a “Green Alliance” partnership
with us, thereby driving the increase of income.
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—  During the year, the consulting service gross profit was 245.4
million, an increase of 11.9% compared with 219.3 million in 2016.

Based on our effectiveness in the strategic transformation of consulting
services in 2017, in 2018 we will continue to advance the strategy
implementation. In addition to continuing to promote the “Green
Alliance” business, we will also further explore the value of our
enterprise customers, to provide our customers with the Group's
mature management and technology system, such as centralized
procurement, personnel training, quality certification, etc., so as to
improve the value of consulting services, maintain and promote the
future growth of consulting services.

Proceeds from listing

On 12 July 2016, the company successfully listed on the main board of
the Stock Exchange and issued 777,776,000 new shares. Excluding the
underwriting fees and related expenses, the total proceeds from
Listing is HK$1,472 million (equivalent to RMB1,265.8 million). These
proceeds will be used in accordance with the prospectus of the
Company dated 28 June 2016 (the “Prospectus”) and the purpose of
the Company'’s announcement issued on 15 September 2017:

—  49% for acquiring property services companies and value-added
services providers (22% has been used)

— 7% for the development and promotion of the “Smart
Community” project, and community products and services (4.5%
has been used)

—  19% for repayment of loans (has been fully used)

—  25% for working capital and general enterprise use (18% has
been used)

Dividend distribution

At the Board meeting held on 23 March 2018, the Board
recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.06 per ordinary
share of the Company. The final dividend will be paid on 21 June 2018.

The Board is of the view that the Group has generated considerable
cash from its remarkable operating performance in the year, and the
Group also keeps large amount of cash in addition to funds required
for its operations. The Board always believes in sharing the positive
return from the Group's growth with its shareholders through dividend
distribution. The payout ratio is higher than that disclosed in the
Prospectus, namely the payout ratio will not be less than 25% of profit
after taxation.

— FR-BARGEFNAARKE 245458
JC v 12016 F M A R #2193 8 & i
Lt EFF11.9% ©

E R 2017 F HAPIE 7 s AR A% B RS S AL 5 I A
B - 2018 FRAPIG B HEBESE 1 - FRIF
BRI XI55 i — T HRM
CREFPHEBMEETEE ARMANEFREHR
AEEERAMERERMEBR - MEFK
B AR mERES  ESHAREH
BE  AFYHESRREARBEEER -

FHRERIE
NRR2016F7 12BN ERB LR b
T B17777,776,000 R FT Y - BB B A
MY % - EWATS AR AEE,472
BET(ERAREK1260658HETT) ° 25N
THEEBARR BB A2016F6 288 2
E(BRE]) RAQTNR2017F9 /158
BHHAEE AR OBER -

— A% MREBMERE AR RIZHIEE
RIsH B (EEHA 22%)

— T%RARAEREERISZRRE]HA
Ko B 8 E fm M AR TS (2 2 A 4.5%)

— 19%AREEER(CE2HBA)

— 5% MELEEe N —ROERE(EDHH
18%)

IR 2.5k
R2018FIABEAHMEZTEF EFE
EEREREBEBR R EEE0.06 7T - K
& 2 2018 F 6 A 21 BIR{T ©

EXxeR R SERFRAREERRELME
EHRAENRES BERAZEMENE
T DREBEAERE - IAEESHITEE
—EMES - BEREMBER—EDFXEN
FR o B AR S L PIBEHRE AR (BF
SIEHRAMBE T DR 25% BIED LR S HEAR
®) e
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ACQUISITION AND FUTURE PROSPECTS

Since the listing, the Company has been actively and prudently
monitoring acquisition opportunities in the market. It also adjusted the
use of proceeds as disclosed in the Prospectus based on acquisition
activities in the market and removed the original limit of proceeds
applied for acquisition of property and community projects. Apart from
pursuing equity cooperation in property services as the ongoing
strategy (which takes into account the quality of customers, the
compatibility with the business of the Company and a relatively diverse
portfolio of property projects of the target companies), we also showed
an active interest in possible acquisitions of community living service
business. During the year, we completed a total of 19 equity
cooperation projects, including the establishment of new joint
ventures. In addition to the large-scale acquisition projects disclosed in
the 2017 interim report, namely Jilin Tianshun Property Service
Company Limited, Tianjin Yinte Property Service Company Limited and
Zhejiang Lansong Supply Chain Management Company Limited, we
completed two major acquisitions in the year.

WiERARRE

BLEMUR - RB—EEHMERNETITS
EmEEHE  SERNTSEEBERARTHA
BERENSEESERBESTH ALY - I
BHT RESESPWEMXEEEFRR £
EVLLPIBRSE  BRIEEY RIS AR S 1E LR —
ERBE(REBFRAREFPEE  BRAAEK
EHMEE  HBREENVMXRARREBFRE
KEE)IN BACBEEREIRRREES L
BB RT BE1E o F R HKFHSER T 19 B B4R
BFEB(BRAEFRAR) - BRER2017
Fh#MBFEFREORERANKBEIER —
EMRIEMERBER AR - RERFWER
BERAR N IEEHEREREARAA
Sh o FARTAPITTRC T M E R AR BK ) Y BE IR
B o

Equity

Place of Acquisition interest
Name of acquired entities establishment date acquired Principal activity Consideration
FIREERERE BRI B k& B HA BRI E FEXEK RE
In thousands
ATt AEM
Zhejiang Lvbang Property Services  PRC 2017.7.3 45%  Property RMB15,750

Company Limited management
WL HAMEERFR AR g MEER ARH 15,750 7T
Idea Thrive Limited Cayman Islands ~ 2017.10.31 100% Investment UsSD84,000
holding

EHERAF HEHS LB 84,000 7T
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We acquired Idea Thrive Limited through the establishment of an
associated company with Xianlife and ExFresh, details of which please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 29 October 2017.
This was our first major acquisition in the field of community living
services. We hope to establish and improve our own community service
business model through this acquisition, thereby supporting the rapid
development of community products and services.

We have been cautious in undertaking acquisitions. We also actively
seize good opportunities when they arise. Looking forward, we will
advance our acquisition strategy, closely monitor the market and seek
the best acquisition opportunities.

Contingent liabilities
As at the end of 2017, the Group had no contingent liabilities.

BUSINESS RISKS

Staff costs and sub-contracting costs, which are derived from
outsourcing security and cleaning services to sub-contractors,
represent the single largest component in our cost of sales. In most of
the regions we operate, wages have been rising in general. As the
number of communities under our management increases each year,
our headcount and, in turn, total wages go up. Therefore, we attach
great importance to staff and subcontracting costs as well as quality
control to maintain and improve profitability.

Our control measures include: (a) taking the initiative to install
automated management equipment, so as to cut labour cost. For
example, we promoted the upgrade of intelligent gate system and the
application of patrol robots; (b) strengthening the supervision and
control over the quality of outsourced staff and services. Excluding the
increase in headcount resulting from acquisitions, the overall staff
growth (including outsourced service staff) was less than revenue
growth in 2017. The effectiveness of such measures in cost control has
been proven and the Group believes there is plenty of room for further
cost control as it is only in the early stage.

RABERATNUERMSRBEEETE
THEN B E A RN NETH - FARF
R2017F 1029 A% - EKEMERR
RIS B MM E — @R AR UEEEE - B
FERBEIMBBEEIEZERMECH
HEMNEER  AEEERREHIRERERT
RENA °

—ENRERMERE L mARREEREN
—BEINKE  RMLERBIHEE
B EETIR  HMASEERS —ENKER
B - RIS mIRREm KBRS -

FREE
R2017 FIE - AEEW KRB EMRKARIE -

EHER

BTN BRAGNERRIBERED BRE)E
HAIHERA R ZRAN— B - MEFKFIRSS
MitER BB TEDOE LK - MERMEF
MRGOERZAEN BETHENURTELR
BB ARIEIN - BT HR  EMEF BTG
h BEEEREIRSBRAREERE
i o

HPEHIEEEE Q) EHEE RS LEEN
B R AR E R IR © BlInHEEH S EB
RIREF S WERBEANERS  (b)
MBEINBRFEABRRBEENEE MIE
Bl e RERWBAHROZEAEEERL
S R2017 FERERBABRE (SRBINE
AB)BRERERRAEREX - FUEEREE
FREE AR HINA - MASBEHREERZER
VPR - WREBREMAZEHINZERE -
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Risks in relation to work safety and occurrence of accidents
There are inherent risks of work-related injury or accidents occurring
due to the nature of property services we perform, for example, when
our employees or employees of our sub-contractors provide repair and
maintenance services to elevators of the residential communities we
manage. During the Reporting Period, we did not experience any work
injury incident or accident in the course of our operations that resulted
in a material and adverse effect on our business, financial position and
results of operations.

We typically require our sub-contractors to maintain accident personal
injury insurance policies. We also purchase liability insurance such as
general liability, property and machinery insurances for the
communities we manage, in order to protect us from claims due to
negligence or reckless acts of our staff and employees of our sub-
contractors. More importantly, in order to instruct our staff to follow
the standard procedures at work, we provide regular training on safety
and job skills. This prevents and reduces work-related injury or
accidents and the possible claims arise when employees perform their
duties.

In 2017, a babysitter set a flat on fire in the “Sapphire Mansion”, a
community under our management, which resulted in casualties. The
court has made the first instance judgment and the retrial is in
progress. For the Company, the incident was a lesson on the
importance of having a chief safety officer and optimizing the safety
management system. We strengthened the inspection of the fire and
safety system in all communities under our management. We also
invited the fire safety department to educate employees and house
owners on fire safety. This facilitated talents nurturing and safety
management efforts, with the aim of improving safety and prevention
works in the communities we operated.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISKS

The Group conducts its business mainly in China and in Renminbi.
Therefore, it is exposed to minimal foreign exchange risk. Nonetheless,
depreciation or appreciation of Renminbi and Hong Kong dollar
against foreign currencies may affect the Group's results. The Group
currently does not hedge our foreign exchange risks, but continuously
monitors foreign exchange exposure. The management will consider
hedging the foreign exchange exposure if it has a material impact on
the Group.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES EEREHEBBER

The Group has established its human resources policies and training  F R - KEBERIEHITERA DB REE MEH
mechanism in the year, which offer a diversified platform for training 4%l - A8 TR Z (b 2 EZ LA AR F
and personal growth. The remuneration package offered to the staff & o |8 T2 2 & FB IR E B S L ER
was in line with their duties and the prevailing market terms. TWIHIZEETF - T F & EBISEA I IERE
Discretionary bonuses based on individual performance will be paidto  EXKIR » ARG R EREFE - A% B IR
employees as a recognition of and reward for their contributions. Staff  [FEERHTEEET  REEES  BEERE
benefits, including pension, medical coverage and provident funds, are  RATE® -

also provided to employees of the Group.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had 20,639 employees and the 2017412 A31H  £EAE20,639%E T -
total staff costs were RMB1,670.0 million. MEETHNAR/ARKE1,6700EETT °
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OBJECTIVES

Transparency in corporate information forms part of the basis for
investors’ confidence towards listed company, though it is also the
responsibility of a public company. A stable, diversified shareholders
base in which communication is effective, is essential to facilitate
shareholders value creation. And in the process, it could contribute to
a stable share price performance. This is a valuable intangible asset for
the Company. And IR is the very bridge of two-way communication
amongst shareholders, investment institutions and the public at one
end, whilst that of listed company at the other. Externally, in
compliance with the Listing Rules, the Company provides regular, real-
time, accurate and complete corporate information and updates. This
facilitates shareholders and the public alike to understand the
Company'’s operation and value, the state of development. Should this
be well co-ordinated, this should contribute to the establishment of a
long term and mutual relationship between the Company, shareholders
and the public. In the meantime, the Company is able to make known
of its corporate culture, business philosophy, strategy and planning, as
well as industry changes. This would enable investors and the public to
appreciate the Company’s positioning in the industry, business model
and competitive advantages, differentiating the Company from the
peers further. Internally, the Company takes shareholders and the
public’s independent and valuable opinion seriously. Through
dialogues, the Company would listen and consider their views, aiming
to enhance the Company'’s corporate governance.

CAPITAL MARKET RECOGNITION

Since listing in 2016, the Company has been researching diligently on
the capital markets and its expectation towards the Company. Through
various communication channels, the Company has built effective and
two-way relationships with shareholders, investors, fund managers and
analysts, and other related parties in the capital markets. The Company
is very honoured to receive many recognitions in the capital market in
the past year:

— In the last year, the Company became the subject of the reports

prepared by 15 domestic and international brokers. Currently, we
were covered by 23 brokers.
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MAJOR COMMUNICATION CHANNELS

1.

"Wechat Official Account” — Company'’s latest news will be
updated weekly

Brokers, investment banks organized investor marketing activities

Reverse roadshows — regularly invite investors to visit our
headquarters and communities we manage to conduct onsite
research

Twice a year results announcement and public briefing

Media reports

Wechat Official Account — “ #23# Bk 7% 2869IR” (only
available in Chinese version)

In order to maintain timely communication with the market, the
Company has set up the Wechat Official Account in 2016,
covering three main aspects: capital market development,
business development, and owner resident feedback. It is to
keep the market and the investors informed of the latest business
development in the business segments of the Company. The
contents include analyst reports, media coverage, awards,
strategic cooperation, takeover, new business plan, development
and growth of existing business etc. We reasonably and strictly
follow the rules to maintain information disclosure and
transparency as possible. Throughout the year of 2017, the
Company published 127 articles on Wechat in total, with an
average of 2.3 articles per week. Currently, We have more than
1,200 followers.

No. of issued Wechat articles

WMELRBENBGHE (R)

TEBBERE

1.

[MAEARS] — BAEH—RARRN

(P
FE o RITHEBNZEREARELY

RARKE — EREBRBREAREHE
BED - LT R R BN

BEMANEERNE
REERE

WIE DR — [ B39 IR 35 2869IR
(REHIRA)
BTRARFRITGEBEORRE - A
BIR2016FFA T B I MERARY - 2
REAMS FHEERMEEEE=E
TERRE - WRABNEB DR K
MOEBRRBASHFTISMREA -
NERRE T OWMEh RS - HEBRTE - AT
IR BREAE - DB ED
R REEBRERNKES ERE
BRMARET  FRREBRFEEDH
RFEAMBERE - 2017 F2F - REIHE
BMMEHREX127K - FHFEEM23
e BAT RMWEIABCKEBR
1,200 A ©

Contents AARDHE 2016 2017
Capital market development BARTIHER 3 31
Business development HERER 10 77
Owner residents feedback EEaEl 4 19
Total EE 17 127
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Marketing activities organized by brokers and
investment banks

The Company has participated in various roadshows and
conferences organized by brokers and investment banks in China,
met with a large number of investment institutions, and actively
maintained communication with the market. The Company is
pleased to interact with the investors and keep them informed of
the business development. During the period, the Company met
with 854 investors in total (including repeated visits) and met with
726 investment institutions (including repeated visits),
representing a significant increase in the number of investors and
institutions met compared to 2016.

HE - RITASNSBREREH

RAZRZ2MFEANRTABERE AN
BERMA NS BXENRERER
| RBETMIGRESE  FRREEHR
REARR  BRAREBHRERBRLE
FILEAN - B AR KT8 AR
MREARE(BREEREN) 8726
RAMBERBEE(BREERE
) - BEL20165F ML - w2 R A
BHE EISREAANE HAKIEE
e

No. of visits with the investors per month

HEREAGAREHE (A)
2016 2017
Ju Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
7R 8RA 9RA 10A A 12A 1A 2K 34 4R 5H 6A 7H 8HA 9H 10A 1A 12A4
15 85 23 38 50 38 36 13 88 108 74 109 13 149 66 30 130 38
Total Total
B 249 At 854

No. of roadshows with investment institutions

BREREMEEBEE (R
2016 2017
Chinese funded g 90 450
Non-Chinese funded JERE 138 276
Total EE 228 726

R - AR EGINEIR - R0
R 3 WABIMIE AERE - 2017 F T
FE - REBIMNREANGHFRBERE M
RABGEAINERBLLD - #2017 F £
FE41.5%  BAZ TH¥EFM46.4% °

Meanwhile, the Company has participated in various roadshows
internationally, such as in Singapore, Tokyo and London, to
expand the base of overseas investors. In 2H 2017, meeting
requests from overseas investors increased, and meetings with
foreign investment institutions increased from 41.5% in 1H 2017
to 46.4% in 2H 2017.
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Date Organizer Events Venue
=R ES 5] EE 1
1-May-17 CCBI Hong Kong Corporate Day London
2017%5A1H FEIRBIRR ERNGIENEE) GE
15-June-17 Industrial Securities  Hong Kong Corporate Day Taipei
201756 A 15H BRES EENGIENEE ) ait
21-June-17 CicC CICC Investment Strategy Conference 2H17 Shanghai
2017F6A21H FEAT FEAF20177 THERERBE 1k
22-June-17 CITl Asia Pacific Property Conference 2017 Hong Kong
2017 %6 A 22H TEHEER 017 FEABFEHESH &
5-July-17 President Securities Hong Kong Corporate Day Taipei
201747 A5H B ENENGIENEE ) ait
6-September-17 Cicc Presenting China London
2017%59R6H FERF SN Gk (CE
15-September-17 CCBI Hong Kong Corporate Day Singapore
201749 A 15R8 ZRER BEBRAIRES N
19-September-17 CITIC Life Evolution Service Forum Shanghai
20179 A19R FEES ERECREWE 1B
31-October-17 CITI Citi China Investor Conference 2017 Macau
20174 10A31H TEEERE 2017 FH AR EERE !
29-November-17 Industrial Investment Strategy Conference 2018 Shanghai
2017F1MA29E BT 2018 FHE R 1B L&
14-15 December 2017 Okasan Okasan Hong Kong Corporate Day Tokyo
201712148 fij = M=&BNARES R
£15H
19-December-17 CITIC Forum on Long-term Apartment Leasing Shanghai
2017F12R198 FEES RHLBEFRWE +&
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Reverse Roadshow and Open Day — regularly invite
shareholders and investors to visit our headquarters
and communities we manage

In the Period, the Company held various Open-Day activities and
proactively conducted reverse roadshows, inviting investors, fund
managers, analysts and media to visit our headquarters as well as
communities under our management. It is an opportunity to
showcase our various services and operation openly to capital
market, and follow up with management discussion. Given the
increasing demand from investors, throughout 2017, the
Company organized 21 on-site visits in total.

No. of reverse roadshows

3.

REEMBAKRBEED — EHRAE
BRR REARGAFREEERE

HR - RRZRERBAKAES £
FERMEETE  SEREA Ed
MR DATED AR AEE - RA R B R IE
FEREMHAMNER  AABEHHRE
AMBRRAGNZIBER  WHER
[BHEIT M - FEEIRE AT KA -
2017 2% AR —HBEBT2IRERE
gjj o

REREHE

2016 2017
No. of activities FEEE N 4 23
No. of visitors 2N 19 169
Twice a year results announcement and public briefing 4. BFEMXIEERGE
The two results announcements followed by briefing conducted BEMREELNENERNBEMSHE
in the financial year, are great opportunities for the Company to EENRE  BRARAMAKENRENKR
meet with a large number of shareholders and investors, BARE  BEIWEBNERE - A
discussing business and prospects directly. Therefore the NEIEZEBMFMHN BT AT
Company actively engages, with great detail, in presenting our BMEEN UAR=ZHEXEBRNELS
core as well as the three service lines business. The impact is Mo OBBRREE -
noticeable.
Investment report from brokers and investment banks 5. %@ > RITHRERS

The Company is honoured to be recognized by the capital
market. Having listed for more than a year, the Company already
received coverage by 23 brokers. In 2017, they issued 39 reports
on us with 31 of them giving investment rating.

RAVREKRE  BEEATSER £
M —FZEEBEBRFHEE 2017
FRARAHESSHBERNEEIN -
HA 31 R MRS R AT ARAy

No. of issued investment reports

DR ERHEE
2016 2017
No. of total issued report [RELTGIE R 10 39
(of which) No. of Buy (Ed) BAFTH& 5 30
(of which) No. of upgraded () RABZRE - 19
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BERERGE

B-RERHBEARBRREALZRNE
e RANBAZESRA  PlINEE
BMERECEXEERE  BA MR
REEHE - ARA2EREENEIE
EBRERTRABEERMNER  EHREE

6. Improvement of Roadshows Information 6.
Every roadshow represents a valuable opportunity for the
Company to communicate with the investors. Thus, the Company
strives to optimize investors education through various methods
including result presentation and corporate video. The Company
revises the presentation regularly and on-time, with reference to

the feedback from the investors, and the demand of the investors SR o
at different stage.
Brokers el Rating SR
1 CITl TEME%EE Buy A
2 Morgan Stanley JEE AR+ 73 A Buy =N
3 CICC el /NG| Buy A
4 CLSA BRES Buy BA
5 Everbright Securities HRESH Buy BA
6 CITIC FIEES Buy BA
7 China Galaxy International AT B B Buy BEA
8 SWS RELRIR Buy BA
9 CMBI IR IR Buy A
10 Core Pacific — Yamaichi RENL— Buy B A
1 Industrial Securities £ 25 5 Buy BA
12 China Merchants Securities B AR Buy g A
13 Eastmoney Securities HAl=E Buy EA
14 Sealand Securities BpisEce Buy gA
15 First Shanghai Group £F—E8 Buy BEA
16 BAML FRFEM Buy A
17 Southwest Securities fiflEReEs Buy EA
18 BOCI o R B Buy A
19 CCBI FEIRBIRR Neutral ailEd
Not Rated RFEAL
20 ICBC Asia TR M N/A TiE A
21 Essence International TEEER N/A TEA
22 Crosby Securities mHES N/A TiEA
23 Credit Suisse = N/A T EA
No. of media reports
REFERGHE
2016 2017
In the Mainland EA 26 309
Overseas BRI 97 131
Total et 123 440
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Ms. Li Hairong (Z8%8), aged 60, was our sole Director from the date
of our incorporation until 26 November 2015 and was re-designated as
our chairman and executive Director on 27 November 2015. From June
1997 to September 1998, Ms. Li held various positions at Greentown
Property Group Co., Ltd. ((:FEHESE B R A F) (being the wholly-
owned subsidiary of Greentown China Holdings Limited, a company
listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 3900), including being its
vice general manager, executive vice general manager and executive
general manager. She joined our Group in October 1998 and has been
responsible for the development strategy and strategic planning of our
Group as well as for making decisions for material operational matters.
Ms. Li has been the Chairman of Greentown Property Management
from October 1998 to March 2018, and was also its general manager
from October 1998 to February 2011, where she was primarily
responsible for its overall management and daily operation. She also
served as the executive general manager of Greentown Holdings from
January 2006 to October 2015.

In addition, Ms. Li currently holds directorship in various other
subsidiaries of our Company.

Ms. Li currently is a vice president of China Property Management
Association (FBI#) % EE % E) and the Zhejiang Province Real Estate
Industry Association (#/TEE#E) and the head of its Property
Management Special Committee (MEERFEEXLE ). Ms. Li
graduated from the Department of Basic Specialized Training for Party
and Government Officials (EEE IR #HHEMFIER] of Zhejiang Radio
and Television University (#/LEEEIRKE) in Zhejiang Province, the
PRC.

Mr. Yang Zhangfa (% £7%), aged 46, has been our executive Director
and chief executive officer of the Company since 27 November 2015.
He was appointed as the vice Chairman of the Board and ceased to be
the chief executive officer of the Company with effect from 23 March
2018. He is responsible for making decisions for material operational
matters, participating in Board decisions and implementing the
resolutions of the Board. Mr. Yang joined our Group in February 2002
and has served in various positions in Greentown Property
Management, including the assistant to general manager from April
2002 to March 2003, the vice general manager from March 2003 to
February 2008, the executive vice general manager from February 2008
to January 2009, the executive general manager from January 2009 to
February 2011 and the general manager from February 2011 to March
2018. He also is the chairman of Zhejiang Greentown Real Estate
Consulting Co. Ltd (I I&MEHERMABRAF) and is in charge its

development strategy and strategic planning.
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In addition, Mr. Yang currently holds directorship in various subsidiaries
of our Company.

Mr. Yang holds executive vice president and secretary-general in
Hangzhou property management association (fN T HIEEERE).
He graduated from Zhejiang University (47T K2 in Hangzhou, the
PRC and Hunan University (81F8A2) in Changsha, the PRC majoring in
real estate development and management, and business
administration, respectively.

Mr. Wu Zhihua (R& ), aged 39, has been our executive Director and
chief executive officer since 27 November 2015 and 23 March 2018
respectively. He is responsible for the overall business operation and
daily management of our Group, making decisions for material
operational matters, participating in Board decisions and implementing
the resolutions of the Board. Before joining our Group, Mr. Wu worked
in Zhejiang Guesthouse Co., Ltd. (T EEEHR A F) from July 2002 to
June 2003. Mr. Wu joined our Group in June 2003 and was subsequently
promoted as the executive vice general manager and the general
manager of Zhejiang Lvsheng Property Management Company Limited
(L&A MEE R AR AT) from April 2008 to August 2008 and from
August 2008 to December 2008, respectively. He also served as the
assistant to general manager, the vice general manager, the vice
executive general manager and chairman of Greentown Property
Management from January 2009 to February 2011, from February 2011
to November 2014, from December 2014 to March 2018, and from
March 2018 to present, respectively.

In addition, Mr. Wu currently holds directorship in various subsidiaries
of our Company.

Mr. Wu is now the president of the Property Management Association
of Xihu District, Hangzhou (MMM AHREWEEZEHE). Mr. Wu
graduated from Zhejiang University (#1/ L A5 in Hangzhou, the PRC
with a bachelor's degree majoring in tourism management, and
obtained his master’s degree in science in quality management from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University (/& T AZ) in Hong Kong.
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Mr. Chen Hao (BR’%), aged 48, has been our executive Director since
27 November 2015. He joined our Group in May 2015 as a vice general
manager primarily responsible for the management of community
products and services of the Group. He has been a director of
Greentown Property Management since November 2015 and a director
of Twin Cities Network since April 2015. Mr. Chen has served as a
director of Hong Kong Hung Seun International Resources Limited (&
BEERBEBEEIRBRR AR, a company primarily engaged in trade of
copper, market research and fund investment, since October 2009. He
has also been the vice chairman of Daye Youse Greentown Property
Development Co., Ltd. (K/AB 4B EHERIEBR A F]) (being held
as to 30% by Greentown China and the remaining 70% by Independent
Third Parties which engages in the business of property development)
since January 2012. Mr. Chen studied in Jiangsu Xinhai Senior High
School (L& FTE=) (formerly known as Jiangsu Xinhai Secondary
School (T##T/8H £)).

In addition, Mr. Chen currently holds directorship in various subsidiaries
of our Company.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Shou Bainian (BH ), aged 64, has been our non-executive Director
since November 27, 2015, and is responsible for providing guidance
and supervision regarding the business and operation of our Group.
Mr. Shou became an indirect holder of equity interests in Greentown
Property Management in September 2000. Mr. Shou has more than 15
years' experience in the property development industry. He worked as
the executive vice chairman and the general manager of Greentown
Property Group Co., Ltd. (&3 /FEHESBEBR A7) (being the wholly-
owned subsidiary of Greentown China Holdings Limited (a company
listed on the Stock Exchange: 3900)) from April 1998 to March 2015 and
was primarily responsible for its overall business operation and financial
management. He is the director of Greentown Holdings from January
2002 to April 2018 and is primarily responsible for its overall business
operation and financial management. Mr. Shou is qualified as a senior
economist (B ALAZ M) in enterprise operation and management by
Zhejiang Province Human Resources and Social Security Department
(HIE ANBRMEE{REEEE). Mr. Shou graduated from Hangzhou
University (ITJNKE2) in Zhejiang Province, the PRC with a bachelor's
degree majoring in history.
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Ms. Xia Yibo (E—i{), aged 55, has been our non-executive Director
since 27 November 2015, and is responsible for providing guidance
and supervision regarding the business and operation of our Group.
Ms. Xia became an indirect holder of equity interests in Greentown
Property Management in September 2002. Ms. Xia was the chairlady of
Hangzhou Greentown Decorating and Design Co., Ltd. (AR &
HET AR AA]) from September 1996 to August 2002. She has also
been the chairlady of Shanghai Wanley Insurance Broker Co., Ltd. (&
BB FMRBELL AR AT (being held as to 90% by Hangzhou Haotian
Investment Co., Ltd.) since September 2002. Ms. Xia has been serving
as the director of Greentown Holdings since September 2002 and is
now the chairlady of this company. Ms. Xia graduated from the
Department of Chinese of Zhejiang Radio and Television University (4
T LEREER KE) in Zhejiang Province, the PRC.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok (EBEE), aged 56, was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director on 13 June 2016 which has been effective on 12
July 2016. He is responsible for supervising and providing independent
judgement to our board. He holds a master’'s degree in international
accounting, a post-graduate diploma in laws, a bachelor's degree in
laws and a bachelor’s degree in business studies. He has over 25 years
of experience in regulatory affairs, corporate finance, listed companies
governance and management. He is an executive director, vice
president and company secretary of Huabao International Holdings
Limited (Stock code: 336), whose shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange. On 5 January 2018, 15 June 2017 and 29 June 2017, Mr.
Poon was appointed as a non-exective director of Chong Kin Group
Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange, Stock
Code: 1609) and independent non-executive director of Honghua
Group Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code:
196) and Yanzhou Coal Mining Company Limited (a company listed on
the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1171), respectively. He currently
serves as an independent non-executive director of the following
companies listed the main board of the Stock Exchange: AUX
International Holdings Limited (Stock code: 2080), Changan Minsheng
APLL Logistics Co., Ltd. (Stock Code: 1292), Sany Heavy Equipment
International Holdings Company Limited (Stock Code: 631), Sunac
China Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1918), Tonly Electronics Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 1249), TUS International Limited (Stock Code:
872), Yuanda China Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 2789) and Jinchuan
Group International Resources Co. Ltd. (Stock Code: 2362).
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Mr. Poon holds a Bachelor degree of Arts, a Master degree of Arts, a
Bachelor's degree majoring in law and a postgraduate diploma in laws,
respectively. Mr. Poon is a fellow member of The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators. He is a fellow member of The Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and is currently a member of its
Technical Consultation Panel, Mainland China Focus Group, Audit
Committee and Professional Development Committee. In addition, Mr.
Poon is a fellow of Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute and
has been a Fellow of Certified Public Accountant Australia since May
2017.

Mr. Wong Ka Yi (2% H), aged 43, was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director on 13 June 2016 which was effective on 12 July
2016. He is responsible for supervising and providing independent
judgment to our Board. Mr. Wong currently serving as a director and
investment director of HX Innovation Capital Management Co. Limited.
He is a licensed person to conduct type 9 (asset management)
regulated activities under the SFO. He was a director and investment
director of China Metamorphosis Investment Limited from June 2017
to October 2017. He was a managing director of Fundatech Capital
Limited from February 2015 to May 2017, worked as a portfolio
manager in HT Capital Management Limited and Munsun Asset
Management (Asia) Limited. He is a Chartered Financial Analyst by the
CFA Institute. Mr. Wong holds a Bachelor’s degree in Economics from
the University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Li Feng (£R&), aged 59, he has rich experience in property
management industry and he currently is the general manager of
Shanghai Donghu Property Management Co., Ltd. (E/83HYEEE
HPBRAR]). He served as management in Honggiao State Guest Hotel
Shanghai (E/84TB#0E £8), Dongjiao State Guest Hotel (A& #R),
Shanghai Lilac Garden Hotel (18T BHIEEZE£E). Mr. Li is a vice
president of China Property Management Association (1 B2 & 32 1
®) and the president of the Trade Association of Shanghai Property
Management (EETMEEIRITEHE). He is also a member of the
National Technical Committee on Property Service of Standardization

Administration of China (2Bl % RIFIZELFITE E@).
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Mr. Li was awarded as Person of the Year of 2015 in Property
Management Industry (2015¥)% E 21T E AY) in 2015, Shanghai
Brand Strategy Implementation of 20 Years Influential 50 People (/&
FREERE B HE20F A 5 250.A) in 2014, Shanghai World Expo Advanced
Individual (/8B @A) in 2010 and China’s Economy 100
Outstanding Figures (REIAE B A EH AY) in 2003. Mr. Li. was
qualified as a senior economist by Shanghai Accreditation Committee
for the Qualifications of Senior Professional and Technical Positions
Majoring in Commercial and Industrial in the Economic Field (/8T 4¢
BRI IBAKEEESREERMBBERERETEZER). He was
also qualified as a Shanghai government procurement review expert
(E8TBUTIREFE#ERK). He graduated from Shanghai University (_
B KE) in Shanghai, the PRC with a Master degree majoring in
management engineering.

Senior Management
For details of Mr. Wu Zhihua (R&Z), please refer to the sub-section
headed “— Directors — Executive Directors” in this section.

Ms. Jin Keli (&R}E), aged 35, has been our chief operating officer
since 23 March 2018. She is responsible for management work relation
to the overall operation of our Group as well as for management of
administration and human resources. Ms. Jin joined our Group in May
2006, and served as administrative president, executive general
manager of Zhejiang Xinhu Lvcheng Property Service Company Limited
from January 2012 to January 2014, and from January 2014 to July
2017, respectively. She also worked as the assistant to president, vice
president and president of Greentown Property Service Company
Limited from February 2015 to July 2017, from August 2017 to March
2018 and from March 2018 to present, respectively. Ms. Jin graduated
from China University of Political Science and Law (FF BIEUA A E), with
a bachelor’s degree majoring in philosophy.

Mr. Yuan Weidong (JRf3), aged 48, has been our chief technology
officer since 27 November 2015. He is responsible for the coordination
and operation of the “smart community” project of our Group. Prior to
joining our Group in November 2014, Mr. Yuan worked in NEC
Telecommunications Co., Ltd. (HE@BAR A F]) from July 1992 to
May 2002 as the head of the engineering technology department and
the general manager of eastern China region. He also worked as the
executive vice general manager of Zhejiang Ronghui Communications
Equipment Co., Ltd. (AL FEREREFR A7) from May 2002 to
May 2014. Mr. Yuan has been a Senior Engineer in Electronic
Information authorized by Tianjin Municipal Personnel Bureau (K#T
AFE ) since October 2001. He graduated from Jilin University (7K
2) in Changchun, the PRC in July 1992 with a bachelor's degree
majoring in electronics and information systems.
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Mr. Ho, Kenneth Kai Chung (fIB{8), aged 52, has been our chief
financial officer since 4 August 2015 and one of our joint company
secretaries since 27 November 2015. He is responsible for finance and
accounting works as well as company secretarial matters of our Group.
Before joining our Group in August 2015, Mr. Ho had worked in various
financial institutions. He worked as a senior analyst of Credit Lyonnais
Securities (Asia) Limited from September 1996 to February 1999 and
served in various positions including the vice president of the Asia &
Pacific area of JP Morgan Chase & Co. from February 1999 to October
2004. He also served in various positions within the HSBC group from
November 2004 to January 2013, including the head of the China
research department of HSBC Markets (Asia) Limited, the head of the
research department of the Beijing representative office of The
Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited, and the equity
sales director of HSBC Markets (Asia) Limited. From January 2014 to
March 2015, he served as the managing director of Munsun Asset
Management (Asia) Limited and was responsible for overseeing its
asset management business.

In addition, Mr. Ho currently serves as an independent non-executive
director of the following companies listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange: TK Group (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 2283), BBI
Life Science Corporation (stock code: 1035) and Tsaker Chemical
Group Limited (stock code: 1986).

Mr. Ho is a Chartered Financial Analyst authorized by the CFA Institute.
Mr. Ho graduated from University of Sydney in Australia with his
bachelor's degree majoring in economics and from University of New
South Wales in Australia with his Master’s degree of commerce.

Mr. ZHOU Hong (%), aged 54, he is now our Chief Safety Officer,
he joined the Group in October 1988, he is now also vice president of
Greentown Property Service Company Limited. He is now responsible
for the security management operation of the Group. He has also been
the general manager of Greentown Property Service Company Limited
(Shanghai Branch (8% %2 R7#% 85 A7) effective from February
2013.
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Ms. WENG Yafei (FE27K), aged 38, she is now our Chief Quality Officer,
she is now responsible for the management of the service quality and
customer relationship of the Group. Ms. Weng joined the Group since
June 2001, she is now vice president of Greentown Property Service
Company Limited. She has been the general manager of Greentown
Property Service Company Limited (5th branch) since February 2013 and
she was the general manager of Greentown Property Service Company
Limited (Chongging subsidiary) from February 2015 to November 2016.
Ms. Weng graduated from the Program of Management of Xi'an Jiaotong
University (FA% R #X 2) in Shaanxi Province, the PRC.

Ms. XU Yaping (fR323¥), aged 38 , she is now our Chief Marketing
Officer, she is now responsible market development of our Group. Ms.
Xu joined the Group since October 1998, she is now vice president of
Greentown Property Service Company Limited (4t 2 RIS B R A
Al). She has served various position of the Group, including being vice
president of Zhejiang Greentown Real Estate Consulting Company
Limited (#T&kk B HEZ MR B R A E]) (formerly known as Zhejiang
Greentown Property Consulting Company Limited (1T 4k ¥ 35878
BBR7AA]). She has also been the general manager of Zhejiang
Greentown Real Estate Consulting Company Limited with effective
from January 2013. Ms. Xu graduated from the Program of Marketing
of Hangzhou Commercial School (/1 & Ft) in Hangzhou City, the
PRC.
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Report of Directors

EEERE

The Board is pleased to present its report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
for the year ended 31 December 2017.

GLOBAL OFFERING

The Company carried out the global offering on 28 June 2016,
comprising of 777,776,000 Shares at HK$1.99 per Share. For details of
the relevant use of proceeds, please see the section headed “Use of
Net Proceeds from Listing” below.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is principally engaged in the provision of residential
property management services in the PRC, which include three types
of services: property services, consulting services and community living
services. Analysis of the principal activities of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2017 is set out in the note 3 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 142 to 143 of this annual report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.06
per ordinary share of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2017. The final dividend is subject to the approval of shareholders of
the Company (the “Shareholders”) at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to be held on 25 May 2018 (the “AGM") and
will be paid on 21 June 2018 to the Shareholders whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company on 1 June 2018.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year ended 31
December 2017, a description of the principal risks and uncertainties
that the Group may be facing, a discussion on the Group's future
business development and an analysis of the Group’s performance
during the Reporting Period using financial key performance indicators
are contained in the Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 25
to 43 of this Annual Report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group has been working on sustainable development and
environmental protection. We spare no effort in making the most out
of resources in our business. Laws and regulations in terms of
environment and health are strictly complied. Meanwhile, the Group
holds various activities to promote environmental protection in our
business. Our goal is to educate proprietor and all walks of life on
creating a green city for the future.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group clearly understands the importance of regulatory
compliance and the risk of non-compliance. To the best of the Board's
knowledge, during the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
complied in material respects with the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the business and operation of the
Group. During the year ended 31 December 2017, there was no
material breach of or non-compliance with the applicable laws and
regulations by the Group.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group's results, assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years are set out on page 11 to 15 of this annual
report. This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated
financial statements.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM LISTING

The Company was successfully listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on 12 July 2016, issuing 777,776,000 new shares, raising a
total of HK$1.472 billion (equivalent to RMB1.2658 billion) net of
underwriting costs and related expenses.

In order to enhance the efficiency and effectiveness of allocating the
net proceeds from the Global Offering, the Board resolved to make
the following changes to the intended use of proceeds from the Global
Offering (Details please refer to the announcement of the Company
released on 15 September 2017):

1. approximately 49% of the net proceeds or approximately
HK$721.3 million to be used for acquisition of target companies,
without the limitation on the types of company, whether property
management or those that provide value-added services, in
supporting the Company’s business development and expansion
strategy;
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2. approximately 25% of the net proceeds or approximately
HK$368.0 million (i.e. increased by 15 percentage points from
10% as disclosed in the Prospectus) to be used for working
capital and general corporate purpose, and in particular, for the
purpose of repayment of debts for the target companies to be
acquired, the development of such target companies following
the acquisition and the additional costs expected to be incurred
by the Company for the management of such target companies;
and

3. approximately 7% of the net proceeds or approximately
HK$103.0 million (i.e. decreased by 15 percentage points as
compared to the 22% as disclosed in the Prospectus) to be used
to develop and promote our “smart community” project and our
community products and services.

During the Reporting Period, the uses of net proceed were distributed
as following:

1. approximately 49% of the net proceeds to be used for acquisition
of target companies (22% has been used)

2. approximately 25% of the net proceeds to be used for working
capital and general corporate purpose (18% has been used)

3. approximately 7% of the net proceeds to be used to develop and
promote our “smart community” project and our community
products and services (4.5% has been used)

4. approximately 19% were used to repay loan (has been fully used)

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Major Customers

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group’s sales to its five
largest customers accounted for 4.5% (31 December 2016: 6.2%) of the
Group's total revenue and our single largest customer accounted for
3.4% (31 December 2016: 4.7%) of the Group's total revenue.
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Major Suppliers

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group's five largest
suppliers accounted for 15.5% (31 December 2016: 25.2%) of the
Group's total purchases and our single largest supplier accounted for
6.0% (31 December 2016: 12.0%) of the Group's total purchases.

During the Reporting Period, none of the Directors or any of their close
associates or any Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, own more than 5% of the number of issued shares of the
Company) had any direct or indirect interest in the Group's five largest
customers and suppliers. Nonetheless, Mr. Song Weiping, our ultimate
controlling shareholder, was interested in 10.87% equity interest of
Greentown China in aggregate. Greentown China is one of the Group's
five largest customers.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Company and the Group during the year ended 31 December 2017 are
set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the Reporting Period are set out on page 146 in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2017, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, amounted to approximately RMB1,162,505,000 (as at 31
December 2016: RMB1,266,287,000).

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

As at 31 December 2017, the Company and the Group were in a net
cash position, without bank loans.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Reporting Period and up to the date of this
annual report are:

Executive Directors:

Ms. Li Hairong (Chairman)

Mr. Yang Zhangfa (Vice Chairman)
Mr. Wu Zhihua

Mr. Chen Hao

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Shou Bainian
Ms. Xia Yibo

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok

Mr. Wong Ka Yi

Mr. Li Feng (Appointed on 5 December 2017)
Mr. Tian Zaiwei (Resigned on 5 December 2017)

Mr. Tian Zaiwei resigned on 5 December 2017 as an independent non-
executive Director due to his desire to devote more time to his
business and personal affairs. Mr. Tian has confirmed that he has no
disagreement with the Board and nothing relating to his resignation
was needed to be brought to the attention of the Shareholders.

In accordance with Article 83(3) of the Company’s Articles of
Association (the “Articles of Association”), Mr. Li Feng as an
independent non-executive Director appointed on 5 December 2017
to fill the casual vacancy arising from the resignation of Mr. Tian Zaiwei,
shall retire and, being eligible, offer himself for re-election at the AGM.

In accordance with article 84 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Yang
Zhangfa, Ms. Xia Yibo and Mr. Wong Ka Yi shall retire by rotation, and
being eligible, have offered themselves for re-election at the AGM.

Details of the Directors to be re-elected at the AGM are set out in the
circular to the Shareholders dated 24 April 2018.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the
Company are set out on pages 50 to 57 of this annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) from each of the independent
non-executive Directors and the Company considers such Directors to
be independent throughout the year ended 31 December 2017.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT AND LETTERS
OF APPOINTMENT

Each of the executive Directors has signed a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years commencing on the Listing Date,
which may be renewable subject to both parties’ agreement.

Each of the non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors has signed an appointment letter with the Company for a
term of three years commencing from the Listing Date, which may be
renewable subject to both parties’ agreement.

None of the Directors has a service contract which is not determinable
by the Group within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no Director had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or
contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party
during the year ended 31 December 2017 and up to the date of this
annual report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no contract concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Company was entered into or existed during the
Reporting Period.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

A remuneration committee was set up for reviewing the Group's
emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the directors
and senior management of the Group, having regard to the Group's
operating results, individual performance of the directors and senior
management and comparable market practices.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five highest paid
individuals during the Reporting Period are set out in note 7 and 8 to
the consolidated financial statements.

RETIREMENT AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
SCHEME

Details of the retirement and employee benefits scheme of the
Company are set out in note 5(b) to the consolidated financial
statements.

CHANGE OF DIRECTOR’S INFORMATION

On 5 January 2018, 15 June 2017 and 29 June 2017, Mr. Poon Chiu
Kwok was appointed as a non-executive director of Chong Kin Group
Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock
code: 1609), an independent non-executive director of Honghua Group
Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 196) and
Yanzhou Coal Mining Company Limited (a company listed on the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 1171), respectively.

Mr. Wong Ka Yi currently serves as a director and investment director
of Hx Innovation Capital Management Co. Limited. He was director
and investment director of China Metamorphosis Investment Limited
from August 2017 to October 2017 and a managing director of
Fundatech Capital Limited from February 2015 to August 2017
respectively.

Mr. Tian Zaiwei has resigned on 5 December 2017 as an independent
non-executive Director, and a member of each of the audit committee,
remuneration committee and nomination committee of the Company.

Mr. Li Feng has been appointed on 5 December 2017 as an
independent non-executive Director and a member of each of the
audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination committee
of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors confirmed that no information is
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITION IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the "SFO") which have been notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions of the SFO), or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules were as follows:

(i) Interests in Shares of the Company
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Capacity/ Number of the Company position/

Name Nature of Interest Shares (%) Lending pool
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HA 55 EEHtE R BE B (%) FHEHBORE

Mr. Shou Bainian Metes1.3 |nterest of a controlled 1,020,000,000 36.72 Long position

SFLEMmETY corporation S5
HEthEEER

Ms. Xia Yibo Motes 2.3 Interest of a controlled 1,020,000,000 36.72 Long position

Bty corporation A
RESEEE S

Ms. Li Hairong MNetes 4.5 Interest of a controlled 563,334,000 20.28 Long position

e ey corporation e
REthEEES

Interest of spouse 28,000,000 1.01 Long position

BB Sy}

Mr. Yang Zhangfa™ete®  Beneficial interest 60,000,000 2.16 Long position

BERFTE WS BamtEm A

Mr. Wu Zhihua Nete? Beneficial interest 30,000,000 1.08 Long position
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Notes:

m

Mr. Shou Bainian holds all issued shares in Lily International Investment Company
Limited (“Lily International Investment”), which holds 39% of the issued shares in
Orchid Garden Investment Company Limited (“Orchid Garden Investment”).

Ms. Xia Yibo holds all issued shares in Shenalan International Investment Company
Limited (“ShenaLan International Investment”), which holds 21% of the issued
shares in Orchid Garden Investment. Ms. Xia Yibo is the spouse of Mr. Song
Weiping.

Given Osmanthus Garden Investment Company Limited ("Osmanthus Garden
Investment”), Lily International Investment and Shenalan International Investment
are indirectly interested in the Shares through Orchid Garden Investment,
Osmanthus Garden Investment, Lily International Investment and Shenalan
International Investment are deemed to be parties acting in concert.

As such, Mr. Song Weiping, Mr. Shou Bainian and Ms. Xia Yibo, together with their
respective holding companies (being Osmanthus Garden Investment, Lily
International Investment and Shenalan International Investment), are all deemed to
be interested in the total Shares directly held by Orchid Garden Investment (being
1,020,000,000 Shares in total).

Ms. Li Hairong holds all issued shares in Lilac International Investment Company
Limited (“Lilac International Investment”). Accordingly, Ms. Li Hairong is deemed
to be interested in the total Shares directly held by Lilac International Investment
(being 563,334,000 Shares in total).

Mr. Ju Jianhua is the spouse of Ms. Li Hairong. Therefore, Ms. Li Hairong is deemed
to be interested in the Shares which Mr. Ju Jianhua is interested in. Mr. Ju Jianhua is
one of the grantees under the Pre-IPO Share Award Scheme.

Mr. Yang Zhangfa is a beneficial owner of the Shares.

Mr. Wu Zhihua is a beneficial owner of the Shares.
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(i) REEEEERS

(i) Interests in associated corporations

Number of  Approximate

Nature of Name of associated issued share percentage of
Name interest corporation capital interest  shareholding
BT BARR
HE EmtE HECEEAE RAEZHE Bok
(%)
Mr. Yang Zhangfa Beneficial interest Shenyang Greentown N/A 20.00
Property Services
Company Limited
HBERSLE BaEn RSB ERE AR AR NaEm 20.00

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of the
Directors or the chief executive of the Company had or was deemed to
have any interest or short position in the Shares, underlying Shares or
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) that was required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions of the SFO), or
required to be recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as otherwise disclosed in this annual report, at no time during the
Reporting Period was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement that would enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate, and none of the Directors or any of their
spouses or children under the age of 18 were granted any right to
subscribe for the equity or debt securities of the Company or any other
body corporate or had exercised any such right.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2017, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the
following persons (not being a Director or chief executive of the
Company) had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
Shares which fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the
SFO:

ITERRRRORBBRM T E
BmRAR

201712318 MESRMA - THAL
(AFEEHARRARZRHTRABR)RAREK
0 BRI A h A AR IBCRE 5 R B IR H)F
XVEFE 2R3N BAAARARFELCELR
AR ARAECRE 75 R B 5R 51D 336 (R B T
Bz SRR -

Approximate
Percentage of

Shareholding in Long/short

Capacity/Nature Number of  the Company position/

Name of Interest Shares (%) Lending pool

RARQRH

BOER  FR %ES

i 54 EEtE RHBE B (%) AHERNRG

Orchid Garden Investment (et N#ED Beneficial interest 1,020,000,000 36.72  Long position

a3 R

Osmanthus Garden Interest of a controlled 1,020,000,000 36.72 Long position

Investment (Notes 1. 2T - 2) corporation e
Rt EE R

Mr. Song Weiping MNotes 1.2 Interest of a controlled 1,020,000,000 36.72 Long position

REF L AE M2 corporation e
Xt EE R

Lily International Interest of a controlled 1,020,000,000 36.72 Long position

Investment (Netes 1, 3T+ 3) corporation He
XEHEEER

Ms. Yao Huanjing Mot 4 Interest of spouse 1,020,000,000 36.72 Long position

PhmE L M= FoiBfEs LSy=y

Shenalan International Interest of a controlled 1,020,000,000 36.72 Long position

Investment (Notes 1.9t 1 - 5) corporation wE
X EEER

Lilac International Investment Nee@i=6) Beneficial interest 563,334,000 20.28 Long position

ka3 R

Mr. Ju Jianhua Nete?) Interest of spouse 563,334,000 20.28 Long position

BEEf Ly FofdiEss R

Beneficial interest 28,000,000 1.07 Long position

oy 3 R
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Approximate
Percentage of
Shareholding in Long/short
Capacity/Nature Number of  the Company position/
Name of Interest Shares (%) Lending pool
RADEH
BORR  #A %R
] 5t/ EmtE R E B (%) AHREHNRG
Mr. Jiang Jinzhi Nete8) Interest of a controlled 148,020,000 532 Long position
corporation e
G R ST A e SEGEE R
Unique Element Corp. (Note8(Hii8) Interest of a controlled 148,020,000 532 Long position
corporation e
TS EE S
Greenwoods Assets Management Interest of a controlled 148,020,000 532 Long position
Holdings Limited Nete 8118) corporation R
EEGEEER
Greenwoods Assets Management Investment Manager 148,020,000 532 Long position
Limited Note 8)(fizt8) B 4 18 e
Notes: BT

m

Orchid Garden Investment is owned as to 40.0%, 39.0% and 21.0% by Osmanthus
Garden Investment, Lily International Investment and Shenalan International
Investment, respectively.

Given Osmanthus Garden Investment, Lily International Investment and Shenalan
International Investment are indirectly interested in the Shares through Orchid
Garden Investment, Osmanthus Garden Investment, Lily International Investment
and Shenalan International Investment are deemed to be parties acting in concert.

As such, Mr. Song Weiping, Mr. Shou Bainian and Ms. Xia Yibo, together with their
respective holding companies (being Osmanthus Garden Investment, Lily
International Investment and Shenalan International Investment), are all deemed to
be interested in the total Shares directly held by Orchid Garden Investment (being
1,020,000,000 Shares in total).

Osmanthus Garden Investment is wholly-owned by Mr. Song Weiping. Mr. Song
Weiping is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Osmanthus Garden
Investment for the purpose of Part XV of the SFO. Mr. Song Weiping is the spouse
of Ms. Xia Yibo.

Lily International Investment is wholly-owned by Mr. Shou Bainian. Mr. Shou Bainian
is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Lily International Investment for
the purpose of Part XV of the SFO.
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4 Ms. Yao Huanjing is the spouse of Mr. Shou Bainian. Therefore, Ms. Yao Huanjing is
deemed to be interested in the Shares which Mr. Shou Bainian is interested in.

(5) Shenalan International Investment is wholly-owned by Ms. Xia Yibo. Ms. Xia Yibo is
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Shenalan International Investment.
Ms. Xia Yibo is the spouse of Mr. Song Weiping.

6) Lilac International Investment is wholly-owned by Ms. Li Hairong. Ms. Li Hairong is
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Lilac International Investment for the
purpose of Part XV of the SFO.

(7) Mr. Ju Jianhua is the spouse of Ms. Li Hairong. Therefore, Mr. Ju Jianhua is deemed
to be interested in the Shares which Ms. Li Hairong is interested in. Mr. Ju Jianhua is
one of the grantees under the Pre-IPO Share Award Scheme.

(8) The Shares are held by Greenwoods Asset Management Limited (“Greenwoods
Asset Management”) in its capacity as the investment manager of two funds.
Greenwoods Asset Management is wholly-owned by Greenwoods Asset
Management Holdings Limited (“Greenwood Asset Management Holdings”),
which is in turn owned as to 81% by Unique Element Corp. ("Unique Element”),
which is in turn wholly-owned by Mr. Jiang Jinzhi. Thus, Mr. Jiang Jinzhi, Unique
Element and Greenwoods Asset Management Holdings are deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by Greenwoods Asset Management for the purpose of
Part XV of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, the Directors were
not aware of any persons (who were not Directors or chief executive of
the Company) who had an interest or short position in the Shares or
underlying Shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed
under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which would be
required, pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS
Save as the Pre-IPO Share Award Scheme, the Company has no equity-

linked agreements that were entered into or subsisted during the year
of 2017.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the Reporting Period, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities.

@ RELLTBMERENES - Fit s
ITREREFABRFLEEARENRONES

(5) Shenalan International Investment 1 & — K &+ %
EH B E— KX LT WA B % B Shenalan
International Investment FT#% B K IR (5 145 - B — K
ZTRREF e -

() Lilac International Investment A 2= /8 £ 2 + 2 &
o MBAEMMEENEXVEME @ B8R
18 A ¥ A Lilac International Investment BT A &) J%
iz °

7) BEELEDTBRLLTOEMS - Bt - BEEL
HWRAEERT R LT HEBEENRM R -

BEELEAEXARABEERMG REFENESP
—HERA o

(8) A B B 19 H Greenwoods Asset Management
Limited ([ Greenwoods Asset Management |) A/
EESHNRELENFHIFE ° Greenwoods Asset
Management B Greenwoods Asset Management
Holdings Limited ([ Greenwood Asset
Management Holdings]) 2 & # & - Greenwood
Asset Management Holdings Bl i Unique Element
Corp. ([Unique Element)) # G81%/M& # = M
Unique Element BB IR ELE2EHA - Bt - &
EHRBEGRPIEXVEME @ BIRELLE - Unique
Element &2 Greenwoods Asset Management
Holdings# 4% /& # % Greenwoods Asset
Management FT #5574 BB (D 1 25

B EXFTiEEES - R2017F 128318 » 5t
EEHA BEAEHEMAT(BIFEEEREAR
RNEEEITERAE) RARBRD AR HD
FHEARB(ESRAEGODEXVEE 2R3
DEBETHEE - BB RNGES RBAEIEG)
B33 IEFTHL M E R 2 S SA R -

R 1
BRERAFEERNRN EEE S - ARER
2017 FEWEET L AT B AR R 0 5% -
BE - HERED TR

RBEHRA - ANDQ B S EALI B R 5 R
B HEXBELEEMARR LEHES -
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands that would oblige the
Company to offer new Shares on a pro rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

POTENTIAL COMPETING BUSINESSES

Zhejiang Greentown Century Plaza

As at 31 December 2017, Zhejiang Greentown Century Plaza Property
Management Company Limited (“Zhejiang Greentown Century
Plaza”) is indirectly owned by Greentown Holdings Group Co., Ltd.
("Greentown Holdings”) (which is indirectly owned by Mr. Song
Weiping, Mr. Shou Bainian and Ms. Xia Yibo as to 40%, 39% and 21%,
respectively) as to 98.75%. Zhejiang Greentown Century Plaza is
engaged in the business of property management, housing and
building facilities maintenance and repair, the provision of gardening
services, cleaning services, home services, renovation services and
parking services. The business operated by Zhejiang Greentown
Century Plaza is subject to a non-competition undertaking executed by
Zhejiang Greentown Century Plaza in favour of our Company on 13
January 2016 (as supplemented by a confirmation letter dated 7 March
2016) (the “"Century Plaza Non-Competition Undertaking”).

For further details of Zhejiang Greentown Century Plaza and the
Century Plaza Non-Competition Undertaking, please refer to the
Prospectus.

Excluded Group
The below entities (together, the "Excluded Group”) have limited
competition with the Group, details of which are set out as follows:

(i)  Hangzhou Greentown Air-conditioning Equipment

Maintenance Services Company Limited (“Hangzhou
Greentown Air-conditioning Equipment Maintenance”)
As at 31 December 2017, Hangzhou Dangui Investment Company
Limited (the “"Hangzhou Dangui Investment”), a company that
51% of shares is held by Greentown Holdings and 49% of shares
is held by a company owned by Ms. Li Hairong and her family,
holds 80% of the shares of Hangzhou Greentown Air-conditioning
Equipment Maintenance and remaining 20% of the shares is held
by the independent third parties. Hangzhou Greentown Air-
conditioning Equipment Maintenance provides repairing service
and regular maintenance service for air-conditioning system and
equipment.

GREENTOWN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2017

BERBEE
B ETRMR RS RS A RE T LA
B MEARRARLPIZREARER
REEHRS -

BEBRFER

WL Rt 42 R 45

R2017F12A31 B - LRIt LRI E
EEARAR ([ IREHTLES]) R
EREEGRAE ([EEER]) (ERREF
LA BHFEERE—BLZLIHRIBEES
40% ~ 39% F 21%) fEl # ¥ 75 98.75% © M) 4%
BELESREMESERE AEREFH
MIRE RS - BERS - RERS - RER
% HERISARIFERS - LN L E
BT S S TR AR BT TRt 42
BEAARNT AZEAEHAEA2016F 1A
138 (R B HIA2016F3 A7 AR K@)
N RmFEG ((HLEESTHRBAE])

TS AT SR B T8
FAEMOEE  BLRBRE -

BRIMNEE
TOIERE (A [BRIMEE ) BN & E 53
FER - FAEEMINMT

i) MNBEZARBEERBERLQF
(MM H = BREEE )

HZE2017F 128318 - M 485 2= 3
R ERNN S EREER AR ([H
MAERE ) (REIEIRES 51% & H
TERZELRREREMEBENARES
49%) ¥ B 80% * B FE = 1B 20% °
MM = AR B EN B RETHAR
FREBENEERY  ARTEHARFER
BTG ERGSRETR -



Report of Directors

EEERE

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Shenyang Yinji Greenery Engineering Company Limited
("Shenyang Yinji Greenery Engineering”)

As at 31 December 2017, Shenyang Yinji Greenery Engineering is
wholly-owned by Hangzhou Dangui Investment. Shenyang Yinji
Greenery Engineering is engaged in the business of the provision
of greening services including the provision of landscape
planning services, as well as carrying out relevant landscaping
construction works.

Zhejiang Gelingtong Elevator Engineering Company Limited
("Zhejiang Gelingtong Elevator Engineering”)

As at 31 December 2017, Zhejiang Gelingtong Elevator
Engineering is a company established under the laws of the PRC
in September 2005 and owned as to 50% by Hangzhou Dangui
Investment and 50% by Hangzhou Guangri Elevator Engineering
Co., Ltd., an independent third party. Zhejiang Gelingtong
Elevator Engineering is engaged in the business of elevator
repair and maintenance services as well as carrying out actual
repair work. Our Group's property management services relating
to elevators are limited to regular inspection of the normal
operation of elevators and supervision of maintenance and repair
work relating to elevators.

Hangzhou Lvzhen Architectural Decoration Design and
Engineering Company Limited (“Hangzhou Lvzhen
Architectural”)

As at 31 December 2017, Hangzhou Lvzhen Architectural is
wholly-owned by Hangzhou Dangui Investment. Hangzhou
Lvzhen Architectural is engaged in the business of the provision
of all-inclusive and customized renovation services, including
design and renovation work, and architectural design services.

On 1 April 2016, each of the members of the Excluded Group has
executed a non-competition undertaking in favor of our Company
(as subsequently amended on 30 April 2016).

For further details of the Excluded Group, please refer to the
Prospectus.

Save as disclosed, none of the Directors was engaged or had
interest in any business, apart from the business of our Group,
which competes or is likely to compete, directly or indirectly, with
our business, which would require disclosure under Rule 8.10 of
the Listing Rules.

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

EEREEMIRERAT(EREER
BEMIR]
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

Pursuant to the deed of non-competition undertakings entered into
amongst Mr. Song Weiping, Mr. Shou Bainian, Ms. Xia Yibo,
Osmanthus Garden Investment, Lily International Investment, Shenalan
International Investment and Orchid Garden Investment (the
“"Covenantors”) on 13 June 2016 (the “Deed of Non-competition”),
each of the Covenantors has irrevocably and unconditionally
undertaken, jointly and severally, with the Company that he/she/it shall
not, and shall procure that its/his/her associates (other than members
of the Group) shall not directly carry on, engage in, invest in,
participate in, attempt to participate in, render any services to, provide
any financial support to or otherwise be involved in or interested in,
whether alone or jointly with another person and whether directly or
indirectly or on behalf of or to assist or act in concert with any other
person, any business or investment activities in the PRC and Hong
Kong which is the same as, similar to or in competition or likely to be in
competition with the business carried on or contemplated to be carried
on by any member of the Group from time to time.

For details of the Non-competition Undertaking, please refer to the
Prospectus.

The Company has received confirmations from the controlling
Shareholders confirming their compliance with the Non-Competition
Undertaking during the Reporting Period for disclosure in this annual
report.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
compliance with the Non-competition Undertaking during the
Reporting Period based on the information and confirmation provided
by or obtained from the controlling Shareholders, and were satisfied
that the controlling Shareholders have duly complied with the Non-
competition Undertaking.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS
Save as disclosed in this annual report, as at 31 December 2017, none
of the Directors or their respective associates had engaged in or had
any interest in any business which competes or is likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group.
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CONTINUING DISCLOSURE OBLIGATIONS
UNDER THE LISTING RULES

Advance to an entity under Rule 13.13 of the Listing Rules
and financial assistance and guarantees to affiliated
companies under Rule 13.16 of the Listing Rules

On 27 October 2017, the Company and China CVS entered into a
convertible note purchase agreement (the “Convertible Note
Purchase Agreement”) and a convertible promissory note (the
“Convertible Note"), pursuant to which, the Company has agreed to
purchase the Convertible Note in the principal amount of
US$54,000,000 against payment by the Company to China CVS of such
amount. The Convertible Note bears an interest at 6% per annum and
has a two-year conversion period (the “Conversion Period”). Subject
to the terms and conditions set out in the Convertible Promissory
Note, the Company may, at any time during the Conversion Period,
convert all the Convertible Note into ordinary shares of China CVS at a
conversion price determined in accordance with the terms of the
Convertible Note Purchase Agreement and the Convertible Note.
Please refer to the announcement dated 29 October 2017 for further
details.

The maturity date of the Convertible Note is 27 October 2020, subject
to an automatic extension of an additional one year immediately
thereafter unless the Convertible Note has been converted into
ordinary shares of China CVS during the Conversion Period or unless
the maturity of the Convertible Note is accelerated upon the
occurrence of any Event of Default (as defined in the Convertible
Note).

The proceeds from the issuance of the Convertible Note by China CVS
were for the purpose of payment of the purchase price for the
acquisition by China CVS of the entire equity interest in Idea Thrive
Limited.

As at 31 December 2017, the loan in the amount of US$54,000,000
provided by the Company to China CVS, an affiliated company of the
Company (as defined under Rule 13.11(2) of the Listing Rules), pursuant
to the Convertible Note Purchase Agreement and the Convertible
Note exceeds 8% of the assets ratio of the Company as defined under
Rule 14.07(1) of the Listing Rules.

EHRAETWEFERKESE

FTRAFEIBIBFETNERBRR L
mBRAEI1316RETHRBEBS A RER
H B 7 E B R IR
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The following parties are our connected persons.

REBRERS
ToIEH ARMOBEAL -

76

1. Shenyang Yinji Greenery Engineering Company Limited EEEEERMIEARAE
Shenyang Yinji Greenery Engineering, a company established in ESREEMIREARPBRIKIHER
the PRC with limited liability, is principally engaged in the NAE TEBERAEPRIRHIRESE
provision of environmental maintenance, gardening services in & BERK - BEREEERMIIESAM
the PRC. Shenyang Yinji Greenery Engineering is wholly-owned MHERE2EERS BERPREK
by Hangzhou Dangui Investment, a company established in the 3o HS1% R A S RARIER R
PRC with 51% of its equity interest being held by Greentown HERAO% I AEFRENEEREASE
Holdings, and the remaining 49% equity interest being held by rE(ERER)FE  Z¥HaBEL
Ningbo Ronghua Investment LLP (B 8RB G R E(BR T REFB/Z LD HFE 0% K%20%
& %)), which is in turn held as to 80% and 20% by Ms. Ju Yao (¥8 MAHRETBERZLTHREKE © #UF
#) and Ms. Li Haizhi (£ /& 2) (both family members of Ms. Li GIREBRMNIREARFELEERTGE
Hairong). Therefore, Shenyang Yinji Greenery Engineering is an REZHBEA - THRNEAERRAR @&
associate of Mr. Song Weiping and Ms. Li Hairong and hence a AT e
connected person of our Company.

2. Zhejiang Gelingtong Elevator Engineering Company IR EBEEERIREARLATE
Limited
Zhejiang Gelingtong Elevator Engineering, a company IR BEBRER IREARNTBEKNINE
established in the PRC with limited liability, is principally engaged RAR TEXBRETBEREESE
in the provision of elevator maintenance services in the PRC EIRTS - H50% M EEAMMNAERE
which is held as to 50% by Hangzhou Dangui Investment, BE WMARGELERTEBELLZ
therefore, it is an associate of Mr. Song Weiping and Ms. Li B A - MELARARZBEAL -
Hairong and hence a connected person of our Company.

3. Hangzhou Greentown Air-conditioning Equipment MMNEREAREEERBTER2
Maintenance Services Company Limited =l
Hangzhou Greentown Air-conditioning Equipment Maintenance, MUIN &R = AR E AR B LB
a company established in the PRC with limited liability, is BRAG EEXEBKAEFBIRHEFS
principally engaged in the provision of air-conditioning RIGHERT - HBAMMNAERERE
equipment maintenance services in the PRC, which is held as to 80% s MARBFEERFTHRL
80% by Hangzhou Dangui Investment, therefore, it is an associate THBA - MELARAG ZBEEA
of Mr. Song Weiping and Ms. Li Hairong and hence a connected +o
person of our Company.

4. Zhejiang Greentown Housing Services System Company I ERRERZGERD T

Limited

Zhejiang Greentown Housing Services System, a company
established in the PRC with limited liability, is principally engaged
in the provision of renovation, interior design, home repair and
maintenance and related services in the PRC, which is held as to
80% by Hangzhou Dangui Investment prior to 19 December 2017
and 100% by independent third parties after 19 December 2017,
therefore, it is an associate of Mr. Song Weiping and Ms. Li
Hairong and hence a connected person of our Company.
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Lansong Supply Chain

Before the acquisition of 27% of the equity interest in Lansong
Supply Chain by Zhejiang Greentown Property Community
Service Company Limited (a subsidiary of the Company) from
Bluetown Agricultural Technology Co. Ltd., on 5 June 2017 (the
“Acquisition”), Lansong Supply Chain was held as to 76% by
Bluetown Agricultural Technology Co. Ltd.. Bluetown Agricultural
Technology Co. Ltd. is wholly-owned by Bluetown China
Holdings Limited, which is in turn wholly-owned by Delta House
Limited, whereas Delta House Limited is wholly-owned by Mr.
Song Weiping. Mr. Song Weiping, through his wholly-owned
company Osmanthus Garden Investment Company Limited, is
indirectly interested in 40% of Orchid Garden Investment
Company Limited, a controlling Shareholder which holds
approximately 36.72% of the total issued share capital of the
Company. Mr. Song Weiping is also the spouse of Ms. Xia Yibo, a
non-executive Director. Lansong Supply Chain was therefore an
associate of Mr. Song Weiping and hence was a connected
person (as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules) of the
Company before the Acquisition. For details of the Acquisition,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 5 June
2017.

Hangzhou Greentown Football Club

Hangzhou Greentown Football Club is 90%-owned by Greentown
Holdings, it is therefore an associate of Mr. Song Weiping, Mr.
Shou Bainian and Ms. Xia Yibo and hence a connected person of
the Company.

Bluetown Agriculture Technology

Bluetown Agricultural Technology is wholly-owned by Bluetown
China Holdings Limited, which is in turn wholly-owned by Delta
House Limited, whereas Delta House Limited is wholly-owned by
Mr. Song Weiping. Mr. Song Weiping, through his wholly-owned
company Osmanthus Garden Investment Company Limited, is
indirectly interested in 40% of Orchid Garden Investment
Company limited, a controlling Shareholder which holds
approximately 36.72% of the total issued share capital of the
Company. Mr. Song Weiping is also the spouse of Ms. Xia Yibo, a
non-executive Director. Bluetown Agriculture Technology is
therefore an associate of Mr. Song Weiping and hence a
connected person of the Company.
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The Group has entered into a number of continuing connected
transactions with its connected persons in the ordinary and usual
course of business, which are subject to the reporting, annual review

and announcement requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing

Rules:

1. Provision of Ancillary Services to the Group
The Group engages ancillary property management services
from certain connected persons in the ordinary course of

business.

(a)

Provision of Elevator Maintenance Services by Zhejiang
Gelingtong Elevator Engineering to our Group

We engage the elevator maintenance services of Zhejiang
Gelingtong Elevator Engineering in the ordinary course of
our business.

Description of the Transaction

On 10 June 2016, Zhejiang Gelingtong Elevator
Engineering entered into an elevator maintenance services
framework agreement (the "Elevator Maintenance
Services Framework Agreement”) with our Company,
pursuant to which Zhejiang Gelingtong Elevator
Engineering agreed to provide elevator maintenance
services, including but not limited to conducting annual
inspections, safety maintenance, and providing repair
services to our Group for the properties projects managed
by our Group ("Elevator Maintenance Services”), for a
term commencing from the Listing Date until 31 December
2018.
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Consideration

The fees charged for the Elevator Maintenance Services
provided by Zhejiang Gelingtong Elevator Engineering to
our Group was determined based on (i) cost of raw
materials and wages needed for carrying out the Elevator
Maintenance Services; and (ii) the comparison of the fee
quote provided by Zhejiang Gelingtong Elevator
Engineering to our Group with the fee quotes provided by
other independent third party elevator maintenance
companies engaged by our Group for its other property
management projects. When comparing the fee quotes,
our Group considered factors including the price, scope of
services and the efficiency and ability of the service provider
to perform such services in a timely manner. The Elevator
Maintenance Services Framework Agreement was entered
into on normal commercial terms.

Annual Caps

Our Directors estimate that the maximum annual fee
payable by our Group in relation to the Elevator
Maintenance Services to be provided by Zhejiang
Gelingtong Elevator Engineering under the Elevator
Maintenance Services Framework Agreement for each of
the three years ending 31 December 2018 will not exceed
RMB12,600,000, RMB 18,086,000 and RMB21,727,000,
respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the fee paid by the
Group for the elevator maintenance services provided by
Zhejiang Gelingtong Elevator Engineering amounted to
RMB15,142,960 and the annual cap for the same period last
year was RMB18,086,000.
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(b)

Provision of Gardening Services by Shenyang Yiniji
Greenery Engineering to our Group

We engage the gardening services of Shenyang Yinji
Greenery Engineering in the ordinary course of business.

Description of the Transaction

On 10 June 2016, Shenyang Yinji Greenery Engineering
entered into a gardening services framework agreement
(the "Gardening Services Framework Agreement”) with
our Company, pursuant to which Shenyang Yinji Greenery
Engineering agreed to provide to our Group gardening
services, including but not limited to turfing, watering and
trimming lawns, fertilization and pest removal for property
projects managed by our Group (the “Gardening
Services”), for a term commencing from the Listing Date
until 31 December 2018.

Consideration

The fees charged for the Gardening Services provided by
Shenyang Yinji Greenery Engineering to our Group were
determined based on (i) the total area covered by the
Gardening Services; and (ii) the comparison of the fee
quotes provided by Shenyang Yinji Greenery Engineering
to our Group with the fee quotes provided by other
independent third party contractors providing similar
services engaged by our Group for its other gardening
projects. When comparing the fee quotes, our Group
considered factors including the price, scope of services
and the efficiency and ability of the service provider to
perform such services in a timely manner. The Gardening
Services Framework Agreement was entered into on normal
commercial terms.
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(c)

Annual Caps

Our Directors estimate that the maximum annual fee
payable by our Group in relation to the Gardening Services
to be provided by Shenyang Yinji Greenery Engineering
under the Gardening Services Framework Agreement for
each of the three years ending 31 December 2018 will not
exceed RMB3,295,000, RMB4,563,000 and RMB4,741,000,
respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the fee paid by the
Group for the gardening services provided by Shenyang
Yinji Greenery Engineering amounted to RMB77,751 and
the annual cap for the same period last year was
RMB4,563,000.

Provision of Home Decoration Services by Zhejiang
Greentown Housing Services System to our Group

We engage the renovation, home repair and decoration
services of Zhejiang Greentown Housing Service Systems in
the ordinary course of business.

Description of the Transaction

On 10 June 2016, Zhejiang Greentown Housing Services
System entered into a home decoration services framework
agreement (the "Home Decoration Services Framework
Agreement”) with our Company, pursuant to which
Zhejiang Greentown Housing Services System agreed to
provide renovation, home repair and decoration services,
including but not limited to revamp of suspended ceilings,
floor laying and wall coating works for the property projects
managed by our Group (“"Home Decoration Services”), for
a term commencing on the Listing Date until 31 December
2018.
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Consideration

The fees charged for the Home Decoration Services
provided by Zhejiang Greentown Housing Services System
to our Group were determined based on (i) the nature and
scope of Home Decoration Services needed; and (ii) the
comparison of fee quotes given by other Independent
Third Party service providers through conducting online
searches. Such online searches usually cover three or more
Independent Third Party service providers for price
comparisons. When comparing the fee quotes, our Group
considered factors including the price, scope of services
and the efficiency and ability of the service provider to
perform such services in a timely manner. The Home
Decoration Services Framework Agreement was entered
into on normal commercial terms.

Annual Caps

Our Directors estimate that the maximum annual fee
payable by our Group in relation to the Home Decoration
Services to be provided by Zhejiang Greentown Housing
Services System to our Group under the Home Decoration
Services Framework Agreement for each of the three years
ending 31 December 2018 will not exceed RMB2,583,000,
RMB3,412,000 and RMB3,182,000, respectively. Such fees
mainly comprise (i) renovation fees of newly completed
property projects; and (ii) inspection fees of property
projects.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the fee paid by the
Group for the home decoration services provided by
Zhejiang Greentown Housing Services System amounted to
RMB2,146,192 and the annual cap for the same period last
year was RMB3,412,000.
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(d)

Provision of Air-conditioning Equipment Maintenance
Services by Hangzhou Greentown Air-conditioning
Equipment Maintenance to our Group

We engage the air-conditioning equipment maintenance
services of Hangzhou Greentown Air-conditioning
Equipment Maintenance in the ordinary course of business.

Transaction Detail

On 10 June 2016, Hangzhou Greentown Air-conditioning
Equipment Maintenance entered into an air-conditioning
equipment maintenance services framework agreement (the
“Air-conditioning Equipment Maintenance Services
Framework Agreement”) with our Company, pursuant to
which Hangzhou Greentown Air-conditioning Equipment
Maintenance agreed to provide air-conditioning equipment
maintenance services and the procurement of air-
conditioners units and other parts of air-conditioners,
including but not limited to conducting regular inspections,
providing cleaning, repair and maintenance services for the
property projects managed by our Group ("Air-
conditioning Equipment Maintenance Services”), for a
term commencing from the Listing Date until 31 December
2018.

Consideration

The fees charged for the Air-conditioning Equipment
Maintenance Services provided by Hangzhou Greentown
Air-conditioning Equipment Maintenance to our Group
were determined based on (i) the quantity and type of air-
conditioning equipment covered; and (ii) the comparison of
the fee quote provided by Hangzhou Greentown Air-
conditioning Equipment Maintenance to our Group with
the fee quotes provided by Hangzhou Greentown Air-
conditioning Equipment Maintenance to other independent
third party customers for the provision of similar services
and also the fee quotes obtained from other third party
suppliers of our Group which provide similar services. For
the purpose of such fee quote comparison, apart from
comparing the price quoted, our Group also considers
other factors, including the supplier's efficiency and ability
to provide such services in a timely manner. The Air-
conditioning Equipment Maintenance Services Framework
Agreement was entered into on normal commercial terms.
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Annual Caps

Our Directors estimate that the maximum annual fee
payable by our Group in relation to the Air-conditioning
Equipment Maintenance Services to be provided by
Hangzhou Greentown Air-conditioning Equipment
Maintenance to our Group under the Air-conditioning
Equipment Maintenance Services Framework Agreement
for each of the three years ending 31 December 2018 will
not exceed RMB1,173,000, RMB8,048,000 and
RMB9,193,000, respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the fee paid by the
Group for the air-conditioning equipment maintenance
services provided by Hangzhou Greentown Air-conditioning
Equipment Maintenance amounted to RMB5,520,196 and
the annual cap for the same period last year was
RMB8,048,000.

Listing Rules Implications

Since (i) Zhejiang Gelingtong Elevator Engineering; (ii)
Shenyang Yinji Greenery Engineering; (iii) Zhejiang
Greentown Housing Service Systems; and (iv) Hangzhou
Greentown Air-conditioning Equipment Maintenance are
all associates of Ms. Li Hairong and are connected persons,
and the Elevator Maintenance Services, the Gardening
Services, the Home Decoration Services and the Air-
conditioning Equipment Maintenance Services (collectively,
the “Ancillary Services to our Group”) are all ancillary
property management services provided to the Group, the
continuing connected transactions under the Elevator
Maintenance Services Framework Agreement, the
Gardening Services Framework Agreement, the Home
Decoration Services Framework Agreement and the Air-
conditioning Equipment Maintenance Services Framework
Agreement have been aggregated pursuant to Rules
14A.81 and 14A.82 of the Listing Rules for the purpose of
determining our Group's compliance obligations under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The aggregated annual
caps in relation to the Ancillary Services to our Group for
each of the three years ending 31 December 2018 are
RMB19,649,000, RMB34,109,000 and RMB38,843,000,
respectively.
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Since at least one of the applicable percentage ratios (other
than the profits ratio) under the Listing Rules in respect of
the annual caps in relation to the Ancillary Services to the
Group, as aggregated, is expected to be more than 0.1%
but less than 5%, the transactions under each of the
Elevator Maintenance Services Framework Agreement, the
Gardening Services Framework Agreement, the Home
Decoration Services Framework Agreement and the Air-
conditioning Equipment Maintenance Services Framework
Agreement will be subject to the reporting, annual review,
and announcement requirements, but will be exempt from
the circular and independent Shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Services provided by Hangzhou Greentown Football
Club to the Group

We provide certain specified areas to Zhejiang Dual-City Culture
for advertising the information of products or services of third
parties for promotion purposes.

Details of the transaction

On 6 November 2017, Zhejiang Dual-City Culture, a subsidiary of
the Group, entered into the framework agreement with
Hangzhou Greentown Football Club. Pursuant to which, Zhejiang
Dual-City Culture would be entitled to advertise in certain areas
specified by Hangzhou Greentown Football Club and Zhejiang
Dual-City Culture would procure independent sponsors to
advertise their services and/or products in such areas. The term
of the agreement commenced from the date of signing the
agreement and ending on 31 December 2018.

Consideration

The fees charged to the Group by Hangzhou Greentown Football
Club for the provision of the advertising service was determined
with reference to (i) the advertising fees charged by Zhejiang
Dual-City Culture from the independent sponsors which would
advertise their services and/or products in the areas specified by
Hangzhou Greentown Football Club; (i) the total cost incurred by
Zhejiang Dual-City Culture with respect to procuring such
independent sponsors; and (iii) a margin to be deducted
therefrom, which is not less favorable than the margin applied to
other independent third party advertising space suppliers of
Zhejiang Dual-City Culture.
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Annual caps

The Directors estimated that the maximum annual amount
payable by the Group in respect of the advertising services for
each of the two years ending 31 December 2018 would not
exceed RMB 16,000,000 and RMB 16,000,000 respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the amount payable by
the Group in respect of the advertising services was
RMB15,169,811.

As the applicable percentage ratios under the Listing Rules (other
than the profits ratio) in respect of the annual caps of the
advertising services provided by Hangzhou Greentown Football
Club to the Group are expected to be more than 0.1% but less
than 5%, the transactions under the Supply of Goods Framework
Agreement are subject to the reporting, annual review and
announcement requirements, but are exempted from the
independent shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

Services provided by Lansong Supply Chain to the
Group

We receive the goods supply service provided by Lansong
Supply Chain to the Group in the ordinary course of business.

Details of the transaction

On 10 January 2017, Greentown Property Management, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the sales
framework agreement with Lansong Supply Chain. Pursuant to
which, Lansong Supply Chain would supply various agricultural
goods and products to the Group. The term of the agreement
commenced from the date of signing the agreement and ending
on 31 December 2019.
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Consideration

The fees charged to the Group by Lansong Supply Chain for the
provision of goods was determined at arm'’s length with reference
to (i) the national agricultural products wholesale market prices
published by the Ministry of Agriculture of the PRC from time to
time; (i) the purchasing costs of such goods and the operation
costs (including packaging, processing and distribution costs)
incurred by Lansong Supply Chain for supplying goods to
Greentown Property Management and/or its subsidiaries or
branch companies under the sales framework agreement; and (iii)
the price of the same or comparable type of various agricultural
goods sold to independent third parties in its ordinary and usual
course of business.

Annual caps

The Directors estimated that the maximum annual amount
payable by the Group to Lansong Supply Chain for each of the
three years ending 31 December 2019 would not exceed
RMB62,400,000, RMB82,500,000 and RMB97,300,000 respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the amount payable by
the Group in respect of the goods supplied by Lansong Supply
Chain was RMB30,034,551.

As the applicable percentage ratios under the Listing Rules (other
than the profits ratio) in respect of the annual caps for the goods
supply service provided to the Group by Lansong Supply Chain
are expected to be more than 0.1% but less than 5%, the
transactions under the Supply of Goods Framework Agreement
are subject to the reporting, annual review and announcement
requirements, but are exempted from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.
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Services provided by the Group to Bluetown
Agricultural Technology

We provide goods supply service to Bluetown Agricultural
Technology in the ordinary course of business.

Details of the transaction

On 6 November 2017, Lansong Supply Chain, a subsidiary of the
Group, entered into the framework agreement with Bluetown
Agricultural Technology. Pursuant to which, Lansong Supply
Chain would supply various types of agricultural goods and
products to Bluetown Agricultural Technology. The term of the
agreement commenced from the date of signing the agreement
and ending on 31 December 2019.

Consideration

The fees charged to Bluetown Agricultural Technology by the
Group for the supply of goods was determined at arm’s length
with reference to (i) the national agricultural products wholesale
market prices published by the Ministry of Agriculture of the PRC
from time to time; and (ii) the price of the same or comparable
type of various goods sold to independent third parties in its
ordinary and usual course of business. In determining the price,
the Group would collect the relevant market information, review
and compare the costs and profits of transactions in the most
recent year for the provision of the same or similar type of
agricultural goods and products with at least two independent
third parties.

Annual caps

The Directors estimated that the maximum annual amount
payable by Bluetown Agricultural Technology to the Group for
each of the three years ending 31 December 2019 would not
exceed RMB18,000,000, RMB5,280,000 and RMB5,808,000
respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the amount payable by
Bluetown Agricultural Technology to the Group in respect of the
goods supply service was RMB12,711,829.
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As the applicable percentage ratios under the Listing Rules (other
than the profits ratio) in respect of the annual caps for the goods
supply service provided by the Group are expected to be more
than 0.1% but less than 5%, the transactions under the Supply of
Goods Framework Agreement are subject to the reporting,
annual review and announcement requirements, but are
exempted from the independent shareholders’ approval
requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

For details of the above continuing connected transactions,
please refer to the section headed “Connected Transactions” in
the Prospectus and the announcements of the Company
published on 10 January 2017 and 6 November 2017.

The Company adjusts the scope and amount of continuing
connected transactions and the annual caps exempted from
disclosure (where necessary) in accordance with its internal
control procedures. During the Reporting Period, the Company
has followed the pricing policies and guidelines for each of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed in this annual report
when determining the price and terms of such transactions
conducted. The Directors are of the view that the Company’s
internal control procedures are adequate and effective to ensure
that transactions are so conducted.

During the Reporting Period, the independent non- executive
Directors have reviewed the aforesaid continuing connected
transactions and confirmed that the transactions have been
entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i)  onnormal commercial terms; and

(i) in accordance with relevant agreements governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.

AR BT AR RIIE N AR SR B R A 0 it
FERRTSFE LIREVER B 2 LR (B
RSN ARG BB 0.1% 1B D1 5%,
HHEERBZE TORFHEET LT
RABVABTET ZHE  FEEHR
RERTE  EERRETEIRRIE
HIRTE

R LS ERER IS 258
RE [FERS | —fIRAREIR2017
F1 8108 K%20179F11 B6B TIEEHAE -

ARRABRBEARBEGIEFHEEH R
BENOE) 2FHERER S 2 HE R
SHEARFELR -RBEHMA - RE
EFTETTZ BRBR 5 2 B RAGRE -
ARBDETAFERABEZ S FHERD
BR 2 EEBRRENIES -EFRE
R B AR AE B2 Fr 2 DA B A B AR EE AR
ZERXHIMRELT -

RBERR - BUFATEFEEZL
AFEBER S UHERZEZXHE

() HEARENEER-REHBRET
RIS NETT

(i) IR AP R IRFRET M T - &
(i) BREREXZHORBHERIFA

BT A AR BB A 2 B0 IR SKRT
SR ETT e

2017TEERE SWRIEEEERAF

89



Report of Directors

EEERE

920

The Company's auditors were engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised)
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Note 740 "Auditor’'s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditors
have issued their letter containing the findings and conclusions in
respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed
above by the Group in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules:

1. nothing has come to their attention that causes the auditor
to believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions have not been approved by the Company’s
board of directors.

2. for transactions involving the provision of goods by the
Group, nothing has come to their attention that causes us
to believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions were not, in all material respects, in accordance
with the pricing policies of the Group.

3. nothing has come to their attention that causes the auditor
to believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions were not entered into, in all material respects,
in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions.

4. with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the
continuing connected transactions, nothing has come to
their attention that causes the auditor to believe that the
disclosed continuing connected transactions have
exceeded the annual cap as set by the Company.

A copy of the auditor’s letter on the continuing connected
transactions of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017
has been provided by the Company to the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out in Note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements. None of these related party
transactions constitutes a discloseable connected transaction as
defined under the Listing Rules, except for the transactions described
in this paragraph headed “Continuing Connected Transactions”, in
respect of which the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules have been complied with.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, during the Reporting Period,
the Company had no connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions which fell to be disclosed in accordance with the
provisions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in relation to the
disclosure of connected transactions and continuing connected
transactions.

SIGNIFICANT LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company was not engaged
in any litigation or arbitration of material importance. As mentioned in
the interim report 2017, a high end community in Hangzhou that we
manage, the “Sapphire Mansion”, had an arson, led to casualties. The
criminal suspect has been sentenced to death in the first criminal trial
and is still in the process of the second trial. The victims' families also
may file a civil lawsuit against the Company.

Save as disclosed above, no litigation or claim of material importance
is known to the Directors to be pending or threatening against the
Company.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

During the year of 2017, the Company maintained liability insurance for
Directors and senior management (being the liability insurance for
Directors and senior management and prospectus liability insurance)
to provide the appropriate coverage for the Directors and senior
management of the Company.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

The material post balance sheet events are disclosed in note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee") had,
together with the management and external auditor of the Company
(the “Auditor”), reviewed the accounting principles and policies
adopted by the Group and the consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2017.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance practices. Information on the corporate governance
practices adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate
Governance Report on pages 93 to 110 of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and to the
best knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company'’s total
issued shares, the prescribed minimum percentage of public float
approved by the Stock Exchange and permitted under the Listing
Rules, was held by the public at all times during the Reporting Period
and as of the date of this annual report.

AUDITOR

KPMG was appointed as the Auditor for the year ended 31 December
2017. The accompanying financial statements prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs have been audited by KPMG.

KPMG shall retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and,
being eligible, will offer itself for re-appointment. A resolution for the
re-appointment of KPMG as Auditor will be proposed at the AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Li Hairong
Chairman

Hangzhou, 23 March 2018
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The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance report of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2017.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and to
enhance corporate value and accountability. The Company has
adopted the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report (the "CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules
as its own code of corporate governance. Save as disclosed in this
annual report, the Company has complied with all applicable code
provisions under the CG Code throughout the Reporting Period. The
Company will continue to review and monitor its corporate governance
practices to ensure compliance with the CG Code.

THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group,
oversees the Group's strategic decisions and monitors business and
performance. The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility
for day-to-day management and operation of the Group to the senior
management of the Group. To oversee particular aspects of the
Company's affairs, the Board has established three Board committees
including the Audit Committee, the remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) and the nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) (together, the "Board Committees”). The
Board has delegated to the Board Committees responsibilities as set
out in their respective terms of reference.

All Directors have carried out duties in good faith and in compliance
with applicable laws and regulations, and have acted in the interests of
the Company and the Shareholders at all times.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance in respect of
legal action against the Directors. The insurance coverage will be
reviewed on an annual basis.
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Board Composition

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises four executive
Directors, two non-executive Directors and three independent non-
executive Directors as follows:

Executive Directors:

Ms. Li Hairong (Chairman)

Mr. Yang Zhangfa (Vice Chairman)
Mr. Wu Zhihua

Mr. Chen Hao

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Shou Bainian
Ms. Xia Yibo

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok

Mr. Wong Ka Yi

Mr. Li Feng (Appointed on 5 December 2017)
Mr. Tian Zaiwei (Resigned on 5 December 2017)

The biographies of the Directors are set out under the section headed
"Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

On 5 December 2017, Mr. Li Feng has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director. However, Mr. Li will hold office
until the next following annual general meeting of the Company after
his appointment, at which Mr. Li will retire and be eligible for re-
election. At the same day, Mr. Tian Zaiwei has resigned as an
independent non-executive Director.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Board has met at all
times the requirements under rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-
executive Directors with at least one independent non-executive
Director possessing appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has also complied with rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules

relating to the appointment of independent non-executive Directors
representing at least one-third of the Board.
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The Company believes that the diversity of Board members will be
immensely beneficial for the enhancement of the Company's
performance. Therefore, the Company has adopted a Board diversity
policy to ensure that the Company will, when determining the
composition of the Board, consider Board diversity in terms of,
amongst other things, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills and knowledge. All Board appointments
will be based on merits, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity of the
Board. The Board diversity policy is summarized below:

The Board attaches great importance to the gender mix: women now
hold 22% of the total directorships, which is in line and higher that the
ratio for most of the listed companies.

The Board includes Directors with diverse backgrounds: executive
Directors have extensive management experience and are in charge of
the principal businesses of the Company; non-executive Directors are
highly experienced in corporate management, hence they are able to
provide effective recommendations on the Company’s operation and
development; independent non-executive Directors have experience
in property management industry, investment, finance, corporate
governance and international market.

As each of the independent non-executive Directors has confirmed his
independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the Company
considers all of them to be independent parties.

Save as disclosed in the Directors’ biographies set out in the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report,
none of the Directors have any personal relationship (including
financial, business, family or other material or relevant relationship) with
any other Director and chief executive.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge
and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective
functioning. Independent non-executive Directors are invited to serve
on the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee.

As regards the CG Code provision requiring directors to disclose the
number and nature of offices held in public companies or organisations
and other significant commitments as well as the identity of the public
companies or organisations and the time involved to the issuer,
Directors have agreed to disclose their commitments and any
subsequent change to the Company in a timely manner.
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Induction and Continuous Professional Development

Each newly appointed Director is provided with necessary induction
and information to ensure that he/she has a proper understanding of
the Company’s operations and businesses as well as his/her
responsibilities under relevant statues, laws, rules and regulations. The
Company also arranges regular seminars to provide Directors with
updates on latest development and changes in the Listing Rules and
other relevant legal and regulatory requirements from time to time.
The Directors are also provided with regular updates on the Company's
performance, position and prospects to enable the Board as a whole
and each Director to discharge their duties.

Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
company secretary of the Company has from time to time updated and
provided written training materials relating to the roles, functions and
duties of a Director. During the year ended 31 December 2017, all
Directors participated in appropriate continuous professional
development and provided the Company with their records of training
they received. Directors participated in the training which included
reading regulatory updates, attending seminars or conducting training
sessions and exchanging views and the special training provided by
lawyer.
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Continuous Professional
Development Training
FEEERRE
Reading or attending briefings
and/or seminars and/or conferences
relevant to regulatory and
governance updates

RERHEEEERER
Name of Director BHERERNERER R
EEnA BER/HER
Executive Directors HITES
Ms. Li Hairong ESiSE o Yes B
Mr. Yang Zhangfa BERTE Yes B
Mr. Wu Zhihua REELAE Yes B
Mr. Chen Hao Bk o A Yes B
Non-Executive Directors FHTES
Mr. Shou Bainian SNFrRE Yes B
Ms. Xia Yibo BE—gu+ Yes B
Independent Non-Executive Directors ¥ FH1TES
Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok EBE LA Yes B
Mr. Wong Ka Yi EREHLE Yes B
Mr. Li Feng FREE Yes B
(Appointed on 5 December 2017) (FA2017F 12 A5 HEE )
Mr. Tian Zaiwei HEREEAE Yes B
(Resigned on 5 December 2017) (722017 12 A 5 BHEHT)
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and performed by different
individuals.

The Chairman of the Board and the chief executive officer of the
Company (the "Chief Executive Officer”) are currently two separate
positions held by Ms. Li Hairong and Mr. Wu Zhihua, respectively, with
clear distinction in responsibilities. The Chairman of the Board is
responsible for providing strategic advice and guidance on the
business development of the Group, while the Chief Executive Officer
is responsible for the day-to-day operations of the Group.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the executive Directors has signed a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from 12 July 2016,
which is renewable automatically for successive terms of three years
subject to termination as provided in the service contract.

Each of the non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors (except Mr. Li Feng) has signed an appointment letter with
the Company for a term of three years commencing from the Listing
Date, which may be renewable subject to both parties’ agreement. Mr.
Li Feng, the independent non-executive Director, has signed an
appointment letter with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 5 December 2017, which may be renewable subject
to both parties’ agreement.

None of the Directors has a service contract which is not determinable
by the Group within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of Directors are set out in the Articles of Association. The Nomination
Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board composition and
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
election of Directors and succession planning for Directors.

Board meetings

The Company adopts the practice of holding Board meetings regularly,
at least four times a year, and at approximately quarterly intervals.
Notices of not less than fourteen days are given for all regular Board
meetings to provide all Directors with an opportunity to attend and
include matters in the agenda for a regular meeting.
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For other Board and Board Committee meetings, reasonable notice is
generally given by the Company. The agenda and accompanying
board papers are dispatched to the Directors or Board Committee
members at least three days before the meetings to ensure that they
have sufficient time to review the papers and are adequately prepared
for the meetings. When Directors or Board Committee members are
unable to attend a meeting, they will be advised of the matters to be
discussed and given an opportunity to make their views known to the
Chairman prior to the meeting. Minutes of meetings are kept by the
joint company secretary with copies circulated to all Directors for
information and records.

Minutes of the Board meetings and Board Committee meetings are
recorded in sufficient detail about the matters considered by the Board
and the Board Committees and the decisions reached, including any
concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of each Board meeting
and Board Committee meeting are sent to the Directors for comments
within a reasonable time after the date on which the meeting is held.
Minutes of the Board meetings are open for inspection by Directors.

During the Reporting Period, five board meetings and one annual
general meeting were held, the attendance of each Director at these
meetings is set out in the table below:
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Attended/Eligible
to attend the
Annual General

Attended/Eligible
to attend the

Directors Board meeting(s) Meeting
2HE
BHE BRAFRSRE
-39/ 0 EHERRES
== EHEEEERE RERE
Executive Directors HITES
Ms. Li Hairong (Chairman) FEELT(EE) 5/5 1/1
Mr. Yang Zhangfa BERESE 5/5 11
Mr. Wu Zhihua REERSE 5/5 1/1
Mr. Chen Hao BREEAE 5/5 1/1
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Shou Bainian SRFELEE 5/5 11
Ms. Xia Yibo B+ 5/5 1/1
Independent Non-executive Directors B EH{TEE
Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok ERE A 5/5 1/1
Mr. Wong Ka Vi ERHELE 5/5 1/1
Mr. Li Feng FREE 1/1 N/A
(Appointed on 5 December 2017) (FR2017F 12 RS HEZF) ANjE
Mr. Tian Zaiwei BEELE 4/4 11

(Resigned on 5 December 2017)

(R 2017412 A5 B &A1)
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors and employees (the “Securities Dealing
Code”). The Company had made specific enquiry with all Directors
whether they have complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code during the year ended 31 December 2017 and all Directors
confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code and the
Securities Dealing Code during the year ended 31 December 2017.

Delegation by the Board

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters of the Company,
including: approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management systems,
material transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of
interests), financial information, appointment of Directors and other
significant financial and operational matters. Directors could have
recourse to seek independent professional advice in performing their
duties at the Company's expense and are encouraged to access and to
consult with the Company’s senior management independently.

The daily management, administration and operation of the Group are
delegated to the senior management. The delegated functions and
responsibilities are periodically reviewed by the Board. Approval has to
be obtained from the Board prior to any significant transactions
entered into by the management.

Corporate Governance Function
The Board recognizes that corporate governance should be the
collective responsibility of the Directors which includes:

(@)  to review and monitor the Company'’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(c) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and Directors;

(d) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board
and report to the Board on matters; and

(e) to review the Company’'s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

As at 31 December 2017, the Audit Committee comprises three
members, namely Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok (chairman), Mr. Wong Ka Yi and
Mr. Li Feng (appointed on 5 December 2017). Mr. Tian Zaiwei resigned
as the member of Audit Committee on 5 December 2017. All of them
are independent non-executive Directors.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

1. To review the relationship with the Auditor by reference to the
work performed by the Auditor, their fees and terms of
engagement, and make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of the Auditor;

2. To review the financial statements and reports and consider any
significant or unusual items raised by the Company’s staff
responsible for the accounting and financial reporting function,
compliance officer or the Auditor before submission to the
Board;

3. To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company's
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk
management system and associated procedures, including the
adequacy of the resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function.

The written terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

During the year ended on 31 December 2017, three meetings of the
Audit Committee were held to discuss and consider the following
matters:

o Review the annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries as
of 31 December 2016;

J Review the interim results of the Company and its subsidiaries as
of 30 June 2017,
o Review the auditor’s report in relation to the audit plan and

strategy of the Group;
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Review the financial reporting system, compliance procedure,
internal control (including the Company’s internal control of
corruption risks and the handling and identification of business
conflict of major shareholders in listed companies), risk
management system and procedures and re-appointment of
external auditor. The Board did not deviate from the
recommendations of the Audit Committee on the selection,
appointment, resignation or dismissal of external auditor.

o HUBRBRL AREF AEEE
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Attendance of each Audit Committee member is set out in the table BEXRZEeKELEZZSENBEILEHNT
below: =
Attended/Eligible
Directors to attend
BHERE
2=E FE IR
Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok (Chairman) EBBIL A (F/E) 3/3
Mr. Wong Ka Yi ERELYE 3/3
Mr. Li Feng (Appointed on 5 December 2017) TR A (R 2017 F 12 A5 BEERT) 1/1
Mr. Tian Zaiwei (Resigned on 5 December 2017) HEEL A (7R 2017 512 A 5 BEHT) 2/2
Nomination Committee REZE®

As at 31 December 2017, the Nomination Committee comprises three
members, namely Mr. Wong Ka Yi (chairman), Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok and
Mr. Li Feng (appointed on 5 December 2017). Mr. Tian Zaiwei resigned

as the member of Nomination Committee on 5 December 2017. All of

them are independent non-executive Directors.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include the

following:

1.

to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board on
the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors;
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4. to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of Directors and the succession planning for
Directors, in particular the chairman and the chief executive
officer; and

5. toreview the Board diversity policy.

The Nomination Committee assesses the candidate or incumbent on
criteria such as integrity, experience, skill and ability to commit time
and effort to carry out the duties and responsibilities. The
recommendations of the Nomination Committee will then be put to
the Board for decision. The written terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee are available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, two meetings of the
Nomination Committee were held to review the structure, composition,
size and diversity of the Board and relevant recommendations were
made to the Board, which included the appointment of additional
Director and re-election of retiring Directors.

Attendance of each Nomination Committee member is set out in the

4. HREBFZAEXEFZEARER(LHER
TERITHARE) BETERNESSRD
B R

5. EHEFENEZITEEE-

REAZBERHE &% BEEARSEITR
BT 2 KR RS D FFREF B IREASE
TA - REZBEZEBBNERRERESTS
PMERTE - IRBRZ B GMEERBAEHE N
At R AR BASvE AT & -

HE2017F12ANBLEFEAN REEZEE
BRTRAREZESSE  EHESSHE
K RERZ T - R KRB EIEH
EENESFRINEZNESSRIES -

BRAZEENEBHEZSTEZNERERT

table below: *:
Attended/Eligible
Directors to attend
BHERE
BE B ERE
Mr. Wong Ka Yi (Chairman) ERELE(LE) 2/2
Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok ERR B S A 2/2
Mr. Li Feng (Appointed on 5 December 2017) FRSGEAE (R 2017 F12 ASAEERT) N/A
A3 A
Mr. Tian Zaiwei (Resigned on 5 December 2017) HEE LA (R 2017 F 12 A5 HEHE) 2/2
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Remuneration Committee

As at 31 December 2017, the Remuneration Committee comprises
three members, namely Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok (chairman), Mr. Wong Ka
Yi and Mr. Li Feng (appointed on 5 December 2017). Mr. Tian Zaiwei
resigned as the member of Remuneration Committee on 5 December
2017. All of them are independent non-executive Directors.

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include the
following:

1. to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
overall policy and structure for the remuneration of the Directors
and senior management and on the establishment of a formal
and transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

2. to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the corporate goals and objectives
determined by the Board,;

3. to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management. These include benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, including any compensation payable
for loss or termination of their office or appointment;

4. to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
non-executive Directors;

5. to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

6. to review and approve compensation payable to executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination of
office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;
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7.  to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure that
they are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise
reasonable and appropriate; and

8. to ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates (as defined
in the Listing Rules) is involved in deciding his/her own
remuneration.

The written terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, three meetings of the
Remuneration Committee were held to discuss and consider the
following matters:

J the remuneration policy of the Company and its subsidiaries

o the remuneration of Directors and proposed adjustment to the

7. R RMEREETRKE MAFRENE
CEBESFMEROBER D - UER
AZERHRG OGN B HERERG
WiER—2 ARERETAAEEE
K
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Board
Attendance of each Remuneration Committee member is set out inthe S HWEESKELHEZZSHNBEAINT
table below: E S

Attended/Eligible

Directors to attend

BHERE

B=E FEHERE

Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok (Chairman) EBBL A (F/E) 3/3

Mr. Wong Ka Yi ERELE 3/3

Mr. Li Feng (Appointed on 5 December 2017) TR A (R 2017 F 12 A5 HEET) N/A

N iE A

Mr. Tian Zaiwei (Resigned on 5 December 2017) BT (A 2017 12 A5 B EHT) 3/3
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Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management

Details of the remuneration by band of the members of the Board and
senior management of the Company, whose biographies are set out
on pages 50 to 57 of this annual report, for the year ended 31
December 2017 are set out below:

Remuneration band (RMB)

EERSREEENTM
HE2017F12A31BLEFE EELARNF
MNERRERE(HEZRESNATRESCE
ZESTE)NMESSHRITIAT ¢

Number of individual

MEEH(ARE) A
0-1,500,000 10
1,500,001-3,500,000 4

DIRECTORS’' RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017 which give
a true and fair view of the affairs of the Company and the Group and of
the Group's results and cash flows.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an
informed assessment of the Company's financial statements, which are
put to the Board for approval.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement by the Auditor regarding their reporting responsibilities on
the consolidated financial statements of the Company is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on page 132 to 141 of this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to ensure that sound risk
management and internal control system is established and maintained
within the Group, as well as its responsibility to review its effectiveness.
Such system aims at managing and reducing the business risks faced
by the Group to an acceptable extent, but not eliminating the risks of
failure to achieve business objectives. Moreover, it can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement,
loss or fraud.

The Board has authorized the Audit Committee to take charge of the
on-going monitoring of the Group's risk management and internal
control system as well as the annual review of its effectiveness. Such
review covers all material control aspects, including financial control,
operation control and compliance control.
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Under the Company’s risk management and internal control structure,
the management is responsible for the design, implementation and
maintenance of the risk management and internal control system,
thereby ensuring, in particular, (i) appropriate policies and procedures
are designed and established to safeguard the Group's assets from
misappropriation or disposal; (ii) compliance with relevant laws,
regulations or rules; and (iii) reliable financial and accounting records
are kept properly in accordance with relevant auditing standards and
regulatory reports.

The key features of the Company's risk management and internal
control structure include: (i) designated departments are responsible
for the implementation and execution of the Company’s risk
management and internal control system and heads of major operating
units or departments are in charge of the management and mitigation
of identified risks; (i) the management ensures appropriate measures
have been taken in relation to significant risks that may affect the
Group's business and operation; and (iii) internal auditor provides
independent confirmation to the Board, Audit Committee and the
management on the effectiveness of risk management and internal
control.

During the Reporting Period, the Company’s main duties on risk
management and internal control include:

o Each of the major operating units and departments carries out
daily risk management activities, which include identification of
significant risks that may affect the Group's results; assessment
and evaluation of identified significant risks based on their
impacts and possibilities; formulating plans for and
implementation of measures, control and emergency response
plans to manage and reduce such risks;

. The management and finance department monitor and review
the risk management and internal control system on an ongoing
basis and report to the Audit Committee on its status;

o The management regularly follows up and reviews the measures,
control and emergency response plans in place for the identified
significant risks, to build a security risk management and
classification of risk prevention and control of double prevention
mechanisms, so as to ensure sufficient attention, monitoring and
response is given to such risks;
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o The management regularly reviews the risk management and
internal control system for the purpose of identifying the
deficiencies in procedures and control function, and designs and
implements rectification for such deficiencies;

o The management ensures the normal functioning of the
appropriate procedures and measures, such as making sure there
is no unauthorized use or disposition of assets, controlling capital
expenditure, maintenance of proper accounting record and
ensuring the reliability of financial information for business
operation and public disclosure; and

o A new Safety Committee is established to build the safety
protection system of the Company, enhance the safety protection
ability of the area in the service scope, maintain the safety of lives
and properties of the owners and staffs and ensure the Company
to operate orderly.

The internal audit function monitors the Company’s internal
governance and provides independent confirmation on the adequacy
and effectiveness of the risk management and internal control system.
The chief executives in charge of the internal audit function report
directly to the Audit Committee, submit the internal audit report to the
Audit Committee based on the auditing plan as approved by the
Board, and report the results of internal audit works to all Directors.
During the Reporting Period, the internal audit function performed
analysis and evaluation on the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company's risk management and internal control system, in particular,
it inspected the documents in relation to risks prepared by operating
units and the management, and interviewed staff members at all levels.
The chief executives in charge of the internal audit function attended
the meeting of the Audit Committee, explained the results of the
internal audit and answered questions raised by the Audit Committee.

The Company has established the inside information policy for fair and
timely dissemination of information to public based on applicable laws
and regulations. The chief executives authorized by the Group to take
charge of the investor relations, corporate matters and financial control
functions are responsible for ensuring and monitoring compliance with
the applicable disclosure procedures for inside information. The
relevant chief executives may access inside information on “as
needed” basis at any times. Personnel and professionals involved are
reminded to keep inside information confidential until public
disclosure. The Company has other procedures in place to prevent
mishandling of inside information, including prior approval of trading
of the Company'’s securities by Directors and the management, regular
notice of black out period, restrictions on securities trading of Directors
and staff and code for project identification.
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The Company has established arrangements for employees and other
stakeholders to raise concern on suspected misconduct in financial
reporting, internal control or other aspects in confidence. The Audit
Committee carries out regular reviews to ensure appropriate
arrangements are in place for fair and independent investigation and
proper actions for such matters.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee reviewed the
effectiveness of the Company’s risk management and internal control
system. The annual review included: (i) reviewing the financial control,
internal control and risk management systems of the Company; (ii)
regular discussion with chief executives at the management level on
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control and the
work of the internal audit function; (jii) evaluating the scope and quality
of the management’s on-going monitoring of the risk management
and internal control system; and (iv)reviewing the ESG report of the
Company and evaluating related policies and providing suggestions.

Based on the above, the Audit Committee was not aware of any
significant issues that would adversely affect the effectiveness and
adequacy of the risk management and internal control system of the
Company.

AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

The remuneration for the audit and non-audit services provided by the
Auditor to the Group during the year ended 31 December 2017 was
approximately as follows:
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PN

Type of Services Amount (RMB)
PR 75 28 Bl SHE(AR¥T)
Annual audit services FEERE
Professional review services on 2017 2017 FHR B S RE

interim financial report EHEERS 800,000.00
Professional audit services on 2017 2017 FE P HRE

annual financial statements ETEERYS 2,800,000.00
Total A=t 3,600,000.00
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Ho, Kenneth Kai Chung (“Mr. Ho"), the joint Company Secretary of
the Company, is responsible for advising the Board on corporate
governance matters and ensuring that the Board policies and
procedures, as well as the applicable laws, rules and regulations are
followed.

In order to uphold good corporate governance and ensure compliance
with the Listing Rules and applicable Hong Kong laws, the Company
also engages Ms. Ng Sau Mei (“Ms. Ng"), senior manager of TMF
Hong Kong Limited (a company secretarial service provider), as the
other joint company secretary to assist Mr. Ho to discharge his duties
as company secretary of the Company. The primary corporate contact
person of Ms. Ng at the Company is Mr. Ho.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, Mr. Ho and Ms. Ng have
undertaken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
respectively in compliance with rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with the
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
understanding of the Group's business, performance and strategies.
The Company also recognizes the importance of timely and non-
selective disclosure of information, which will enable Shareholders and
investors to make the informed investment decisions.

The annual general meeting of the Company provides opportunity for
the Shareholders to communicate directly with the Directors. The
Chairman of the Company and the chairmen of the Board Committees
of the Company will attend the annual general meetings to answer
Shareholders’ questions. The Auditor will also attend the annual
general meetings to answer questions about the conduct of the audit,
the preparation and content of the auditor’s report, the accounting
policies and auditor independence.

To promote effective communication, the Company adopts a
shareholders’ communication policy which aims at establishing a two-
way relationship and communication between the Company and the
Shareholders and maintains a website of the Company at
www.lvchengfuwu.com, where up-to-date information on the
Company’s business operations and developments, financial
information, corporate governance practices and other information are
available for public access.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution
will be proposed for each issue at general meetings, including the
election of individual Directors.

All resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted by poll
pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange in a timely manner
after each general meeting.

Convening of extraordinary general meeting and putting
forward proposals

Shareholders may put forward proposals for consideration at a general
meeting of the Company according to the Articles of Association. Any
one or more members holding as at date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all
times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or any one of
the joint company secretaries of the Company, to require an
extraordinary general meeting of the Company to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

As regards proposing a person for election as a Director, the
procedures are available on the website of the Company.

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders who intend to put forward their enquiries about the
Company to the Board could send their enquiries to The Investment &
Management Center via email (email address: ir@zjlcwg.com).

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2017, there was no change in the
Articles of Association of the Company.
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COMMUNICATE WITH STAKEHOLDERS

We consider that listening to, responding to and dealing with the
stakeholders’ comments effectively and continuously, and what
they're concerned, are beneficial to the Group’s business
development. For this purpose, we have constructed a number of
different platforms, including: mobile applications,
communication software and websites, to not only allow our
stakeholders to share and express their concerns, but also
promote a more harmonious neighborhood relationship and
better social custom, so as to build a service ecosystem for the
interaction, symbiotic co-prosperity and mutual promotion
among owners, property management department, merchants,
and users.

CORPORATE VISION

We believe that by realizing the common progress of employees,
the company and the society, to achieve a sincere, kind, exquisite
and perfect life is the mission and responsibility of the Group,
and we strive to develop a social welfare undertaking supported
by the business model so as to create a safe, convenient,
comfortable and happy community for the public, and we are
committed to becoming the “China’s most valuable happy life
service provider”.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND

GOVERNANCE PERFORMANCE

3.1. Care for the environment
Management guidance and policies
Improvement of the property image and environment is an
indispensable part of creating a beautiful city. Therefore,
environmental management has become an important part
of the Group's development strategy, and we have
endeavored to integrate the concept of sustainable
development into our core business through the
implementation of a number of environmental
management measures, so as to make more effective use
of natural resources, reduce pollution, and build a better
living environment for our next generation.

The Group strictly complies with all applicable
environmental laws and regulations, and has not been
prosecuted for violating environmental laws during the
reporting period.
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3.1.1. Pollution control 3.1.1. SFRES
Tackling climate change JEXmIRZ L
Paris Agreement entered into force in 2016, which 20165 E R ZE)ENE
clearly states that countries should work together to B AEELSHELXRS
deter global warming. To this end, the Group has also NBEEZ2RELCLBE - R
endeavored to reduce carbon emissions over the past I EEBE—FITZ IR
year to assist the State in fulfilling responsibilities DHRBERR - A BB R EST
under the Paris Agreement. Through instructing the (BRBZE)THERE - &
staff, the Group conveys a message of "Working WEIHEEF EHIEBL
together to reduce carbon, beginning with energy Ak - WEREIRET AR A | AN
saving”. We post signs with content about saving E BN PRAENRER
electricity consumption on the lighting system DB EREAGHE - ¥
switches, air conditioner system switches, g rexER%E RELES
photocopiers, meeting room in our office, to influence ERERW mERREE
and help the staff to form the habit of saving power. ITHEBEENEE - B1H
The staff turn off their computers or other office R ARHEeEEFHEEIL
equipments of their own accord during non-working B H M BB A 9 A ER
time, a testament of the benefits of posting signs fiie B rEEHERAEE
mentioned above. In addition, the Group takes into EHIR R o AN EBEEZE
consideration of the correlation between the vehicles BEET ETHMAAAZRE
used by the staff to and from work and daily energy THHEAFWERERES
consumption, in particular, the fuel consumption of BHE LEEAENRS
automobiles. Consequently, we encourage our AE Bl ZMSEBET
employees to try to use public transportation means FERBARERBIALET
instead of their private cars, which not only saves the AR EBRRE - E8A
fuel consumption of their private cars, but also EANRENMRHAE 2
produces a positive influence to reduce carbon, 4R - PR AR B 7 E A IE
achieving a result of “Less carbon emission HFE  EZH[HFA—TH
contributed by everyone of us”, the company’s FEE DB KR BRA
business is concentrated in the office and the carbon RAINEBHEFRBEAE
emission measures mentioned above are difficult to i L it &9 e ik 15 i I8 2 DA 187
measure, we have not been able to quantify the 2 W RMITRESEHE
effectiveness of carbon emission. The greenhouse gas TREIP AR - TE S BN E A&
emissions generated during the Reporting Period are VREREHRENT
as follows:

Greenhouse gas emission and density

BERBEREREE
Total greenhouse gas emission 554.48 metric tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent
RERBHNES yN k= g3

Direct emission 36.70 metric tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent
BEPN N — S LHEE

Energy indirect emission 517.79 metric tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent
B TR PR 2 HE A NS EE

Emission density 2.87 metric tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent/

each employee
HEm = NE—EfbiEe BRET
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Waste Management

Greentown Service operates mainly in offices, so
there is no hazardous and non-hazardous waste
generated. In addition, the Group's properties and
offices are equipped with recycling bins, to promote
the concept of garbage classification among
employees and customers.

Waste gas emission and sewage discharge

During its operation, the Group did not produce
waste gas emission and sewage discharge that are
adverse to the environment.

BEEYEHE
BMUBRBHELBEETER
MAE BURFRBELE
EERBZEED- - RN
SEETHENENRAE
BREDYRE - ME TME
BHREAR D EER -

ERBERL R TR L
SERELZBREFIRIAE
RS R BER K5 K
BERR -

3.1.2.Use of resources 31.2. EHER
To make more effective and prudent use of all EBEEMNEBEMERAAE

resources, including energy, water and other natural
resources, we have set up a series of resource
management measures to provide staff with more
specific advice and guidelines on the management of
energy, water and packaging materials.

Green office

Over the years, we have implemented a number of
energy conservation measures and initiatives of green
office, and we are constantly seeking and adopting
new ways to reduce the consumption of the
environment and natural resources in our operations.
We have made measures of green office for the
operation in offices, including: ventilating through
windows as much as possible in Spring and Autumn
to reduce the use of air-conditioning; setting the
operating temperature of air-conditioning system to
reduce energy consumption; standardizing staff to
effectively use water to avoid waste, and using
electronic office system to reduce paper application
process, thus saving papers.
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3.1.3.

During the Reporting Period, the major resources
consumed by the Group during its operation and
production are summarized below:

RBEHE - KSEEEER
EEMFEMERNSEER
BRI T -

Usage Amount Density
ERE RE
Electricity purchased 638,295.84 kwh 3,307.23 kwh/each employee
BEME TR TEE, BH8T
Automobile fuel 16,142.86 L 83.64  L/each employee
RSP AF AF/ LA
Municipal water 240.04 m3 1.24  m?*each employee
K SR MK/ BEET

Promote green operation

The Group actively integrates environmental
responsibility into the daily operation activities, to
minimize as much as possible the impact of business
on the surrounding environment. In the meantime, we
have strengthened the awareness of the
environmental protection of the stakeholders and
have done our best to extend the concept of
sustainable development to all aspects of the
community.

World Environment Day

In June 2017, with the slogan of “We will always be
young children in face of the environment” in the
district on the “World Environment Day”, we
endeavored to let our stakeholders to realize that
upholding a good ecological environment is the key
to a better life.
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3.2. BAAXK

3.2. People-oriented Management

Management principles and policies

Greentown Service has been adhering to the “people-
oriented” spirit, and always bears in mind the
implementation of social responsibility while developing
business. Greentown Service is committed to caring for the
career development, as well as physical and mental health
of every employee, and providing our supply chain with the
best treatment and the safest and most reliable quality
property management services for our customers. At the
same time, we are actively participating in and sponsoring
meaningful community initiatives and activities, so as to
achieve the vision of creating a better society.

3.2.1.Equal employment

Equal opportunities and pluralism co-existence

We believe that creating a respectful and harmonious
working environment for our employees is our first
mission. Therefore, we have adopted pluralistic and
non-discriminatory policies, to ensure that the
candidate to every job enjoys the corresponding
rights. Our Recruitment Management Regulation
stipulates that we will not reject any candidate for
reasons of gender, age, race and so on, and will not
discriminate against physically handicapped persons,
and instead, we provide competitive salary, training
programs and opportunities for their career
development.

As a responsible employer, we have also made the
Labor Turnover Management Regulation according to
the PRC Labor Law, the PRC Labor Contract Law and
other relevant laws and regulations. The Group will
handle cases of labor turnover, including resignation,
retirement, withdrawal, lay off by the Company, etc.,
according to the requirements of national laws and
regulations of the Company.
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Salary and welfare

We think that employee care is the most effective way
to embody corporate culture. Thus, we provide a
comprehensive welfare plan for employees, including
social insurance, housing fund, the only-child
allowance, high temperature subsidy, festive welfare,
holiday benefits, life benefits, employee traveling
benefits, team activities benefits, birthday blessing
benefits, etc., aiming to improve the quality of life of
employees.

We have a sound Salary Management System. The
starting salary range varies with different job
responsibilities of employees. The assessment and
adjustment of starting salary range for different ranks
are conducted on a regular basis. And employee'’s
salary and rank will be adjusted according to the
Company's economic benefits and employee
performance. In terms of working hours and holidays,
the Group has strictly followed the PRC Labor Law
and the PRC Labor Contract law, and other relevant
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laws. HIBE B HE FE)FHEEE
BERMEITER
Friendly workplace RERBS

We also encourage employees to strike a balance
between work and life, to promote “happy work,
healthy living”. To this end, the Group has established
the “"Employee Care System”; We will listen carefully
to understand the staff's personal interests and
hobbies, so as to develop a number of employee-care
activities for them such as "Warm-heart Action”,
“Chunhui Action”, and “Zijin Initiative”, and invite
staff to have fun together to make up for their hard
work at weekdays; to encourage colleagues to work
with the physical and mental balance for the pursuit
of a healthy and sustainable lifestyle.
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Plan
sTEl

Activity
JEE

Activity content/purpose
EBREBH

Measures/Results

Bt BR

Warm-heart Sports community
Action

BT REEPHE

The “Voice" of
Greentown

R (B E )

Greentown “Two
Sessions”

R TRE ]

Family condolences

We have set up a variety of sports
and recreational associations, to
encourage employees to keep
exercise habits and stay healthy
while enriching their amateur lives
PRI T BRES KRB ML ELE
BB TRIFES) H 1B Mg 512
B RNSERETHAER
Arrange singing competition to
let the staff release themselves,
showcase vigor of youth, and
relax themselves from work
pressure by participating in
activities so as to improve work
efficiency
ZHNRELEZE TEESH
REMEER  FEHR2EEE BN
TIERS - A THERE

Let staff give suggestions for the
development of the Company,
promote the exchange of
friendship and enhance the
overall centripetal force
EETIRLAAERETRE A
R e s 1B RE M M AR T EE R 1A/
7

During the Spring festival, some
staff are arranged to visit the
families of expatriates and left-
behind employees to express the
Company's gratitude, while
allowing those employees to keep
their minds on work

EEEHRE - B TRINER
BB IREETRAERH - K
RERQAWHE - FREELD
BRr% - B2 BRITH
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39 sports and recreational
associations have been set
up, including running,
badminton club and
swimming club, etc.

B 39 @B B RARFMEE
HE - BERS - PERE
Kokt %

One large-scale singing
competition is held every

year
BERER AR RIELE

Set up CEO mailbox, staff
hotline, OA staff window and
other communication
channels

FMiBCEO=/ « B T&R
OAEIVEEZHEBRE

1,100 elderly owners and
2,787 other owners have
been invited to have a
reunion dinner
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Plan

B

Activity
JEE

Activity content/purpose
EBREBH

Measures/Results

Bt BR

Zijin
Initiative

FHHE

Small Migratory Bird During the summer vacation,

Care Program

MESEAERE

Dolphin Program

BT 8

Wonderful Summer

aY—E

Figure 1 New Year happy union

arrange left-behind children to
have happy time together with
parents who have worked in other
places for a long time
ZHETREASRIERPE
HNTAERR B — B H BRI K
To provide free swimming training
to the children of employees
during summer vacation
EHRE T FRRHELEIIKIE
El

Offer interesting summer camps
near the home door, with courses
including paper folding, ocarina,
recitation, professional
experience,etc.

BABKNRPIONESE 8

ARIZ

B—

Hold the annual summer
camp

B —F—EHELH

15,601 little owners
participated in the Dolphin
Program in 2017

BT E1 2017 E A 15,601 i
INEE2INT

3,656 little owners
participated with the overall
satisfaction of 96.98 points

B 36560/ NEELIN - B8
MEE96.98%
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Figure 2 Community summer camp — ERESE

-

-

SEERBTHBNRBEEN - HIAXK
B HE R ERBAEEED MRz E
related legislation during the period. E3D

The Group strictly complies with relevant employment legislation
and has not been prosecuted for any breach of employment-

3.2.2.Occupational health and safety 322. BEREHZS

Health and safety of workplace

Greentown Service regards employees as important
assets of the Company. We are committed to, by
complying with the requirements of the law, creating
a safe, healthy and comfortable working environment
for our employees to fulfill our basic commitment to
our employees. We focus on the daily behavior of
employees, from the safety management point of
view, try to enhance the staff’s self-protection
awareness, improve the ability of employees to
respond to emergencies, and strive to keep
employees safe during daily work and while working
outside. In addition, Greentown Service provides
annual physical examination to employees. After the
completion of the physical examination, the
examination results will be recorded and kept for the
staff, and employee health records will be established,
to facilitate follow-up work when it is necessary.

The Group has strictly complied with relevant safety
legislation and has not been prosecuted for breaching
occupational safety-related legislation during the
Reporting Period.

120 GREENTOWN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2017

BFEZ 28BS

BERBEEIR/ARER
BE  BMABNELENZ
BRk REITEZZ R
BERE BN TERE  AE
TTRFIE B T EAERE o
BB ETAFITANE
EEE K22EEAEH
ToRBRETHERRESR
HoREEIRERHERESRN
MIRES - IREBTREMAE
A% T RN TIERRIE
BELE- RIULZIN W
e RETREGFET
Bl - £xKERER 85
BT k@B FERRSE
RBUBTIREER B
BRZR - DREEERE -

SEERETHEHBENZ2X
Bl MARE R SERER
X7 2 HEAD M Bz
(EESK



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIS HEREREE

3.2.3.Training Development 3.2.3. FIBRE

Management objectives and policies

We firmly believe that continued training and
development for employees will enhance the value of
the team and professional quality of the employees
themselves, thus bringing higher production efficiency
for the Group. The sustainable development of
employees has many benefits. The Group has a talent
training philosophy, which guides us to develop
different types of tailored training programs for
employees, such as the “Lemon Program”, “Sailing
Program”, “Voyage Program”, “Pilot Program”,
“Business School Program” and "Accreditation” to
provide staff with systematic training at various
professional stages to support and promote the
career development of employees.

BT R R
HMBREEIRETEE
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BEMBEIHEANBEE
B TREARBETRERH
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Training philosophy
BERER

Encourage learning at work Combine work and study with experience and guidance as an

integral part of learning

B TEhEE TEREBEHEMS  REBRIIEEREBHN — )
Comprehensive talent Focus on nurturing staff’s leadership, professional capacity, core
nurturing competence

ZHEHNAMIBE STEEETEEN  BERED LR

Comprehensive career Accompany employees at different stages of their careers to

development

STEMBUERR

support their growth
NEMBIER R — R - XFHEIKE
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Greenhand training/integration program

This year, Greentown Service continues the “Lemon
Program” for fresh college graduates and new
employees hired through social recruitment. We
provide fresh college graduates with 5 years of
training to assist them in moving from theory to
practice, thus accelerating their adaptation to social
workplace culture. At the same time, we also provide
orientation training for new recruits from the
community to enable them to quickly transform their
professional roles, and integrate into the culture of
Greentown Service.

Special Training for Talents

"Sailing Program”, "Voyage Program” and "Pilot
Program” are in-house training programs for
managers and the management. These programs
provide different management training and meetings
on a regular basis, strengthen the shaping and
training of employees’ professional competence and
professional quality, and create a communication
platform for the staff of the same major to share and
deepen their knowledge, and let the employees of
different businesses to understand each other to
make up for the deficiencies, thus comprehensively
strengthening business ability of the management of
the Company.

In terms of external training, the “Business School
Program” of Greentown Service is working with high-
end business schools to further enhance the
management vision and pattern of senior managers,
enrich management knowledge and enhance
leadership. At the same time, we will also arrange
qualification training and related certification for staff
to encourage them to move towards a more enriched
career.
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3.2.4.Rights and Interests Protection 3.24. ERRE

Management objectives and policies

Green Service strictly complies with the laws and
regulations related to minimum employment age,
prohibiting the employment of persons under the age
of 18 to engage in any job position. We check the
identification documents of the job seekers during
the recruitment to make sure that they have reached
the minimum employment age prescribed by laws. At
the same time, Greentown Service prohibits any form
of forced labor and upholds the human rights and
labor rights of employees.

During the Reporting Period, Greentown Service
complies with the relevant policies, laws and
regulations relating to the prevention of child labor or
forced labor.

3.3. Operating Commitments
3.3.1.Supply Chain Management

Management Objectives and Policies

Greentown Service has always attached great
importance to the relationship with supply chain
business partners, and also knows well the importance
to promote and facilitate the operation mode of
liabilities and sustainable development in the entire
supply chain. To this end, we have formulated the
Supplier Code of Conduct, which specifies social,
environmental and commercial ethical requirements.
Through sound and effective supply chain
management, we work together with suppliers to
create safe working conditions, promote respect for
the dignity of workers, and promote responsible
environmental protection measures.
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We have a comprehensive procurement management
process, to centrally standardize procurement/
tendering processes to reduce operating costs; to
adopt stringent measures and monitoring systems,
and we will assess the bidders’ policies, practices and
performance in compliance to regulations,
occupational health and safety, environmental
protection and community care, and require them to
provide certificate of service quality and financial
capability or reference document. After awarding the
contract, we regularly review and evaluate suppliers
to ensure that they comply with local laws and
regulations and meet environmental and social
standards set by the Group, if irregularities are found,
we have the opportunity to terminate the partnership.

Anti-corruption

Greentown Service will declare any conflict of interest
to the tendering company and its directors in order to
prevent fraudulent conduct in the procurement
process, and we encourage the use of a whistle-
blowing mechanism to expose any suspected
misconduct. In addition, the Group establishes strict
guidelines and enforces appropriate disciplinary
punishment to prevent any subcontractor or supplier
from breaching the regulations. The Group’s anti-
corruption policy makes it clear that there will be no
cooperation with any of the offending suppliers.

Safeguarding human rights and labor rights across
the supply chain

Greentown Service complies with relevant local
legislation and will not tolerate the employment of
child labor and forced labor, and we also require
suppliers to comply with relevant legislation.
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3.3.2.Service with Heart 3.3.2. BULBRTE

Management Objectives and Policies

Greentown Service upholds the aspiration of building
a first-class property service business with advanced,
excellent service, leading scale, and rigorous system,
and advances towards the direction of becoming
China’s life service provider with the most complete
value. We have always kept “customer first, quality
orientation” as our hospitality spirit. On the basis of
traditional property service, we have set up an
excellent quality management, environmental
management, occupational health and safety
management system. At the same time, we fully
implement 8S management and cordial service, in
order to build a better home for customers. The
Group also strictly adheres to all relevant laws and
regulations related to product liability, such as
customer’ s health and safety, advertising promotion,
labeling and protection of privacy data.

Happy Community

Greentown Service has implemented the operation
policy of “Cordial Service”, oriented towards people,
starting from the heart, to create a functional and
aesthetic home of happiness for the owners and
customers. The Group insists on service with “heart”.
We have broad and comprehensive service scope,
ranging from pre-school children to elderly people,
which covers the various needs of owners from life to
spirit, so that they can enjoy quality life and realize the
dream of living ideally. In addition, we provide service
with “love” to provide personalized service and
service process to owners, and bring them happiness
with cordial and user-friendly property service to
satisfy and move customers.
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Figure 3 Greentown organizes = ZPEAEIMABRLED

recreational activities for owners

Quality Living

Greentown Service is one step ahead of the
customers, to provide them with the most intimate
and high-quality life experience. The Group has set
up a quality management center to oversee the
service quality of the entire business process and
focus on quality improvement to meet the needs of
customers in order to achieve the objectives of the
enterprise. In addition, in order to protect the safety
of the residents and ensure the order of the
community, we have a professional security team
responsible for daily security to maintain a safe and
orderly park. We also insist on maintaining the
environmental cleanliness and greening of the
community, requiring the various service departments
to conduct regular professional training in this aspect
and strive to make the community a beautiful model
home with high quality.
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85" Management System [8S] EEEH/Z
This year, Greentown Service continues to adopt 8S KR IRTE A E MBI

management system to provide the customers with
the highest quality of service.

#KyE YR B
SEIRI SETTON SEISO

E$o) ©E B #)
SHITSUKE Safety Save

Intelligence Services

Greentown Service constantly reviews the external
and internal environment change, and develops our
own development strategy based on our own
advantages. Through the introduction of intelligent
facilities, mobile Internet and mobile applications, we
can effectively deliver information to customers to
enhance the convenience, service participation and
well-being of living of the owners. At the same time,
Greentown Service, through the Intelligent
Community Service system, strives to build a social
network platform, to establish good multi-directional
communication, strengthen the interaction among the
owners, so that the owners can experience more
distinguished service and enjoy closer good-
neighborly relations.
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Response to the customers

We believe cordial service is the key to the Group’s
success. We can develop closer relationships with
customers through continuous listening and timely
response to them. We have a rigorous complaint
handling mechanism to respond to customers’
opinions carefully to ensure that customers’ complains
are handled in a consistent and efficient manner so as
to assess and improve our services to exceed
customer expectations.
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Handling

A4

BFE

Authentication

Acceptance .
of Complaint > Recording
RFZE ROER
Filing Statistical Analysis |
FRIRIER At
Fair publicity

As a responsible enterprise, the Group recognizes the
importance of advertisement and selling description.
Therefore, each of our business units complies with
laws and self-discipline practices relating to labels of
products and services strictly. In addition, we review
the management objectives regularly to make sure
that the publicity information is timely and accurate
and complies with relevant laws and regulations.

Customer Privacy

We will keep the owners’ document information in
good order and ensure that the Group's daily
operation complies with all relevant laws and
regulations so as to protect the customers’ data.

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s operation
has met the requirements of product liability, such as
customer health and safety, advertising promotion,
labeling, privacy data protection, etc.
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3.3.3.Corporate Governance

The Group has established clear policy and
management guidelines, which never tolerate bribery,
corruption, extortion, fraud, money laundering and
other unethical practices, and the Group's Code of
Conduct reaffirms our expectations for employees,
board members, suppliers and business partners. We
also regularly conduct training and code of conduct
assessment for employees to let them understand the
basic standards of conduct that they are required to
face and observe in their daily work.

We set up a highly confidential reporting mechanism
for employees and other stakeholders, including
business partners, contractors and suppliers, to allow
employees to report any suspected illegal or unethical
behaviors without fear of retribution or retaliation.
The suspected cases will be promptly investigated
and will be dealt with seriously.

During the Reporting Period, Greentown Service
operated in line with the policy on prevention of
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering and
complied with relevant laws and regulations.

3.4. Give back to the Community 3.4.

The Group recognizes that our responsibility is not only to
make a direct contribution to the social economy, but also
to include the impact and effects of our business operations
and public welfare projects on the society as a whole. The
Group has been actively involved in the activities of the
community and met the needs of the community in the past
year, fulfilling its obligations as a corporate citizen and
contributing to the community in which it serves.
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Care the Elderly

Greentown Service integrates the resources of the Group's
internal, social and other professional institutions, to
provide the elderly in the Community with over 100 kinds of
services, such as occasional visit, assistance and interaction
activities. “A bowl of longevity” activity held by the Group
at Double Ninth Festival every year has always been
expected by the elderly; Greentown Yile College, as the
college-style endowment model, has been widely used in
various Communities nationwide, and the establishment of
"Double Ninth Clean-up Day” provides solitary living and
empty-nest elderly families with sweeping services on the
day of Double Ninth Day.

Free ride to the examination

During the examination period in June and July each year,
we implement the “free ride to the examination” activities
in the Community, and promote the “commitment of zero
disturbance”, to encourage owners to keep the Community
quiet, so as to create the best review and test environment
for the candidates. The Group also arranges “Loving Car
Team” for candidates during the examination period to
offer free ride and vehicle services for emergency. In 2017,
a total of 261 volunteers participated in the examination
services to provide services to young owners who
participated in the high school and college entrance
examination.

Dolphin Program

Greentown Service holds “Dolphin Program” during July to
August each year to provide young owners at the age of 3
to 18 who are unable to swim with the free swimming
training. Dolphin Program has been conducted for 8 years.
In 2017, there were 15,601 young property owners
participated in the training.
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Figure 4 Dolphin Program organized by Greentown Service in 2017
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Greentown Forest

Through the welfare activities, the 2015 “Save Mingin
Deliver Green” and the 2016 “Crowd Funding for
Greentown Forest”, for two consecutive years, we have
altogether planted a total of 43,000 trees covering an area
of more than 623 mu, to build a strong embankment for the
resistance of desertification. In 2017, Greentown continued
this green spirit by encouraging and organizing owners,
employees and families to donate to the desert region in
Mingin County, Gansu Province, which raised a total of RMB
55,822.08 in the Reporting Period.
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Figure 5 “Crowd Funding for Greentown Forest” held by Greentown Service in 2017
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Clear World

Eyes are our precious “"windows of the soul”. In order to
promote the importance of eye protection, Greentown
Service has worked together with “Formosa Glasses” (a
well-known glasses chain brand) to carry out “Clear World”
eye care activity in Hangzhou, and provided thousands of
owners with vision inspection, optometry, counseling and
other services. Through “diagnosis” and “prevention”, the
community’s concern about eye health and eyesight has
been aroused, thus comprehensively enhancing the
common sense of eye protection of the public.
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Independent auditor’s report
to the shareholders of Greentown Service Group Co. Ltd.
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Greentown
Service Group Co. Ltd. (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the
Group”) set out on pages 142 to 268, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2017 and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”),
together with any ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the consolidated financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional

BAEETEH

BRE FESRERMOTLAN - Ay
A AN ERRNBHBAEENEE - &
LFERERMBHERGANBREARMA
BRIBETAEN  RMTEHELFRRH
EHNER -

judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do

not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Revenue recognition — property management services

WA — MEEERE

Refer to accounting policy note 1(u) and note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

AL BIMTAE 1(u) VB ETIBUR R AR & TS BRA ML 3

The Key Audit Matter
BRETER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EMNEANAEEZER

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group generated
total revenue of RMB5,140 million which comprised revenue
from property services, consulting services and community
living services of RMB3,560 million, RMB680 million and
RMB®?00 million respectively.

BE2017F12A3NHILFE  EXREZRSRKRAARES 4
87T - ERWERTS - KRS M E R AR RGRAD B &
ARM35.66ET - ARK6BEITRARKEIETT

Property services, which generally comprise property
management services, are rendered to a large number of
residential property owners in community projects and
significant uncertainty may exist as to whether cash will be
collected from each of these individual residential property
owners for the rendering of property management services
by the Group.

MERBBESEEDEEERYS  EXERAREERRHK
EEEXTRHEMEEERY - BELDEMBMULRERIES
MEXTWER S TFEERTEEN -

Management is required to exercise significant judgement to
assess whether it is probable that the property owners will
pay the property management fees due so that revenue from
the provision of property management services may be
recognised by the Group in accordance with the
requirements of the prevailing accounting standards.
EHEEAFRERHE - UFHEREIRERAE R
MEEEE UEEEERBERITSTENNEZRERYE
EIRRRBEIULA o

Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of

revenue from the provision of property management
services included the following:

BABAFEDRERRBBAETHENEF R

understanding and evaluating the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness of
key internal controls over the Group's revenue
recognition processes for property management
services;
THEHEESERANERYEEE REKARE
RIMIZH SN DI RET - AT RIBIERX
1

obtaining the property information summary
and (i) selecting a sample of community projects
from the property information summary and
comparing the details therein with the
underlying property management agreements
and invoices raised; and (i) selecting a sample
of property management agreements and
comparing the relevant details therein with the
property information summary and invoices
raised;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition — property management services (Continued)

AR — UXEERE (&)

Refer to accounting policy note 1(u) and note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

AL BIMTAE 1(u) VB ETIBUR RAr & I TS BRAMIAE 3

The Key Audit Matter
BRETER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EMNEANAEEZER

This judgement is dependent on the property occupancy
status (which includes whether the property is owner
occupied, leased, under renovation, vacant or the owner
cannot be contacted) which is set out in the property
information summary prepared by the Group. Properties with
different occupancy statuses have historically generated
different average collection rates.
BRAHSEBORANERERAENMEER R BB EGS
ARE(BRZDEBREE Bl K& =ENEEREEX
T) o RBBELE - TRMEAMREN Y EL TR EEA
[@ o

The property information summary includes details of the
respective community project’s management fee rate,
contracted gross floor area ("GFA"), chargeable GFA and
residential property occupancy status.
MEBEHBECSZERBANEERER HE@E - ATK
EEEERENMYEERRESHES -

We identified recognition of revenue from the provision of
property management services as a key audit matter because
revenue is one of the key performance indicators of the
Group and therefore there is an inherent risk of manipulation
of the timing and amount of revenue recognised by
management to meet specific targets or expectations and
because the determination as to whether revenue from
property management services should be recognised or not
may involve significant management judgement.
BAEMEEERBOKATI SBARESEE  BERKAR
EEENEREMERZ — AGFEEEERTEIRE
iR TR R QIR A ERERE kRO EA AR - mAE
BHERYEETRMIGWARDRTE AT 888 M E X E IR HE -
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assessing the classification of residential
property occupancy status, as asserted by
management, by inspecting on a sample basis,
utility bills, memorandum records for
renovations and the leasing of the unit,
handover status and other relevant
documentation;

BEHMEREKERRE KERATHRIHRE
UHERE BRBERLEMERXT  FHEE
BEBENEEMERGERRENSE

assessing the estimates and judgements applied
by management relating to the collection rates
associated with each class of property
occupancy status by comparison with historical
collection rates and investigating the reasons
for any significant changes in collection rates in
the current year; and

B ERE St Y Bl EEATHL R - AT E R E R TR
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comparing details of journal entries raised
throughout the year which affected revenue and
which met specific risk-based criteria with
relevant underlying documentation.
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Gt BA AT EARR R IG SUH TR -



Independent Auditor’s Report

R R TR

BRESTSEHGA

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Assessment of potential impairment of goodwiill

B R E R

Refer to accounting policy note 1(I) and note 12 to the consolidated financial statements.

BRBINE 1) BT R A AR EN 12 -

The Key Audit Matter
BRETER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EMNEANAEEZER

As at 31 December 2017, goodwill, which arose from
acquisitions of businesses in 2017, amounted to RMB79
million and accounted for approximately 1.9% of the Group's
total assets at that date.

HE2017F12A318 20177 FRBEBEMEENEES
ARMB7908T  RZBIMEESEBEERTEL1.9% °

Management assess annually whether goodwill is impaired
by means of discounted cash flow forecasts prepared for
each cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated.

EREGTRART —HECESEBENREELETHE
BB RERARTEEHBREHBERIE

Management's impairment assessment involves significant
judgement, particularly in determining short and long term
revenue growth, future profitability and the discount rates
applied, all of which can be inherently uncertain.

B E MR ERHE S R EARHIE - 55 R R RS AR A
WARK - KRB LEANBEREETE - 25597F4E
& A T HEEME -

We identified assessing potential impairment of goodwill as
a key audit matter because determining the key assumptions
used in the discounted cash flow forecasts involves a
significant degree of management judgement and may be
subject to management bias.

B EEBEEREIERRETFE  AREEEM
R eRERARFEANTERI S REERENEREA
B WRIREREEEREGTE -

Our audit procedures to assess potential impairment
of goodwill included the following:

HPIRARHE R BB R ENETRTF R

o evaluating the methodology applied by
management in its preparation of the
discounted cash flow forecasts with reference to
the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;
2RI EYNER - FEEREBERR
R|ERETRRRERAN L

o discussing future operating plans with
management and evaluating the reasonableness
of the assumptions including revenue growth
and future profitability;

B IR B S A R R 2 B R B - AP AE R N
ARENENFRRNOSEM

o evaluating the appropriateness of the discount
rates by comparing them to market data;
BB RE I R E TS BURE 1T L BORFHARE IR X
B E 1

o evaluating the sensitivity analysis prepared by
management for each of the key assumptions
adopted in the discounted cash flow forecasts
and considering the possibility of error or
management bias.
MEEEERMRRERERARANSTEEE
BRAETOSREST - UWEBHRERNKE
BERFRATBEN
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135



Independent Auditor’s Report

B X BEN R S

BRESTSEHGA

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Fair value assessment of convertible notes

AR RBH D FEFE

Refer to accounting policy note 1(g) and note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

ERBINEE 1) BB SHBR RAFA MTS AN 13

The Key Audit Matter
BRETER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EMHFANAEEZSR

On 27 October 2017, the Group purchased
convertible notes issued by China CVS Holding
Limited (“China CVS"), an associate of the Group, in
the principal amount of USD54.0 million (equivalent to
approximately RMB359 million). The convertible notes
are designated by the Group as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, which are classified under
the fair value hierarchy as a level 3 financial
instrument. The fair value of convertible notes was
USD54.8 million (equivalent to approximately RMB358
million) as at 31 December 2017.

R2017 108278 - EXEE A B & 2 8 China
CVS Holding Limited ([ China CVS]) 277 #) AJ R AR 52
B AEEA/S5408XT(HERDARKEISNE
) EREEEARRERRE AT EFEAEELEH
AABENESREE  YRAFEERNERE=R
CHT A -RN2017F12831H - AIBREENATF
E735,480 B XL (HHERH AR 358ET) °

Our audit procedures to assess the fair value of convertible
notes included the following:

BARAE T REEEN A FENET T2

o inspecting relevant agreements and identifying those
terms set out in the agreements that may have impact
in assessing the fair value of the convertible notes;
B Rt X FETE Wk P S L Y RT BERC B AT R IR
DFERENGR

° obtaining and inspecting the valuation report prepared
by the external valuer engaged by management and
on which the directors’ assessment of the fair value of
the convertible notes was based;

RIS W AR E R E 12 B I & S Dk E Rl P AR B &0 (4 (B 3R
& BERRULTETERESHATE

. instructing the auditor of China CVS (“the component

auditor”) to perform an audit of account balance of
convertible notes, which is designated by China CVS as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, in
accordance with the group audit instructions issued by
us;
RIBEF I W EEEFEES] - #87R China CVSEVIZH
A (Y B8 2 B A BUAM | ) % PT 8230 22 4% (4% China CVS#E
ERBEAFEFEEHEHEHFTAZTHERSNEREHE)
HERRRET TR
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R R TR

BRESTSEHGA

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Fair value assessment of convertible notes (Continued)

AR R RE D FEFE ()

Refer to accounting policy note 1(g) and note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

ELRIF BRI RARME 1(9) R 130985 HE -

The Key Audit Matter
BRETER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EMHFANAEEZSR

The valuation of the Group’s convertible notes are
based on a combination of market data and valuation
model which require a considerable number of inputs,
including expected share volatility, expected dividend
yield and the discount rate applied, involved the
exercise of significant management judgement in
their determination.
EREEARBEEENGHEERENTSEEREER
Bk EZAEG AEBERBRERD  BHEKS
Wk MATEMBEERE  RETRAERFTEERRE
fEHE A A -

We identified assessing the fair value of convertible
notes as a key audit matter because of the degree of
complexity involved in valuing the convertible notes
as well as the degree of judgement exercised by
management in determining the inputs used in the
valuation models.
ZEIMMBREENGEENEREEAREEEEE
ERERLMAHAERFEHNHERE - HPFHER]
BEREN A EMEY SRERETFE -

participating in the component auditor’s risk
assessment and planning process to identify significant
risks of material misstatement of convertible notes and
evaluating the audit procedures planned to be
performed to respond to the identified significant risks
of material misstatement of convertible notes, including
the assessment of the selection of valuation model
adopted by the external valuer, the key inputs which
required significant estimation and judgement in their
selection and which can have a significant impact on
the derived fair value, specifically expected share
volatility, expected dividend yield and the discount rate
applied;

S ERMNEB A RZBRAD & AR AT il R AR ERAR - BRI AT 8
BRERLREAERNENRAR - WAEREZZRR
BRAITHETZF - RGN AEMMERNGE
R AEITERTEELAEATENTIEGAER
A ETEHARR B E  TEAAAR B e 3 R PrER A RLIR K -
EREEERRAERTEEHER G RAE

discussing with the component auditor their audit
findings and conclusions with regard to their audit and
evaluating the sufficiency and appropriateness of the
audit evidence for the purpose of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements; and

BT A R B R AR R AR - WA EEAE
BHNETSFEVBRROTOMNREE &

assessing the disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements in relation to the key assumptions adopted
in the valuation with reference to the requirements of
the prevailing accounting standards.
SERTGFENNER - FHEESE BB wmR D Eh
B EEZBRREOBE -

2017TEERE SWRIEEEERAF

137



Independent Auditor’s Report

B X BEN R S

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
AUDITOR'S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

138 GREENTOWN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2017

e MBER R ERBAENRE S
M= R

EFRUHEMEERR - HEERBTHERN
FHRANZHES  ETBEGEAUBRERL
BT ERED IR o

BFEEEMBEREANBERL NRERME
B R HZFEMERBEREMTEAN

9% gk 2A
E o i

BAEKRMEGEAPMBRENES - RANEE
EHEEMER  FLLBET  EREMER
EREGAMBHRRIBMERTBETHRT
OB FEEREEREUFFEEARHER
BRALEIER ©

ERBMEATHIE - IRBEMRBSEME
ERHEERERRL - RMITERELFE -
rETE RFPRAEMNRSESER -

ESHGAMBERRARENER

ERARARBBEBSAMAERHA(ER
IR EERDREBCRBERD D FE EK
REREMTENSAMBEHRE  YHERR
REEREMBERROFE TN FAE B REF S
R ) A SRR P 7R B R BRI &

ﬁo

ERBGEAMBHRERE  EFRETHERE
FraR&2mee ) WAEERER T RERSE
REBRANER  URERBSEEEREFTE
o BRIFEEEEREREBRIUTLELE
gpEEMERMNERTER -

ERZBReMPEZTRTEEESENUHR
HTBRENEE -
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R R TR

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

J Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of
internal control.

J Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

BB F RS M RRAREN

B

BN BER  SHREVBERRERES TR
BN RF AR M G B B RS RAES
BERE THASEHMERNZEAR
& RIPEMERRERE o BubASN - F I
BRE TR AEEM AR - AT ARE
MAR HEMEMATAEIAREERE
£

BEREBERBKFHRE  BTEREBRR
(BREFEADETEG  EX—ERER
BT FERS B RE 3R 3R » SRR R AR RRRF 3K
SRERSIE - MRAEFAMEMEBIEMALER
AIRER B A MR E R E KEY I RAA
TR BV EDRTE » Rl B0 SE AR BRM AT BEAR 1
EXe

ERB(EBETERETEANBES - R
PERTEXHE  YRFEXEREE - R
1Fg7r

o HBIMFHEARNKFFREBRMEREE
B mRFEERERRANRRE &
S RITEIE R A RS E LR - LA
RERFTRMEENETRE FRR
PMERMER - ANKFERIES K P
W BEER - ERRA - 0K
BRARESZ L Fib R BB AR
FEMERMEARFRRANER DR
BB RERME AN ERERRA N
R

o THREZRFHEBOAMES - UREFTE

ENEFEF BEANLFHESER
BEFNERMEERESR -

s HEEEMRABEITEHRNBEERE
HEstH A MR EN S Rt -
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B X BEN R S

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BB FE RS M RRAREN
BE (&)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the Group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

HEERAFELZSTERNREN
EH AW - RIBFAERMEERE
TEAFEEFHEIBEREHENEAT
HEMN - MR ERENSE
RERNELBARE - WREMRR
TFHEEATHEENE BB L EEZREE
BETRFEEAEIBFRAMBRTH
HERE - BREAREOEESRE AR
MEERRIFERBER - ZMANER
EENZBERE A EAREHETER
& o A RRFHEKISAAIGEERE
SETRERELE

MEFEVBERRNBEIHSN B
BMAT  BERE UREAHBER
REATERRIZHMER -

HREEENERREHIINUBER
ERFER  EENETRE  UEHER
AMBHRRERER - BHMEEEEHE
FitW T m - BEMBMT - HAIAES
BERAERYAE-

BREMEIEN  RMEREREESBER T T8
HETHE  BRTH  EAETERE 8
FEEAPIERETH Bl R B 2 il ) {E (] B2 K R
that we identify during our audit. fa e

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
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R R TR

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Fung Ping Kwong.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

23 March 2018

BB FE RS M RRAREN
BE (&)

BPERBEZZEGRBH  SARMSH
BAEMRBLEMARERERENR - W EMbMA
BB RAENERASFERMBILIEN
FIBREMEMER  UAREERNERLT -
THREAYFr #IE I ©

fHEBEZZEGABNERTD - RIAEEMRL
ERU ARV BERENEARAEERE - A
MEKERENFE - ROIERBEVRETH
MR - BRIDARER T A RHRES
LRIE - FAERRERLNBRT  MRAERE
HERMRETBBRFHENNEEELRE
BEENATANE - LIPRETEERESHE
BZEIR
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

meBEaREMEEERAR

for the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE2017F 12 A31 BIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) (A AR¥ITEIR)

2017 2016

2017 20164

Note RMB'000 RMB’000

B 5T ARET T AREFT

Revenue PN 3(a) 5,140,059 3,721,993
Cost of sales SHERK K (4,193,669) (3,005,966)

Gross profit EF 946,390 716,027
Other revenue HabUg A 4 12,784 16,228
Other net income EFas 4 6,747 3,952
Selling and marketing expenses PHE R LIRS (22,532) (9,700)
Administrative expenses THRAX (415,952) (274,988)
Other operating expenses HEihEeMx (42,914) (34,720)
Profit from operations mENB ez . 416799
Finance income BE U A 18,904 5,297
Finance costs BbE AN - (6,964)
Net finance income/(costs) BEWA S (BRA) S5 5(a) 18,904 (1,667)
Share of profits less losses of associates 7 {h & A &) F B RUE 18 7,297 4,428

Share of profits less losses DiEEE R RN EREE

of joint ventures 306 (1,018)
Gain on acquisition of subsidiaries W B B B R 419 -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries =SNGV 709 -
Gain on acquisition of an associate WeBB R 2 N R ER 53 46
Loss on deemed disposal of an associate R £z & B < A FE 18 (4,500) -
Gain on disposal of a joint venture | | MEAEAREN .28 -
Profit before taxation BAIRE 5 508,919 418,588
Income tax FriS i 6 (116,849) (123,801)
Profit for the year FERFHE 392,070 294,787

The notes on pages 149 to 268 form part of these financial statements. 149 & 268 BT s R X S B I MR8 —

#5 -
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

meBEaREMEEERAR

for the year ended 31 December 2017

HE2017% 1231 BILEE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) (A AR¥ITEIR)

2017 2016
2017 F 20164
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B EE ARMT ARBTT
Attributable to: BT AL :
Equity shareholders of the Company AR E)ESIE 387,483 285,540
Non-controlling interests eI AR A 4,587 9,247
Profit for the year FERFE 392,070 294,787
Earnings per share BREF
Basic and diluted (RMB) ERLEE(ARE) 9 0.14 0.12
Profit for the year FERFE 392,070 294,787
Other comprehensive income FREMZEKRA
for the year (after tax and (RBEREH 2 ERHER)
reclassification adjustments)
Items that may be reclassified B [fe B D HZE
subsequently to profit or loss: BambHEE
Share of other comprehensive income  JE{EEMIRE H 5 2 45746 Wk
of the investees (20,180) -
Exchange differences on translation of:  NEITE Z & -
— financial statements of — BREINA B A RIB B IRER
overseas subsidiaries FREEZERZHE (70,842) 42,473
Other comprehensive income FREMZEKRA
fortheyear (91.022) 42473
Total comprehensive income FREEBRKA
for the year 301,048 337,260
Attributable to: BT AL R :
Equity shareholders of the Company AN A RESIER 296,461 328,013
Non-controlling interests eI 4,587 9,247
Total comprehensive income FRE@EARA
for the year 301,048 337,260

The notes on pages 149 to 268 form part of these financial statements.

BB o

149 E 268 A M T WA L F M A —
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B IR 0 ¥k

at 31 December 2017 72017412 A31H
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) (A AR ITEIR)

2017 2016
2017 F 20164
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5T ARET T AREEFIT
Non-current assets FRBEE

Property, plant and equipment Y - BEREE 10 303,931 264,471
Intangible assets mEE 11 57,034 -
Goodwill [EES 12 79,422 -
Interest in associates N B RE R 13 490,159 32,443
Interest in joint ventures BB NRIER 14 68,344 94,266
Other financial assets HuemEE 15 112,755 -
Deferred tax assets EERIAE B 23(b)(ii) 72,810 50,704
Prepayments TEfTRIE 16 18,970 27,759
1,203,425 469,643

Current assets REBEE
Other financial assets HEhemEE 15 29,232 -
Inventories =8 17 127,693 10,064
Trade and other receivables B 5 RE M rE R IE 18 789,719 546,666
Restricted bank balances SRR BRI TR 19 153,248 114,654
Cash and cash equivalents RENRREEEY 20 1,836,467 2,181,692
2,936,359 2,853,076

Current liabilities REBEE
Receipts-in-advance TR SRIE 21 649,787 473,220
Trade and other payables B 5 RAMERFIE 22 1,303,589 942,949
Current taxation BNHRF: 18 23(a) 167,471 118,461
Provisions P 24 17,453 19,890
2,138,300 1,554,520
Net current assets REBEEFE 798,059 1,298,556
Total assets less current liabilities BEEBARBER 2,001,484 1,768,199

149 E 268 A M T WA L F WA —

#5 -

The notes on pages 149 to 268 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B R ¥k

at 31 December 2017 7201712 A31H
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) (A AR¥ITEIR)

2017 2016
2017 F 20164
Note RMB'000 RMB’000
B 5T ARET T AREEFIT
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Deferred tax liabilities RIETIBAE 23(b)(ii) 3,816 10,804
Provisions B 24 5,950 11,659
________________________________________________________________________________________________ 66, 22463
NET ASSETS EEZEH 1,991,718 1,745,736
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXRFEE
Share capital R A 25(c) 24 24
Reserves B 1,918,190 1,718,974
Total equity attributable to equity AT RRELEER
shareholders of the Company 1,918,214 1,718,998
Non-controlling interests JEIERAER 73,504 26,738
TOTAL EQUITY S 1,991,718 1,745,736

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 23 7201843 A23 BEE S H#t /& RIFHETE -
March 2018.

Director Director

EF EF

The notes on pages 149 to 268 form part of these financial statements. 149 & 268 BT TR X SIS HMR 8 —

#5 -
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

meEEBE R

for the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE2017F 12 A31 BIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) (A AR¥ITEIR)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ROARERRRS

The People’s Share of

Republic of other

China (the comprehensive

"PRC") income Non-
Share Share  statutory Other Special  Exchange ofthe  Retained controlling Total
capital ~ premium reserve reserve reserve reserve investees profits Totl  interests Equity

REAR

#HE BiiRE

(%) il

BE  REEE  ARRE  REER  GARE  ERER  EMA REAR o AERER 4@
Note  RMBOND  RVBOD  RMBOD  RMBOD  RMBOD RO RVBOD  RMBOD  RMBOD  RMBOO RV
Wi ARETT ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARRTR  ARMTR  ARETR ARRTR ARRTR ARMTR

Balance at 1 January 2016 W18 26 § - 580 1658 7402 5 - a5 1200 16807 14887
Changes in equity for 2016: MoERERT:
Proftor the year EmilE - - - - - - - B0 850 U7 U781
Other comprehensive income Ep2ERA - - - - - oan - - o - Dan
Total comprefensive income eI - - - - - 0 - /M0 W03 947 331,280
Issue of ordinary shares upon nitil public RENDREELETERR

offering,net ofssuing cost NBERE 250 T 126588 - - - - - - 126580 - 126580
Capitalsaton ssue ERtEA 25 9 ] - - - - - - - - -
Avising on share ofreserve of an associate EEBARBENARE - - - % - - - - % - %
Partialdisposal of equity nterests in BALENRAARES

subsiciaries - - - (484) - - - - (484) il 20
Deemed distribution to equity BN BLIREREDR

shareholders of a subsidary - - - - (65%) - - - (653) - (653
Transfer to reserves ERZER 250 - - 0047 - - - - )] - - -
Balance at 31 December 201 2016512431 AR

and 1January 2017 MTE1B1B2E8 U 126582 B3 1269 1,066 a9 - 33069 171698 878 1785736
Changes in equity for 2017: WIERERS:
Proftor the year ERilE - - - - - - - 387,483 387483 4587 392,070
Other comprehersive income Et2ARA - - - - - (70,842 (20,180) - (91,022) - (91,022
Total comprefensive income 2AEHA - - - - - (70,842) (20,180) 387,483 296,461 4,587 301,048
Patil disposel of equity interests in PALENELARTES

subsidiaries 280 - - - 1,449 - - - - 1,449 4,551 6,000
Acquisiton ofacitonal equity YEHEL DB RER

Interests in subsidiaries ) - - - 1,245 - - - - 1,245 (2,004) (759)
Transfer to reserves ERTEE )i - - 17613 - - - - (17,673 - - -
Capital inection from non-conrolling FERRREE

shareholders - - - - - - - - - 23,680 23,680
Acquiton ofsubsicares WERELT bt - - - - - - - - - 20299 20299
Disposal of subsiciaries LENBLA 2b) - - 5 - - - - - - (4341 (4347)
Diidends declared in respect of the HBEEESRRE

previous year - (99.939) - - - - - - (99.939) - (99.939)
Balance at 31 December 2017 RONTE12831R2

53 24 1,165,885 63,000 3,963 1066 (28,423) (20,180) 732,879 1918214 73504 1,991,718

The notes on pages 149 to 268 form part of these financial statements. 149 & 268 BT s R X S B I MR8 —

#5 -
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

n -\éiﬁﬁﬁiﬁ

for the year ended 31 December 2017

HE2017% 1231 BILEE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

(AAR®TTIIR)

2017 2016
2017 5 20164
Note RMB’'000 RMB’000
B EE ARET T ARBFT
Operating activities ReETEH
Cash generated from operations IREATBIR S 20(b) 629,356 474,072
Income tax paid EATPTIEH (100,782) (80,411)
Net cash generated from RETHAEREFR
operating activities 528,574 393,661
Investing activities REED
Payments for the purchase of property, BEYE BMEMEREANE
plant and equipment and intangible FEEMNR
assets (118,646) (84,112)
Proceeds from disposal of property, BEEWME  BENMEREEH
plant and equipment T8 1,702 2,684
Payments for purchase of: BETIIFIERNK
— financial assets classified as fair value ~ — DAL AFEF AEBZE
through profit or loss (“FVTPL") (MEAFEF ABE]
HWEREE (373,718) (5,000)
— trading securities — RGEH (9,520) -
— listed held-to-maturity investments — HERHZ EARE (80,468) -
— available-for-sale financial — A EeRIA
instruments (25,700) (24,300)
Proceeds from redemption: BE B T3 B IBFTS R ¢
— FVTPL —BAFEFAER 5,940 33,200
— trading securities — BEESH 6,035 -
Investment income received from HEMESREEMGIRERA
other financial assets 165 334
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of W B AR - HIBRATES
cash acquired RE 26 (69,969) -
Disposal of subsidiaries, net of HEWB AT - IBRATHE
cash disposed Re 26 (1,557) -
Increase in interest in associates AN A Bl (99,186) (21,787)
Proceeds from disposal of interest I E A R R TSR
in associates - 38,805
Proceeds from disposal of interest HESERRIERERIE
in joint ventures 1,500 -
Increase in interest in joint ventures b IS =N (2,534) (92,180)
Dividends received from associates EL/NEI SN = 2,010
Interest received F R ES 16,153 3,482
Net cash used in investing activities REZBHMERLFHE (749,803) (146,864)

The notes on pages 149 to 268 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

n _\éIﬁﬁﬁE%

for the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE2017F 12 A31 BIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) (A AR¥ITEIR)

2017 2016
2017 F 20164
Note RMB’'000 RMB’000
B EE ARET T ARBTT
Financing activities METH
Distribution to shareholders of a subsidiary [Af} B 2 &A% 5 5 & = (454)
Proceeds from new bank loans iRt ERFIE - 130,000
Repayment of bank loans EERITER = (310,000)
Net proceeds from issue of shares AHREEFEEES
upon initial public offering, HREEER
net of issuing costs - 1,265,840
Payment for acquisition of additional W BB B A R ZE NIRRT 3K
equity interests in subsidiaries (759) -
Partial disposal of equity interests BT A T EB o AR
in subsidiaries 6,000 -
Capital injection from non-controlling JEEREE R HE
shareholders 23,680 -
Interest paid FEZA = (6,964)
Dividends payments BRI S (99,939) (21,897)
Net cash (used in)/generated from BEES (FTA) FBHEE
financing activities FE (71,018) 1,056,525
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and RERBREEBYORD),/
cash equivalents b lipec (292,247) 1,303,322
Cash and cash equivalents R1A1BENEERES
at 1 January Z£EY 20(a) 2,181,692 835,897
Effect of foreign exchange MNEERS BT
rate changes (52,978) 42,473
Cash and cash equivalents R12B31BNEER
at 31 December RESEY 20(a) 1,836,467 2,181,692

The notes on pages 149 to 268 form part of these financial statements. 149 & 268 BT s R X S B I MR8 —

#5 -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 ¥R 2R MY

for the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

1

HE2017% 1231 BILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (HKFRSs), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(HKASs) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group. Note 1(c) provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2017 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) and the
Group's interest in associates and joint ventures.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
24 November 2014 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961 as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The
Company'’s shares were listed on the Main Board on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 12 July 2016 (the “Listing”).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 ¥R 2R MY

for the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B& S1TaERASI

1

HE20175 1231 BIEEE

A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(Continued)

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB"), rounded to the nearest thousand, which
is the presentation currency. It is prepared on the historical
cost basis except for certain financial assets are stated at
their fair value as explained in the accounting policies set
out below:

—  financial instruments classified as trading securities,
fair value through profit and loss or available-for-sale
(see note 1(g)); and

—  derivative financial instruments (see note 1(h)).

RMB is the functional currency for the Company's
subsidiaries established in the mainland China. The
functional currency of the Company and the Company’s
subsidiaries outside the mainland China are Hong Kong
dollars.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty are
discussed in note 2.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 ¥R 2R MY

for the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

1

HE2017% 1231 BILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued several of amendments to HKFRSs
that are first effective for the current accounting period of
the Group. None of these impact on the accounting
policies of the group.

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the entity. When assessing whether the Group has power,
only substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only
to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole having
a contractual obligation in respect of those interests that
meets the definition of a financial liability. For each business
combination, the Group can elect to measure any non-
controlling interests either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of the subsidiary’s
net identifiable assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 ¥R 2R MY

for the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

1

HE20175 1231 BIEEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of the
Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as an
allocation of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between non-controlling interests and
the equity shareholders of the Company. Loans from
holders of non-controlling interests and other contractual
obligations towards these holders are presented as financial
liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position
in accordance with notes 1(o) or (p) depending on the
nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that do not
result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the
amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no
gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former subsidiary
at the date when control is lost is recognised at fair value
and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset (see note 1(g)) or, when
appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an investment
in an associate or joint venture (see note 1(e)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 1(I), unless the investment is classified as
held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 ¥R 2R MY

for the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

1

HE2017% 1231 BILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(e)

Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company
has significant influence, but not control or joint control,
over its management, including participation in the financial
and operating policy decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group or
Company and other parties contractually agree to share
control of the arrangement, and have rights to the net
assets of the arrangement.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements
under the equity method, unless it is classified as held for
sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale). Under the equity method, the investment is
initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the
Group's share of the acquisition-date fair values of the
investee's identifiable net assets over the cost of the
investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is adjusted
for the post acquisition change in the Group's share of the
investee's net assets and any impairment loss relating to
the investment (see notes 1(f) and (1)). Any acquisition-date
excess over cost, the Group's share of the post-acquisition,
post-tax results of the investees and any impairment losses
for the year are recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, whereas the Group's share of the post-
acquisition post-tax items of the investees’ other
comprehensive income is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

When the Group's share of losses exceeds its interest in the
associate or the joint venture, the Group's interest is
reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the
Group's interest is the carrying amount of the investment
under the equity method together with the Group's long-
term interests that in substance form part of the Group’s
net investment in the associate or the joint venture.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS R aR B EE

for the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B& S1TaERASI

1

HE20175 1231 BIEEE

A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(e)

Associates and joint ventures (Continued)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates and joint venture are
eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in the
investee, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case
they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture or vice versa, retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate or joint control over a joint
venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that
former investee at the date when significant influence or
joint control is lost is recognised at fair value and this
amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of
a financial asset (see note 1(g)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associates and joint ventures are stated at
cost less impairment losses (see note 1(l)), unless classified
as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 ¥R 2R MY

for the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B S1TaERASM

1

HE2017% 1231 BILEE

A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(f)

(9)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of

(i)  the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the fair value of the
Group's previously held equity interest in the
acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets
and liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain
purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash
generating units, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination and is tested annually for
impairment (see note 1(1)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in
the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Other investments in debt and equity financial
instruments

The Group's and the Company'’s policies for investments in
debt and equity financial instruments, other than
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures,
are as follows:

Investments in debt and equity financial instruments are
initially stated at fair value, which is their transaction price
unless it is determined that the fair value at initial
recognition differs from the transaction price and that fair
value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for
an identical asset or liability or based on a valuation
technique that uses only data from observable markets.
Cost includes attributable transaction costs, except where
indicated otherwise below. These investments are
subsequently accounted for as follows, depending on their
classification:
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 ¥R 2R MY

for the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

1

HE20175 1231 BIEEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(9)

Other investments in debt and equity financial
instruments (Continued)

Investments in financial instruments held for trading or
designated as at fair value through profit or loss are
classified as current assets. Investments in financial
instruments held for trading or designated as at fair value
through profit or loss are classified as current assets, except
for investments in convertible notes issued by an associate,
which is designated as at fair value through profit or loss
and classified as interest in an associate. Any attributable
transaction costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
At the end of each reporting period the fair value is
remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised
in profit or loss does not include any dividends or interest
earned on these investments as these are recognised in
accordance with the policies set out in notes 1(u)(iii) and (iv).

Dated debt financial instruments that the Group and/or the
Company have the positive ability and intention to hold to
maturity are classified as held-to-maturity financial
instruments. Held-to-maturity financial instruments are
stated at amortised cost less impairment losses (see note

1))

Investments in financial instruments which do not fall into
any of the above categories are classified as available-for-
sale financial instruments. At the end of each reporting
period the fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain
or loss being recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the fair value
reserve. As an exception to this, investments in equity
financial instruments that do not have a quoted price in an
active market for an identical instrument and whose fair
value cannot otherwise be reliably measured are recognised
in the statement of financial position at cost less impairment
losses (see note 1(l)). Dividend income from equity financial
instruments and interest income from debt financial
instruments calculated using the effective interest method
are recognised in profit or loss in accordance with the
policies set out in notes 1(u)(iii) and (iv), respectively.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from changes
in the amortised cost of debt financial instruments are also
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 ¥R 2R MY

for the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

HE2017% 1231 BILEE

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(9)

(h)

(i)

Other investments in debt and equity financial
instruments (Continued)

When the investments are derecognised or impaired (see
note 1(1)), the cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity is
reclassified to profit or loss. Investments are recognised/
derecognised on the date the Group commits to purchase/
sell the investments or they expire.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at
fair value. At the end of each reporting period the fair value
is remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair
value is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see note 1(1)):

—  buildings held for own use which are situated on
leasehold land classified as held under operating
leases (see note 1(k)); and other items of plant and
equipment.

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the
initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling
and removing the items and restoring the site on which
they are located, and an appropriate proportion of
production overheads and borrowing costs (see note 1(x)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or
loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or valuation
of items of property, plant and equipment, less their
estimated residual value, if any, using the straight line
method over their estimated useful lives as follows:

—  Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated
over the shorter of the unexpired term of lease and
their estimated useful lives, being no more than 20
years after the date of completion.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS R aR B EE

for the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

1

HE20175 1231 BIEEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i)

()

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

—  Leasehold improvements 3-5years
—  Office equipment and furniture 3-5years
—  Motor vehicles 3-10 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost or valuation of the item
is allocated on a reasonable basis between the parts and
each part is depreciated separately. Both the useful life of
an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group upon
acquisition of subsidiaries are measured at fair value upon
initial recognition. Subsequent to initial recognition, those
intangible assets are measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (see note

1()Gi).

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
assets’ estimated useful lives. The following intangible
assets with finite useful lives are amortised from the date
they are available for use and their estimated useful lives
are as follows:

—  Software 2-10 years

—  Customer relationship 9.6 years

—  Property management remaining contract

contracts periods

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 ¥R 2R MY

for the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE2017F12 H31 BIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B S1TaERASN -

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of

(k)

transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines

that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset

or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a

payment or a series of payments. Such a determination is
made based on an evaluation of the substance of the
arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement
takes the legal form of a lease.

(i)

(ii)

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group are classified as operating leases.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases
are charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over
the accounting periods covered by the lease term,
except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the leased asset. Lease incentives received are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent
rentals are charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS R aR B EE

for the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE2017F12 A31 BIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BRS1T:EBRSN - WAAREEITLIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 FEESFHBE(E)
(CONTINUED)
()  Impairment of assets () EERE
(i)  Impairment of investments in debt and equity (i) EEERBRFAEeMIAREEH

financial instruments and other receivables HttEWFEIERE

Investments in debt and equity financial instruments BEEBRASE T EKE N

and other current and non-current receivables that T2 4z A 7N Bl G A AR 51 B 3k

are stated at cost or amortised cost or are classified DEATHEESRIAY

as available-for-sale financial instruments are reviewed Hth 7% B K2 3 B R W KA

at the end of each reporting period to determine SR ZMEB KRG - ARE

whether there is objective evidence of impairment. TEAREBRERE T8

Objective evidence of impairment includes BEZREREASEMRES

observable data that comes to the attention of the BALAT —TH ZIEEESH

Group about one or more of the following loss events: B Al B AR U ¢

—  significant financial difficulty of the debtor; — BBABAERMBRE

2

— a breach of contract, such as a default or —  EY) MERSEEY
delinquency in interest or principal payments; MR B ARS

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter — (EARRERETETT
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; Hib A5 EA

— significant changes in the technological, market, — Bt mig - KESE
economic or legal environment that have an BREBEHEBKAS
adverse effect on the debtor; and TR ENERNES :

&

—  a significant or prolonged decline in the fair — BRATHEKRENRTFE
value of an investment in an equity instrument KNIBSHFE T BEER
below its cost. B o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR AR B EE

for the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE2017F12 H31 BIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BxS1T7EBRSN - WAA R ITIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 EESTBEE)
(CONTINUED)
()  Impairment of assets (Continued) ) EEREGE)

(i)  Impairment of investments in debt and equity (i) EEERBRAEemMIAREAAM
financial instruments and other receivables FEWFER{E (&)
(Continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is WiFEEMZERE - £0

determined and recognised as follows: TEEEEATER T UE
TERER

—  For investments in associates and joint ventures —  BAIRREZETIBR MR
accounted for under the equity method in the ENAREETENK
consolidated financial statements (see note EmE (RHFEE)
1(e)), the impairment loss is measured by WAEEIE IR ENT
comparing the recoverable amount of the 10)Gi) b 8248 & 1) 7] U
investment with its carrying amount in [l ¢ %8 8 H R E A&
accordance with note 1(1)(ii). The impairment & oo il AR B B EE 1))
loss is reversed if there has been a favourable F{EEE A U+ EE R
change in the estimates used to determine the HEHIREFES
recoverable amount in accordance with note 1(l) {BE1E T AR -

(ii).

—  For unquoted equity financial instruments —  BEREASERZIELT
carried at cost, the impairment loss is measured AT EMmMS @ B
as the difference between the carrying amount EEEEemEERT
of the financial asset and the estimated future BHEEETARAKRERE
cash flows, discounted at the current market ZEREAE iRy
rate of return for a similar financial asset where Z2E A BRBEUESR
the effect of discounting is material. Impairment BEEMRITMISRRE
losses for equity financial instruments carried at BAIR < R AFEIERE
cost are not reversed. IR & m T A8 ERS

BATEM -
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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for the year ended 31 December 2017

HE20175 1231 BIEEE

A

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B S1TaERASN -

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

Impairment of investments in debt and equity
financial instruments and other receivables
(Continued)

(N

(i)

For trade and other current receivables and
other financial assets carried at amortised cost,
the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the financial asset's original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition of these
assets), where the effect of discounting is
material. This assessment is made collectively
where these financial assets share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due status,
and have not been individually assessed as
impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets
which are assessed for impairment collectively
are based on historical loss experience for
assets with credit risk characteristics similar to
the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not
result in the asset's carrying amount exceeding
that which would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 ¥R 2R MY

for the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE2017F12 H31 BIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B S1TaERASN -

BAARETTIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 FESTHEX(E)
(CONTINUED)
()  Impairment of assets (Continued) ) EEREGE)
(i)  Impairment of investments in debt and equity () EEERRAemMIAEHEM
financial instruments and other receivables FEWFER{E (&)

(Continued)

—  For available-for-sale financial instruments, the
cumulative loss that has been recognised in the
fair value reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.
The amount of the cumulative loss that is
recognised in profit or loss is the difference
between the acquisition cost (net of any
principal repayment and amortisation) and
current fair value, less any impairment loss on
that asset previously recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss in
respect of available-for-sale equity financial
instruments are not reversed through profit or
loss. Any subsequent increase in the fair value of
such assets is recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Impairment losses in respect of available-for-
sale debt financial instruments are reversed if
the subsequent increase in fair value can be
objectively related to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised. Reversals
of impairment losses in such circumstances are
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade debtors and bills
receivable included within trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful
but not remote. In this case, the impairment losses for
doubtful debts are recorded using an allowance
account. When the Group is satisfied that recovery is
remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is
written off against trade debtors and bills receivable
directly and any amounts held in the allowance
account relating to that debt are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged
to the allowance account are reversed against the
allowance account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in profit
or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS R aR B EE

for the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE2017F12 A31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B S1TaERASN -

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
() Impairment of assets (Continued)
(ii) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may be
impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment;
—  prepayments;

— intangible assets;

—  goodwill; and

— investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures in the Company’s statement of financial
position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, the recoverable
amount of goodwill is estimated annually whether or
not there is any indication of impairment.

—  Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR AR B EE

for the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

1

HE2017% 1231 BILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment of assets (Continued)
Impairment of other assets (Continued)

(N

(ii)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-
generating unit (or group of units) and then, to
reduce the carrying amount of the other assets
in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis,
except that the carrying value of an asset will
not be reduced below its individual fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable) or value in
use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the
asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or loss
in the year in which the reversals are recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 ¥R 2R MY

for the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE2017F12 A31 BIEFE
=

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B& 51TaERASN

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
() Impairment of assets (Continued)
(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Financial
instruments on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, the Group is required to prepare an interim
financial report in compliance with HKAS 34, Interim
financial reporting, in respect of the first six months of
the financial year. At the end of the interim period,
the Group applies the same impairment testing, and
reversal criteria as it would at the end of the financial
year (see notes 1()(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill, available-for-sale equity financial
instruments and unquoted equity financial instruments
carried at cost are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller
loss, would have been recognised had the impairment
been assessed only at the end of the financial year to
which the interim period relates. Consequently, if the
fair value of an available-for-sale equity financial
instruments increases in the remainder of the annual
period, or in any other period subsequently, the
increase is recognised in other comprehensive income
and not profit or loss.

(m) Inventories

Property held for sale

Inventories in respect of property held for sale are carried
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of
properties held for sale comprises all costs of purchase and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price less costs to be
incurred in selling the property.
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